
CABINET MEMBER FOR ECONOMIC AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
 
Venue: Conference Room 3, 3rd 

Floor, Bailey House, 
Rawmarsh Road, 
Rotherham. 

Date: Wednesday, 9 June 2004 

  Time: 9.00 a.m. 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

 
1. To determine if the following matters are to be considered under the categories 

suggested, in accordance with the Local Government Act 1972.  
  

 
2. To determine any item which the Chairman is of the opinion should be 

considered later in the agenda as a matter of urgency.  
  

 
3. Minutes of the previous meeting of the Cabinet Member for Economic and 

Development Services held as follows:-  

 (See Orange Book – Delegated Powers – 27th March to 12th May, 2004 pages 
1A to 23A) 
 

- 29th March, 2004 
- 19th April, 2004 
- 26th April, 2004  
- 11th May, 2004 

 
4. Best Value Indicators Quarterly Results 2003/2004 and the Best Value 

Performance Plan 2004/2005 (Pages 1 - 68) 

 Best Value Officer to report. 
- to inform Members of the Year End Performance of Economic and 
Development 2003/2004 Plus Targets for the next three years. 

 
5. B6060 Laughton Common Road Bridge (Pages 69 - 72) 

 Acting Schemes and Partnerships Manager to report. 
- to consider the transfer of ownership of the bridge to the Council and the 
construction of an armco type subway structure. 

 
6. Petition re:  Parking on Sitwell Drive, Broom (Pages 73 - 74) 

 Acting Schemes and Partnerships Manager to report. 
- to consider a request for a residents’ parking scheme. 

 
7. Cherry Tree Road Estate, Wales - Traffic Calming (Pages 75 - 76) 

 Acting Schemes and Partnerships Manager to report. 
- to inform Members of a proposal to introduce traffic calming and a 20-
mph speed limit on the Cherry Tree Road estate, Wales. 

 
8. Broom Lane Local Safety Scheme  

Public Document Pack



 Principal Engineer to report. 
- to report the current situation with regard to reducing the speed limit. 

 
9. Rotherham to Thrybergh Quality Bus Corridor (Pages 77 - 78) 

 Principal Engineer to report. 
- to report on the public involvement programme. 

 
10. Carriageway Surface Dressing (Pages 79 - 82) 

 Principal Engineer to report. 
- to report on the benefits of this treatment, review the 2003 programme 
and outline the 2004 programme. 

 
11. SCEPTRE Awards 2004 - Town Centre Manager of the Year Category (Pages 

83 - 96) 

 Head of RiDO to report. 
- to announce the successful application to the finals of the Town Centre 
Manager of the Year 2004. 

 
12. Streetpride Annual Report. 2004  

 Head of Streetpride to report. 
- to inform Members of results, achievements and key activities from the 
Streetpride Service for 2004. 

 
13. Conferences/Seminars  

 to consider attendance at the following:- 
 
(i) The Centre for Transport Policy – National Transport Awards Dinner and 
7th UK Chairs of Transport Conference – 8th and 9th July, 2004 – London.  
(information attached) 
 
Extra Item:- 
 
(ii) NABMA 56th Annual Conference – 5th to 7th September, 2004 – 
Scarborough. 

 
14. Minutes of a meeting of the Joint Leisure Services Project held on 14th May, 

2004 (Pages 97 - 100) 

 - to receive the minutes. 
 

Extra Item:- 
 
15. Minutes of a meeting of the Unitary Development Plan Review Members' 

Steering Group held on 21st May, 2004.  (copy attached) (Pages 101 - 104) 
  

 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

The following items are likely to be considered in the absence of the press and public 
as being exempt under the paragraphs, indicated below, of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to 
the Local Government Act 1972:-  
 



 
16. Request for CERB funding - 8.42 Academy Construction Trades (ACT) (Pages 

105 - 108) 

 Economic Strategy Manager to report. 
- to consider a request for CERB funding from the 2004/2005 budget. 

(Exempt under Paragraph 5 of the Act – report contains information relating to 
an application for financial assistance) 

 
17. Update to Members after the Floods of November 2000 (Pages 109 - 118) 

 Head of Streetpride to report. 
- to update Members of the investigations and remedial works which 

have been undertaken following the exceptional flooding that 
occurred in November 2000. 

(Exempt under Paragraphs 7 and 8 of the Act – information relating to the 
financial or business affairs of other than the Local Authority and amount of 
expenditure for the acquisition or supply of goods or services) 

 



 In
di

ca
to

r D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

20
02

/0
3 

 
20

03
/0

4 
20

04
/0

5 
20

05
/0

6 
20

06
/0

7 
 

[L
ea

d 
O

ffi
ce

r]
 

R
ef

. N
o.

C
PA

 
R

PI
 

LP
SA

 
A

ct
ua

l 
To

p 
Q

 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

ct
ua

l 
 

Ta
rg

et
s

C
om

m
en

ts
 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f p
eo

pl
e 

sa
tis

fie
d 

th
at

 th
e 

au
th

or
ity

 
ha

s 
m

et
 th

ei
r d

ut
y 

to
 k

ee
p 

th
ei

r r
el

ev
an

t l
an

d 
an

d 
re

le
va

nt
 h

ig
hw

ay
s 

fo
r 

w
hi

ch
 th

e 
au

th
or

ity
 is

 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
cl

ea
r o

f l
itt

er
 

an
d 

re
fu

se
. 

B
VP

I 8
9

Ye
s 

 
 

 
N

/A
 

60
%

 
58

%
 

- 
- 

70
%

 
Sa

tis
fa

ct
io

n 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

fr
om

 4
6%

 
to

 5
8%

.  
Ta

rg
et

 s
et

 a
t 

to
p 

qu
ar

til
e 

le
ve

l. 
Th

is
 is

 a
 3

 y
ea

rly
 

st
at

ut
or

y 
su

rv
ey

, 
he

nc
e 

no
 ta

rg
et

 s
et

 
un

til
 2

00
6/

07
. 

[T
om

 K
ni

gh
t] 

A
la

n 
Pl

at
t t

o 
re

po
rt

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y 

w
ill

 
gi

ve
 th

is
 in

di
ca

to
r 

hi
gh

 p
rio

rit
y 

to
 

ac
hi

ev
e 

th
e 

70
%

 
ta

rg
et

 a
nd

 w
ill

 c
ar

ry
 

ou
t a

nn
ua

l s
ur

ve
ys

 
an

d 
se

t l
oc

al
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 i.
e 

04
/0

5 
62

%
  a

nd
 0

5/
06

 
65

%
. 

              

D
 1

2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Agenda Item 4Page 1



In
di

ca
to

r D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

20
02

/0
3 

 
20

03
/0

4 
20

04
/0

5 
20

05
/0

6 
20

06
/0

7 
 

[L
ea

d 
O

ffi
ce

r]
 

R
ef

. N
o.

C
PA

 
R

PI
 

LP
SA

 
A

ct
ua

l 
To

p 
Q

 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

ct
ua

l 
 

Ta
rg

et
s

C
om

m
en

ts
 

 C
on

di
tio

n 
of

 p
rin

ci
pa

l 
ro

ad
s.

 
B

VP
I 9

6
Ye

s 
 

Ye
s 

(C
E)

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

(U
ni

te
d 

K
in

gd
om

 
Pa

ve
m

en
t M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Sy

st
em

) U
K

PM
S.

   

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

M
et

ho
d 

- C
oa

rs
e 

Vi
su

al
 

Su
rv

ey
 (C

VI
) 

 
 

 
 

12
.3

7%
 

2.
4%

 
12

.0
0%

 
10

.7
5%

 
10

.0
%

 
9.

5%
 

9.
0%

C
on

tin
ua

tio
n 

of
 y

ea
r 

on
 y

ea
r i

m
pr

ov
em

en
t 

ta
rg

et
ed

. G
oo

d 
pr

og
re

ss
 w

as
 m

ad
e 

in
 th

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t o
f 

ro
ad

 c
on

di
tio

n 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

pa
st

 y
ea

r. 
Th

e 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f t

he
 

pr
in

ci
pa

l r
oa

d 
ne

tw
or

k 
(A

 ro
ad

s )
 in

 n
ee

d 
of

 m
aj

or
 

st
re

ng
th

en
in

g.
M

et
ho

d 
- 

de
fle

ct
og

ra
ph

s 

 
 

 
 

 
7.

8%
 

 
17

.2
5%

 
 

 
U

pp
er

 q
ua

rt
ile

 fi
gu

re
 

m
or

e 
re

al
is

tic
 th

an
 

th
e 

C
VI

 fi
gu

re
. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PS
A

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

[D
av

id
 C

oo
pe

r/B
ob

 S
to

ck
] 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

     

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 2



In
di

ca
to

r D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

20
02

/0
3 

 
20

03
/0

4 
20

04
/0

5 
20

05
/0

6 
20

06
/0

7 
 

[L
ea

d 
O

ffi
ce

r]
 

R
ef

. N
o.

C
PA

 
R

PI
 

LP
SA

 
A

ct
ua

l 
To

p 
Q

 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

ct
ua

l 
 

Ta
rg

et
s

C
om

m
en

ts
 

 a)
 C

on
di

tio
n 

of
 n

on
-

pr
in

ci
pa

l r
oa

ds
. 

B
VP

I 9
7

Ye
s 

 
 

15
.4

9%
 

8.
73

%
 

16
.2

0%
 

14
.2

4%
 

13
.9

%
 

13
.5

%
 

13
.2

%
A

ch
ie

ve
m

en
t o

f 
ta

rg
et

s 
de

pe
nd

en
t o

n 
le

ve
l o

f C
ap

ita
l 

al
lo

ca
tio

ns
. 

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f t
he

 
cl

as
si

fie
d 

ne
tw

or
k 

(B
&

C
 

ro
ad

s 
in

 n
ee

d 
of

 m
aj

or
 

st
re

ng
th

en
in

g.
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
ee

d 
to

 c
om

m
it 

ad
di

tio
na

l r
es

ou
rc

es
 

to
 fo

ot
w

ay
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 li
m

its
 

th
e 

sc
op

e 
fo

r m
or

e 
ra

di
ca

l i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

on
 c

ar
ria

ge
w

ay
s.

 O
ur

 
ye

ar
 e

nd
 re

su
lt 

is
 

be
tte

r t
ha

n 
th

e 
A

ll 
En

gl
an

d 
N

at
io

na
l 

av
er

ag
e 

of
 1

8.
5%

. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

b)
 C

on
di

tio
n 

of
 

un
cl

as
si

fie
d 

ro
ad

s 
 

 
 

 
11

.8
9%

 
10

.1
5%

 
12

.5
0%

 
11

.5
3%

 
11

.2
%

 
10

.9
%

 
10

.7
%

W
e 

ai
m

 to
 b

e 
am

on
gs

t t
he

 b
es

t A
ll 

En
gl

an
d 

au
th

or
iti

es
 

by
 2

00
6.

 
[D

av
id

 C
oo

pe
r/B

ob
 S

to
ck

] 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f s
tr

ee
t 

la
m

ps
 n

ot
 w

or
ki

ng
 a

s 
pl

an
ne

d.
 (A

t a
ny

 o
ne

 ti
m

e 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

ye
ar

.) 

EX
 - 

B
VP

I 9
8

 
 

 
1.

10
%

 
N

/A
 

1.
09

%
 

1.
07

%
 

1.
04

%
 

1.
02

%
 

1.
00

%
N

at
ur

e 
of

 in
di

ca
to

r 
m

ea
ns

 th
at

 o
nl

y 
gr

ad
ua

l p
ro

gr
es

s 
ca

n 
be

 m
ad

e 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

cu
rr

en
t g

oo
d 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

. 

Page 3



In
di

ca
to

r D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

20
02

/0
3 

 
20

03
/0

4 
20

04
/0

5 
20

05
/0

6 
20

06
/0

7 
 

[L
ea

d 
O

ffi
ce

r]
 

R
ef

. N
o.

C
PA

 
R

PI
 

LP
SA

 
A

ct
ua

l 
To

p 
Q

 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

ct
ua

l 
 

Ta
rg

et
s

C
om

m
en

ts
 

[B
ob

 S
te

ve
ns

on
 / 

D
av

id
 

C
oo

pe
r]

 
  

LP
I 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

R
oa

d 
sa

fe
ty

. 
B

VP
I 9

9
 

 
Ye

s 
 

 
20

03
 

20
03

 
20

04
 

20
05

 
20

06
 

 

N
um

be
r o

f c
as

ua
lti

es
 p

er
 

10
0,

00
0 

po
pu

la
tio

n:
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

(a
) K

ill
ed

/s
er

io
us

ly
 in

ju
re

d 
(K

SI
). 

 
 

 
 

36
 

 
52

 
51

 
50

 
48

 
46

 
W

hi
ls

t  
ta

rg
et

s 
ha

ve
 

be
en

 m
et

 in
 s

om
e 

of
 

th
e 

ca
te

go
rie

s 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

a 
fe

w
 th

at
 a

re
 n

ot
 

on
 tr

ac
k.

 
(b

) S
lig

ht
 in

ju
rie

s.
 

PS
A 

 
 

 
46

4 
 

44
0 

47
7 

43
6 

43
2 

42
8 

A
s 

pa
rt

 o
f R

M
B

C
’s

 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
to

 th
e 

 
S.

Yo
rk

s 
ca

su
al

ty
 

R
oa

d 
us

er
 ty

pe
s:

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
re

du
ct

io
n 

ta
rg

et
s 

w
e 

ar
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

D
fT

 a
nd

 th
ei

r 
co

ns
ul

ta
nt

s 
to

 
ad

dr
es

s 
th

e 
 

(a
) P

ed
es

tr
ia

ns
 to

ta
l. 

   
 

 
 

 
60

 
 

72
 

61
 

 
 

re
la

tiv
el

y 
po

or
 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 in
 2

00
3.

 
K

ill
ed

/s
er

io
us

ly
 in

ju
re

d.
 

 
 

 
 

11
 

11
 

16
 

9 
16

 
15

 
14

 
Th

is
 w

or
k 

ha
s 

pr
od

uc
ed

 a
n 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t p

la
n 

Sl
ig

ht
 in

ju
rie

s.
 

 
 

 
 

49
 

38
 

56
 

52
 

55
 

55
 

54
 

th
at

 w
ill

 b
e 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

fo
rt

hw
ith

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
br

in
g 

th
e 

ac
tu

al
 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 b
ac

k 
on

 
tr

ac
k.

 

Page 4



In
di

ca
to

r D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

20
02

/0
3 

 
20

03
/0

4 
20

04
/0

5 
20

05
/0

6 
20

06
/0

7 
 

[L
ea

d 
O

ffi
ce

r]
 

R
ef

. N
o.

C
PA

 
R

PI
 

LP
SA

 
A

ct
ua

l 
To

p 
Q

 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

ct
ua

l 
 

Ta
rg

et
s

C
om

m
en

ts
 

(b
)P

ed
al

 c
yc

lis
ts

. 
 

 
 

 
18

 
 

27
 

23
 

 
 

Th
e 

ta
rg

et
s 

ha
ve

 
be

en
 s

et
 to

 b
rin

g 
al

l 
ca

te
go

rie
s 

in
lin

e 
w

ith
  

K
ill

ed
/s

er
io

us
ly

 in
ju

re
d.

 
 

 
 

 
0 

3 
4 

3 
3 

3 
3 

ac
ci

de
nt

 re
du

ct
io

n 
st

ra
te

gy
. 

Sl
ig

ht
 in

ju
rie

s.
 

 
 

 
 

18
 

21
 

23
 

20
 

23
 

22
 

22
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

(c
) T

w
o 

w
he

el
ed

 m
ot

or
 

ve
hi

cl
e 

us
er

s.
 

 
 

 
 

36
 

 
23

 
  31
 

 
 

 

K
ill

ed
/s

er
io

us
ly

 in
ju

re
d.

 
 

 
 

 
7 

8 
6 

8 
6 

6 
5 

 

Sl
ig

ht
 in

ju
rie

s.
 

 
 

 
 

29
 

26
 

17
 

23
 

17
 

17
 

17
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

(d
) C

ar
 u

se
rs

. 
 

 
 

 
34

6 
 

32
0 

38
2 

 
 

 
 

K
ill

ed
/s

er
io

us
ly

 in
ju

re
d.

 
   

 
 

 
 

17
 

18
 

23
 

30
 

22
 

21
 

20
 

W
he

re
 a

cc
id

en
ts

 
ha

ve
 o

cc
ur

re
d,

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

id
en

tif
ie

s 
ar

ea
s 

of
 c

on
ce

rn
 a

nd
 

w
ill

 d
ev

el
op

 lo
ca

l 
sa

fe
ty

 s
ch

em
es

 to
 

ad
dr

es
s 

th
e 

is
su

es
. 

Sl
ig

ht
 in

ju
rie

s.
 

 
 

 
 

32
9 

26
0 

29
7 

35
2 

29
4 

29
1 

28
9 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 5



In
di

ca
to

r D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

20
02

/0
3 

 
20

03
/0

4 
20

04
/0

5 
20

05
/0

6 
20

06
/0

7 
 

[L
ea

d 
O

ffi
ce

r]
 

R
ef

. N
o.

C
PA

 
R

PI
 

LP
SA

 
A

ct
ua

l 
To

p 
Q

 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

ct
ua

l 
 

Ta
rg

et
s

C
om

m
en

ts
 

(e
) O

th
er

 v
eh

ic
le

 u
se

rs
. 

 
 

 
 

47
 

 
50

 
32

 
 

 
 

 

K
ill

ed
/s

er
io

us
ly

 in
ju

re
d.

 
 

 
 

 
1 

2 
3 

1 
  

3 
3 

3 
 

Sl
ig

ht
 in

ju
rie

s.
 

 
 

 
 

46
 

28
 

47
 

31
 

47
 

46
 

46
 

 

[D
av

id
 J

am
es

] [
B

re
nt

 
Sh

ar
p]

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
o 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
K

SI
, o

n 
th

e 
ro

ad
s 

of
 R

ot
he

rh
am

, a
s 

m
ea

su
re

d 
by

 S
TA

TS
 1

9.
  

LP
SA

 
 

 
 

 
 

20
03

 
20

03
 

20
04

 
20

05
 

20
06

A
ct

ua
l t

hi
s 

ye
ar

 is
 

hi
gh

er
 th

an
 la

st
 y

ea
rs

 
ou

t t
ur

n.
 T

he
 tr

en
d 

ho
w

ev
er

, i
s 

st
ill

 
do

w
nw

ar
d.

 
[D

av
id

 J
am

es
] B

re
nt

 
Sh

ar
p]

 
B

V 
99

 
 

 
 

 
 

13
0 

12
7 

12
5 

11
3 

10
8 

St
re

tc
h 

Ta
rg

et
 fo

r 
05

/0
6 

re
fle

ct
s 

LP
SA

 
gr

an
t. 

 
Th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f s

er
io

us
 

ca
su

al
tie

s 
pe

r 1
,0

00
,0

00
 

ki
lo

m
et

re
 tr

av
el

le
d 

by
 a

 
ve

hi
cl

e 
on

 p
rin

ci
pa

l 
ro

ad
s.

 

P2
b 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
0.

15
3 

 
0.

20
4 

0.
18

5 
0.

19
5 

0.
18

7 
0.

17
8 

A
s 

ab
ov

e.
 

 
LP

I 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

[D
av

id
 J

am
es

] B
re

nt
 

Sh
ar

p]
 

    

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 6



In
di

ca
to

r D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

20
02

/0
3 

 
20

03
/0

4 
20

04
/0

5 
20

05
/0

6 
20

06
/0

7 
 

[L
ea

d 
O

ffi
ce

r]
 

R
ef

. N
o.

C
PA

 
R

PI
 

LP
SA

 
A

ct
ua

l 
To

p 
Q

 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

ct
ua

l 
 

Ta
rg

et
s

C
om

m
en

ts
 

 N
EW

 –
 N

um
be

r o
f r

oa
d 

ac
ci

de
nt

 c
as

ua
lti

es
 

br
ok

en
 d

ow
n 

by
 n

at
ur

e 
of

 
ca

su
al

tie
s.

 
 A

ll 
(K

SI
) 

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
(K

SI
) 

 A
ll 

Sl
ig

ht
 In

ju
rie

s 
   [B

re
nt

 S
ha

rp
 D

av
id

 
Ja

m
es

] 
  

B
V 

99
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

20
03

 
    13

0 
 29

 
 11

04
 

20
03

 
    12

7 
 16

 
 11

91
 

 

20
04

 
    12

5 
 28

 
 10

94
 

20
05

 
    11

3 
 26

 
 10

83
  

20
06

 
    10

8 
 24

 
 10

62
 

K
SI

 c
as

ua
lti

es
 in

 b
ot

h 
ca

te
go

rie
s 

ha
ve

 ri
se

n 
fr

om
 th

e 
al

l t
im

e 
lo

w
 

la
st

 y
ea

r. 
H

ow
ev

er
, 

th
e 

ov
er

al
l t

re
nd

 is
 

st
ill

 d
ow

nw
ar

ds
 a

nd
 

ap
pe

ar
s 

to
 b

e 
on

 
co

ur
se

 to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
re

du
ct

io
n 

at
 

th
is

 p
oi

nt
 in

 th
e 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t’s

 1
0 

ye
ar

 
tr

an
sp

or
t p

la
n.

 C
hi

ld
 

K
SI

 c
as

ua
lti

es
 h

av
e 

al
re

ad
y 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 
m

or
e 

th
an

 th
e 

50
%

 
re

du
ct

io
n 

ta
rg

et
 e

ve
n 

th
ou

gh
 th

er
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
 s

lig
ht

 ri
se

 in
 

th
is

 y
ea

rs
 fi

gu
re

s.
 

N
um

be
r o

f d
ay

s 
of

 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 tr
af

fic
 c

on
tr

ol
s 

or
 ro

ad
 c

lo
su

re
 o

n 
tr

af
fic

 
se

ns
iti

ve
 ro

ad
s 

ca
us

ed
 b

y 
ro

ad
 w

or
ks

 p
er

 k
ilo

m
et

re
 

of
 tr

af
fic

 s
en

si
tiv

e 
ro

ad
s.

 

B
VP

I 
10

0 
 

 
 

0 
0.

17
 

0.
02

 
0 

0.
02

 
0.

02
 

0.
02

Th
e 

ta
rg

et
s 

ha
ve

 
be

en
 s

et
 a

t 0
.0

2 
to

 
al

lo
w

 fo
r 

em
er

ge
nc

ie
s.

 S
ho

ul
d 

St
at

ut
or

y 
U

nd
er

ta
ke

r’s
 u

se
 o

f 
su

ch
 c

on
tr

ol
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 th

en
 th

e 
ta

rg
et

 w
ou

ld
 

in
ev

ita
bl

y 
in

cr
ea

se
. 

Th
is

 P
I i

s 
pe

rf
or

m
in

g 
be

tte
r t

ha
n 

th
e 

A
ll 

Page 7



In
di

ca
to

r D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

20
02

/0
3 

 
20

03
/0

4 
20

04
/0

5 
20

05
/0

6 
20

06
/0

7 
 

[L
ea

d 
O

ffi
ce

r]
 

R
ef

. N
o.

C
PA

 
R

PI
 

LP
SA

 
A

ct
ua

l 
To

p 
Q

 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

ct
ua

l 
 

Ta
rg

et
s

C
om

m
en

ts
 

En
gl

an
d 

re
su

lts
. 

[D
av

id
 C

oo
pe

r]
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

D
am

ag
e 

to
 ro

ad
s 

an
d 

pa
ve

m
en

ts
. T

he
 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f r
ep

or
te

d 
da

ng
er

ou
s 

de
fe

ct
s 

(e
.g

. 
po

th
ol

es
) i

n 
ro

ad
s 

an
d 

fo
ot

w
ay

s 
th

at
 h

av
e 

be
en

 
re

pa
ire

d 
w

ith
in

 2
4 

ho
ur

s.
 

EX
 - 

B
VP

I 
10

5 

 
 

 
97

.9
0%

 
N

/A
 

99
%

 
99

.7
%

 
99

.5
%

 
99

.5
%

 
99

.5
%

 
M

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 ta

rg
et

s 
at

 
99

.5
%

 a
s 

th
is

 is
 a

 
ch

al
le

ng
in

g 
ta

rg
et

.  
W

e 
ha

ve
 d

on
e 

ex
ce

pt
io

na
lly

 w
el

l 
th

is
 y

ea
r w

ith
 o

ur
 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 o
f 9

9.
7%

 
[A

nd
y 

Sh
aw

] 
 

LP
I 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f n
ew

 h
om

es
 

bu
ilt

 o
n 

pr
ev

io
us

ly
 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
la

nd
. 

B
VP

I 
10

6 
 

 
 

58
.5

4%
 

91
.6

8%
 

60
%

 
53

%
 

60
%

 
60

%
 

60
%

C
ri

tic
al

 a
re

as
: 

ou
ts

ta
nd

in
g 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
pe

rm
is

si
on

s o
n 

gr
ee

nf
ie

ld
 si

te
s s

til
l 

to
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 w
ill

 
co

nt
in

ue
 to

 in
flu

en
ce

 
th

e 
ta

rg
et

 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
Pl

an
s:

 c
om

pl
et

io
n 

of
 

th
e 

U
rb

an
 P

ot
en

tia
l 

St
ud

y 
an

d 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

ho
us

in
g 

po
lic

ie
s i

n 
th

e 
Lo

ca
l 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Fr

am
ew

or
k 

w
ill

 
al

lo
w

 a
 re

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

Page 8



In
di

ca
to

r D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

20
02

/0
3 

 
20

03
/0

4 
20

04
/0

5 
20

05
/0

6 
20

06
/0

7 
 

[L
ea

d 
O

ffi
ce

r]
 

R
ef

. N
o.

C
PA

 
R

PI
 

LP
SA

 
A

ct
ua

l 
To

p 
Q

 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

ct
ua

l 
 

Ta
rg

et
s

C
om

m
en

ts
 

of
 a

llo
ca

tio
ns

 

 
D

 1
1 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

[A
la

n 
M

itc
he

ll]
 [S

im
on

 
H

ar
tle

y]
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 c
os

t p
er

 h
ea

d 
of

 
po

pu
la

tio
n.

 
B

VP
I 

10
7 

 
To

 b
e 

an
 L

PI
 

 

 
 

 
£5

.5
9 

£7
.7

4 
£6

.1
0 

 
 

 
 

[K
ar

l B
at

te
rs

by
] [

A
nd

re
w

 
K

id
de

r]
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

%
 o

f p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 

in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 th

e 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t’s
 n

ew
 

co
nt

ro
l t

ar
ge

ts
 to

 
de

te
rm

in
e:

 

B
VP

I 
10

9 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
Ye

s 
(C

E)
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 a
ga

in
st

 
al

l 3
 ta

rg
et

s 
ha

s 
im

pr
ov

ed
 o

ve
r 

20
02

/0
3.

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
ag

ai
ns

t l
oc

al
 ta

rg
et

s 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

in
 

2 
ou

t 3
 c

at
eg

or
ie

s 
th

is
 a

ls
o 

ap
pl

ie
s 

to
 

up
pe

r q
ua

rt
ile

s.
 T

he
 

se
t t

ar
ge

ts
 re

fle
ct

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
ils

 c
om

m
itm

en
t 

to
 a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 N
at

io
na

l 
ta

rg
et

s 
in

 a
ll 

ca
te

go
rie

s 
by

 2
00

6.
 

 
PS

A 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

60
%

 o
f m

aj
or

 a
pp

s 
in

 1
3 

w
ee

ks
. 

 
 

 
 

51
.5

6%
 

55
.0

0%
 

57
%

 
55

.2
6%

 
59

%
 

 
61

%
 

63
%

 

Page 9



In
di

ca
to

r D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

20
02

/0
3 

 
20

03
/0

4 
20

04
/0

5 
20

05
/0

6 
20

06
/0

7 
 

[L
ea

d 
O

ffi
ce

r]
 

R
ef

. N
o.

C
PA

 
R

PI
 

LP
SA

 
A

ct
ua

l 
To

p 
Q

 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

ct
ua

l 
 

Ta
rg

et
s

C
om

m
en

ts
 

65
%

 o
f m

in
or

 a
pp

s 
in

 8
 

w
ee

ks
 

 
 

 
 

49
.6

5%
 

63
.6

6%
 

55
%

 
54

.5
0%

 
58

%
 

65
%

 
67

%
 

80
%

 o
f o

th
er

 a
pp

s 
in

 8
 

w
ee

ks
. 

 
 

 
 

76
.2

4%
 

80
.5

1%
 

75
%

 
79

.7
7%

 
80

%
 

82
%

 
84

%
 

[K
ar

l B
at

te
rs

by
] 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f a
pp

lic
an

t 
an

d 
th

os
e 

co
m

m
en

tin
g 

on
 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 
sa

tis
fie

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
. 

B
VP

I 
11

1 
Ye

s 
 

 
00

/0
1 

77
%

 
N

/A
 

81
%

 
79

.2
%

 
 

 
82

%
 

C
us

to
m

er
 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t C
on

tr
ol

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
ha

s 
im

pr
ov

ed
 

si
nc

e 
th

e 
la

st
 s

ur
ve

y.
 

O
ur

 re
su

lt 
w

as
 o

nl
y 

1.
8%

 le
ss

 th
an

 th
e 

ta
rg

et
 a

nd
 re

pr
es

en
ts

 
a 

hi
gh

 le
ve

l o
f 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e.

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

ai
m

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

co
nt

in
uo

us
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t a

nd
 th

is
 

is
 re

fle
ct

ed
 in

 th
e 

ta
rg

et
 s

et
tin

g.
  

[K
ar

l B
at

te
rs

by
] A

la
n 

Pl
at

t 
to

 re
po

rt
 

        

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 c
ar

ry
 

ou
t l

oc
al

 a
nn

ua
l 

su
rv

ey
s.

 

Page 10



In
di

ca
to

r D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

20
02

/0
3 

 
20

03
/0

4 
20

04
/0

5 
20

05
/0

6 
20

06
/0

7 
 

[L
ea

d 
O

ffi
ce

r]
 

R
ef

. N
o.

C
PA

 
R

PI
 

LP
SA

 
A

ct
ua

l 
To

p 
Q

 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

ct
ua

l 
 

Ta
rg

et
s

C
om

m
en

ts
 

  Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
au

th
or

ity
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 o
pe

n 
to

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 in

 w
hi

ch
 a

ll 
pu

bl
ic

 a
re

as
 a

re
 s

ui
ta

bl
e 

fo
r a

nd
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
to

 
di

sa
bl

ed
 p

eo
pl

e.
 

B
VP

I 
15

6 
Ye

s 
 

 
0 

56
.5

0%
 

10
%

 
0%

 
10

%
 

15
%

 
20

%
 

A 
on

e 
of

f f
un

di
ng

 
al

lo
ca

tio
n 

ha
s 

be
en

 
m

ad
e 

fo
r a

cc
es

s 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 
20

04
/0

5.
 

 Ta
ki

ng
 a

cc
ou

nt
 o

f t
he

 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

al
lo

ca
te

d,
 a

 
ne

w
 ta

rg
et

 o
f 1

0%
 h

as
 

be
en

 d
et

er
m

in
ed

. A
n 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 fo

r m
ee

tin
g 

th
e 

ta
rg

et
 is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 

be
in

g 
de

ve
lo

pe
d.

 
 Th

e 
re

ne
w

al
 o

f t
he

 
C

ou
nc

il's
 p

ro
pe

rty
 

po
rtf

ol
io

 o
ve

r t
he

 
co

m
in

g 
ye

ar
s 

w
ill 

pr
ov

id
e 

a 
un

iq
ue

 
op

po
rtu

ni
ty

 in
 th

e 
m

ed
iu

m
 to

 lo
ng

 te
rm

 to
 

pr
ov

id
e 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il's

 
se

rv
ic

es
 fr

om
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 
w

hi
ch

 a
re

 fa
r m

or
e 

in
cl

us
iv

el
y 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 

th
an

 re
qu

ire
d 

by
 th

e 
in

di
ca

to
r o

r c
ou

ld
 

re
as

on
ab

ly
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 b

y 
al

te
rin

g 
ex

is
tin

g 
bu

ild
in

gs
. A

s 
th

e 
ne

w
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 w
ill 

Page 11



In
di

ca
to

r D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

20
02

/0
3 

 
20

03
/0

4 
20

04
/0

5 
20

05
/0

6 
20

06
/0

7 
 

[L
ea

d 
O

ffi
ce

r]
 

R
ef

. N
o.

C
PA

 
R

PI
 

LP
SA

 
A

ct
ua

l 
To

p 
Q

 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

ct
ua

l 
 

Ta
rg

et
s

C
om

m
en

ts
 

be
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 m
ee

t a
t 

le
as

t t
he

 s
ta

nd
ar

d 
se

t 
ou

t i
n 

Bu
ild

in
g 

R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 A
pp

ro
ve

d 
D

oc
um

en
t M

 'A
cc

es
s 

to
 

an
d 

us
e 

of
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

', 
th

ey
 w

ill 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 

th
e 

in
di

ca
to

r. 
 A 

ta
rg

et
 o

f s
ix

 m
on

th
s 

af
te

r t
he

 a
do

pt
io

n 
of

 
th

e 
C

or
po

ra
te

 A
cc

es
s 

St
ra

te
gy

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
se

t 
fo

r d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f t

he
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
Ac

tio
n 

Pl
an

s,
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 c
o-

or
di

na
tio

n 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 
se

rv
ic

e 
ar

ea
s'

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

s 
w

he
re

 a
pp

lic
ab

le
. 

Th
es

e 
w

ill 
in

cl
ud

e 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

s 
fo

r 
20

05
/0

6 
on

w
ar

ds
 to

 
im

pr
ov

e 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il's
 p

ub
lic

 
bu

ild
in

gs
 n

ot
 a

ffe
ct

ed
 

by
 th

e 
re

ne
w

al
 o

f t
he

 
pr

op
er

ty
 p

or
tfo

lio
 a

s 
th

ey
 a

re
 id

en
tif

ie
d.

 T
he

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 w

ill 
be

 in
 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 th

e 
la

te
st

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
au

th
or

ita
tiv

e 
de

si
gn

 
st

an
da

rd
s,

 in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 

Page 12



In
di

ca
to

r D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

20
02

/0
3 

 
20

03
/0

4 
20

04
/0

5 
20

05
/0

6 
20

06
/0

7 
 

[L
ea

d 
O

ffi
ce

r]
 

R
ef

. N
o.

C
PA

 
R

PI
 

LP
SA

 
A

ct
ua

l 
To

p 
Q

 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

ct
ua

l 
 

Ta
rg

et
s

C
om

m
en

ts
 

di
sa

bl
ed

 p
eo

pl
e'

s 
pr

io
rit

ie
s,

 a
nd

 u
til

is
e 

th
e 

co
rp

or
at

e 
pr

em
is

es
 

ac
ce

ss
 fu

nd
, s

ub
je

ct
 to

 
ap

pr
ov

al
 b

y 
M

em
be

rs
.  

 
 

AC
- 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A1

b 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
C

 5
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

[A
rn

ol
d 

M
ur

ra
y]

 [B
ria

n 
M

es
si

de
r]

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

cr
os

si
ng

s 
w

ith
 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
fo

r d
is

ab
le

d 
pe

op
le

. 

B
VP

I 
16

5 
Ye

s 
 

 
97

%
 

95
%

 
97

%
 

97
%

 
10

0%
 

10
0%

 
10

0%
Si

te
s 

at
 B

ra
m

el
y 

an
d 

M
al

by
 w

ill
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 th
is

 y
ea

r 
an

d 
th

is
 w

ill
 c

om
pl

et
e 

th
e 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

of
 

w
or

ks
. 

[D
av

e 
Ja

m
es

] [
M

ic
k 

Po
w

el
l] 

    

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f t
ot

al
 

le
ng

th
s 

of
 fo

ot
pa

th
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r r
ig

ht
s 

of
 w

ay
 w

hi
ch

 
w

er
e 

ea
sy

 to
 u

se
 b

y 
m

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 p
ub

lic
. 

B
VP

I 
17

8 
 

 
 

82
.5

0%
 

77
.6

0%
 

85
%

 
93

.4
%

 
93

.6
%

 
93

.8
%

 
94

%
It 

w
ill

 b
e 

a 
ch

al
le

ng
e 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
on

 c
ur

re
nt

 
hi

gh
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

le
ve

ls
. 

Page 13



In
di

ca
to

r D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

20
02

/0
3 

 
20

03
/0

4 
20

04
/0

5 
20

05
/0

6 
20

06
/0

7 
 

[L
ea

d 
O

ffi
ce

r]
 

R
ef

. N
o.

C
PA

 
R

PI
 

LP
SA

 
A

ct
ua

l 
To

p 
Q

 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

ct
ua

l 
 

Ta
rg

et
s

C
om

m
en

ts
 

[D
av

id
 C

oo
pe

r]
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
se

ar
ch

es
 c

ar
rie

d 
ou

t i
n 

10
 w

or
ki

ng
 d

ay
s.

 

B
V 

17
9

 
 

 
98

.1
0%

 
99

.9
4%

 
10

0%
 

   
 1

00
%

 
  1

00
%

 
10

0%
 

10
0%

R
ot

he
rh

am
 is

 o
ne

 o
f 

th
e 

be
st

 p
er

fo
rm

in
g 

A
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
C

ou
nt

ry
 o

n 
la

nd
 

se
ar

ch
es

. O
ur

 
av

er
ag

e 
tu

rn
ar

ou
nd

 
tim

e 
is

 6
.5

 w
or

ki
ng

 
da

ys
. W

e 
ai

m
 to

 
im

pr
ov

e 
on

 th
is

 ti
m

e 
w

he
n 

w
e 

in
tr

od
uc

e 
N

LI
S 

le
ve

l I
II 

 
A

C
-G

1
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

[K
ar

l B
at

te
rs

by
/P

hi
l 

R
ey

nd
er

s]
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

a)
 T

he
 e

ne
rg

y 
co

ns
um

pt
io

n/
m

² o
f l

oc
al

 
au

th
or

ity
 o

pe
ra

tio
na

l 
pr

op
er

ty
, c

om
pa

re
d 

w
ith

 
co

m
pa

ra
bl

e 
bu

ild
in

gs
 in

 
th

e 
U

K
 a

s 
a 

w
ho

le
. 

B
V 

18
0

 
 

 
87

%
 

        95
%

 

85
%

 
        78

%
 

83
%

 
         

90
%

 

10
3%

 
        16

1%
 

 

98
%

 
        15

3%
 

93
%

 
        

14
5%

 

88
%

 
        13

8%
 

 

Fo
ss

il 
fu

el
 

co
ns

um
pt

io
n 

 Th
e 

ris
e 

in
 

co
ns

um
pt

io
n 

is
 d

ue
 

to
 a

n 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 th
e 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
be

in
g 

m
on

ito
re

d 
 El

ec
tr

ic
al

 
co

ns
um

pt
io

n 
b)

 A
ve

ra
ge

 la
m

p 
ci

rc
ui

t 
w

at
ta

ge
 c

om
pa

re
d 

w
ith

 
av

er
ag

e 
co

ns
um

pt
io

n/
 

w
at

ta
ge

 b
y 

lo
ca

l 

 
 

 
 

38
5 

kw
h/

 
un

it/
yr

 
 

 
37

8 
kw

h/
un

it 
/y

r 

 
 

N
o 

ta
rg

et
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
se

t, 
fu

rt
he

r d
ef

in
iti

on
 

is
 re

qu
ire

d 
fr

om
 th

e 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t. 

Page 14



In
di

ca
to

r D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

20
02

/0
3 

 
20

03
/0

4 
20

04
/0

5 
20

05
/0

6 
20

06
/0

7 
 

[L
ea

d 
O

ffi
ce

r]
 

R
ef

. N
o.

C
PA

 
R

PI
 

LP
SA

 
A

ct
ua

l 
To

p 
Q

 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

ct
ua

l 
 

Ta
rg

et
s

C
om

m
en

ts
 

au
th

or
iti

es
 in

 th
e 

U
K

. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

[A
rn

ol
d 

M
ur

ra
y/

D
av

id
 

R
ho

de
s]

 [D
av

id
 

C
oo

pe
r/B

ob
 S

te
ve

ns
on

] 
        

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

R
oa

ds
 n

ot
 n

ee
di

ng
 m

aj
or

 
re

pa
ir.

 
B

V 
18

6
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pr
in

ci
pa

l 
 

 
 

 
62

.5
7 

11
2.

09
5 

59
.4

2 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
on

 P
rin

ci
pa

l 
 

 
 

 
34

6.
66

 
39

7.
35

 
30

4.
36

 
 

 
 

 

[D
av

id
 C

oo
pe

r]
 [B

ob
 

St
oc

k]
 

  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 15



In
di

ca
to

r D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

20
02

/0
3 

 
20

03
/0

4 
20

04
/0

5 
20

05
/0

6 
20

06
/0

7 
 

[L
ea

d 
O

ffi
ce

r]
 

R
ef

. N
o.

C
PA

 
R

PI
 

LP
SA

 
A

ct
ua

l 
To

p 
Q

 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

ct
ua

l 
 

Ta
rg

et
s

C
om

m
en

ts
 

 C
on

di
tio

n 
of

 fo
ot

w
ay

. 
B

V 
18

7
 

 
 

42
.0

9%
 

14
.5

6%
 

40
%

 
42

.9
6%

 
40

%
 

38
%

 
36

%
Sc

he
m

es
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
ta

rg
et

ed
 to

 c
la

ss
 1

 
an

d 
2 

fo
ot

w
ay

s 
to

 
ac

hi
ev

e 
ta

rg
et

s.
 

B
us

ie
r f

oo
tw

ay
s 

ac
co

un
t f

or
 th

e 
sl

ig
ht

 
fa

ll 
in

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

. 
[D

av
id

 C
oo

pe
r]

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
M

an
y 

of
 th

e 
fo

ot
w

ay
s 

co
ve

re
d 

ar
e 

in
 th

e 
to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
 a

re
as

 
So

m
e 

sc
he

m
es

 w
ill

 
be

 ta
rg

et
ed

 to
w

ar
ds

 
th

e 
fo

ot
w

ay
 

ca
te

go
rie

s 
su

rv
ey

ed
. 

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f d
ec

is
io

ns
 

de
le

ga
te

d 
to

 o
ffi

ce
rs

 a
s 

a 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f a

ll 
de

ci
si

on
s 

B
V 

18
8

 
 

 
82

%
 

N
/A

 
83

%
 

85
%

 
85

%
 

87
%

 
89

%
 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
ve

 
de

ci
de

d 
to

 re
ta

in
 th

is
 

PI
 a

s 
a 

lo
ca

l i
nd

ic
at

or
 

La
st

 y
ea

r w
e 

ex
ce

ed
 

th
e 

ta
r g

et
 o

f 8
3%

, t
hi

s 
w

as
 d

riv
en

 b
y 

th
e 

de
le

ga
tio

n 
sc

he
m

e 
ad

op
te

d 
in

 O
ct

 2
00

3.
 

N
ow

 th
e 

sc
he

m
e 

is
 in

 
pl

ac
e 

th
is

 in
di

ca
to

r 
w

ill
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

e 
to

 th
e 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
of

 B
V 

10
9 

in
vo

lv
in

g 
pl

an
ni

ng
 

de
ci

si
on

s.
   

[K
ar

l B
at

te
rs

by
] 

  

To
 b

e 
an

 L
PI

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 16



In
di

ca
to

r D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

20
02

/0
3 

 
20

03
/0

4 
20

04
/0

5 
20

05
/0

6 
20

06
/0

7 
 

[L
ea

d 
O

ffi
ce

r]
 

R
ef

. N
o.

C
PA

 
R

PI
 

LP
SA

 
A

ct
ua

l 
To

p 
Q

 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

ct
ua

l 
 

Ta
rg

et
s

C
om

m
en

ts
 

  Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f a
pp

ea
ls

 
al

lo
w

ed
 a

ga
in

st
 th

e 
A

ut
ho

rit
y’

s 
de

ci
si

on
 to

 
re

fu
se

 
[K

ar
l B

at
te

rs
by

] 
                

B
V(

x1
)

N
ew

 
B

V
 

20
4 

 
 

 
 

 
33

%
 

 
30

%
 

28
%

 
26

%
 

24
%

 
Th

is
 is

 a
 n

ew
 P

I a
nd

 
is

 in
te

nd
ed

 to
 

m
ea

su
re

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 p

la
nn

in
g 

ap
pe

al
 

de
ci

si
on

s 
al

lo
w

ed
 

ag
ai

ns
t t

he
 

au
th

or
ity

’s
 d

ec
is

io
n 

to
 re

fu
se

. T
he

 
C

ou
nc

il 
is

 c
om

m
itt

ed
 

to
 s

us
ta

in
in

g 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

ap
pe

al
 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

.  
W

e 
aw

ai
t g

ui
da

nc
e 

fr
om

 
th

e 
O

D
PM

 re
ga

rd
in

g 
w

ha
t i

s 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 a
 

re
as

on
ab

le
 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

.  

Q
ua

lit
y 

fo
r s

er
vi

ce
 

ch
ec

kl
is

t (
Pl

an
ni

ng
). 

[K
ar

l B
at

te
rs

by
] 

B
V(

x2
)

N
ew

 
B

V
 

20
5 

 
 

 
 

 
 

1 
2 

2 
3 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ar
e 

co
m

m
itt

ed
 to

 th
e 

e:
go

ve
rn

m
en

t a
ge

nd
a 

an
d 

ai
m

s 
to

 b
e 

fu
lly

 
co

m
pl

ia
nt

 b
y 

20
05

, 
th

is
 is

 re
fle

ct
ed

 in
 o

ur
 

ta
rg

et
 s

et
tin

g.
 T

hi
s 

w
ill

 im
pr

ov
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

qu
al

ity
 fo

r t
he

 
cu

st
om

er
. 3

 p
oi

nt
s 

Page 17



In
di

ca
to

r D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

20
02

/0
3 

 
20

03
/0

4 
20

04
/0

5 
20

05
/0

6 
20

06
/0

7 
 

[L
ea

d 
O

ffi
ce

r]
 

R
ef

. N
o.

C
PA

 
R

PI
 

LP
SA

 
A

ct
ua

l 
To

p 
Q

 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

ct
ua

l 
 

Ta
rg

et
s

C
om

m
en

ts
 

ar
e 

th
e 

m
ax

im
um

 
aw

ar
d.

  
C

om
bi

ne
d 

de
po

si
ts

 o
f 

lit
te

r a
nd

 d
et

rit
us

. 
B

V 
19

9
 

 
 

 
N

/A
 

70
%

 
G

ov
t. 

m
in

im
um

 
ta

rg
et

 
 

(3
0%

 s
ite

s 
be

lo
w

 
ca

te
go

ry
 B

)
 

81
%

 
 

(1
9%

 s
ite

s 
be

lo
w

 
ca

te
go

ry
 B

)

82
%

 
 

(1
8%

 
si

te
s 

be
lo

w
 

ca
te

go
ry

 
B

) 

83
%

 
 

(1
7%

 
si

te
s 

be
lo

w
 

ca
te

go
ry

 
B

) 

84
%

 
 

(1
6%

 
si

te
s 

be
lo

w
 

ca
te

go
ry

 
B

) 

Th
is

 w
as

 a
 n

ew
 P

I f
or

 
20

03
/4

 a
nd

 o
ur

 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 w

as
 w

el
l 

ab
ov

e 
th

e 
G

ov
er

nm
en

ts
 

m
in

im
um

 ta
rg

et
. 

It 
is

 a
nt

ic
ip

at
ed

 th
at

 
ba

se
d 

on
 th

is
 y

ea
r’s

 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 w

e 
ca

n 
m

ak
e 

ye
ar

 o
n 

ye
ar

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
. 

D
et

rit
us

 is
 to

 re
ce

iv
e 

at
te

nt
io

n,
 th

is
 a

ffe
ct

s 
al

l a
re

as
 w

he
re

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ca
rr

y 
ou

t 
sw

ee
pi

ng
. 

[A
nd

y 
Sh

aw
/S

te
ve

 
W

ib
be

rly
] 

             

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 18



In
di

ca
to

r D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

20
02

/0
3 

 
20

03
/0

4 
20

04
/0

5 
20

05
/0

6 
20

06
/0

7 
 

[L
ea

d 
O

ffi
ce

r]
 

R
ef

. N
o.

C
PA

 
R

PI
 

LP
SA

 
A

ct
ua

l 
To

p 
Q

 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

ct
ua

l 
 

Ta
rg

et
s

C
om

m
en

ts
 

  Pl
an

-m
ak

in
g 

  a)
 

U
D

P 
ad

op
te

d 
an

d 
no

t 
ex

pi
re

d 
  b)

 W
ill

 a
 n

ew
 p

la
n 

be
 o

n 
de

po
si

t i
n 

3 
ye

ar
s 

  U
D

P 
U

ni
ta

r y
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Pl
an

 
LD

F 
Lo

ca
l D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Fr
am

ew
or

k.
 

LD
D

 L
oc

al
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

D
oc

um
en

ts
. 

 

B
V 

20
0

 
 

 
  a)

 N
o 

   b)
 Y

es
 

 
   a)

 N
o 

    b)
 Y

es
 

   a)
 N

o 
    b)

 Y
es

 

  a)
 N

o 
   b)

 Y
es

 

  a)
 N

o 
   b)

 Y
es

 

  a)
 Y

es
*

   b)
 Y

es
 

  N
ew

 L
D

F 
to

 b
e 

ad
op

te
d 

by
 

31
/0

3/
07

 
  Fr

om
 A

pr
il 

20
05

 
on

w
ar

ds
 a

 ro
lli

ng
 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

of
 

LD
D

's
 to

 b
e 

ad
op

te
d 

w
ith

in
 3

 
ye

ar
 c

yc
le

s 

[A
la

n 
M

itc
he

ll]
 [K

ar
l 

B
at

te
rs

by
] 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

N
et

 s
pe

nd
 p

er
 h

ea
d 

of
 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
on

 s
tr

ee
t 

cl
ea

ni
ng

. 

J3
 

 
 

 
£4

.9
8 

 
£5

.8
1 

 
£5

.9
8 

£6
.1

6 
£6

.3
4 

Ta
rg

et
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

3%
 

ye
ar

 o
n 

ye
ar

 g
ro

w
th

 
in

 fu
nd

in
g.

 
 

LP
I 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

[A
nd

y 
Sh

aw
] 

    

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 19



In
di

ca
to

r D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

20
02

/0
3 

 
20

03
/0

4 
20

04
/0

5 
20

05
/0

6 
20

06
/0

7 
 

[L
ea

d 
O

ffi
ce

r]
 

R
ef

. N
o.

C
PA

 
R

PI
 

LP
SA

 
A

ct
ua

l 
To

p 
Q

 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

ct
ua

l 
 

Ta
rg

et
s

C
om

m
en

ts
 

  Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
hi

gh
w

ay
s 

th
at

 a
re

 e
ith

er
 

of
 a

 h
ig

h 
or

 a
cc

ep
ta

bl
e 

st
an

da
rd

 o
f c

le
an

lin
es

s.
 

AC
- 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

ct
ua

ls
 in

 2
00

3/
04

 
m

ay
 h

av
e 

be
en

 
ex

ce
pt

io
na

lly
 h

ig
h 

du
e 

to
 c

on
ce

nt
ra

tio
n 

 
 

E1
 

 
 

 
94

.6
0%

 
 

95
%

 
97

%
 

96
.0

%
 

96
.5

%
 

97
.0

%
 

of
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

on
 li

tte
r 

pi
ck

in
g 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
 

LP
I 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
St

re
et

pr
id

e 
la

un
ch

. 
Se

en
B

V 
89

 - 
C

us
to

m
er

 
Sa

tis
fa

ct
io

n 
su

rv
ey

 
[A

nd
y 

Sh
aw

] 
      

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

W
e 

ar
e 

ac
hi

ev
in

g 
hi

gh
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 b

ut
 

st
ill

 a
im

 to
 p

ro
du

ce
 a

 
cl

ea
ne

r B
or

ou
gh

 a
s 

re
fle

ct
ed

 in
 o

ur
 

ta
rg

et
s.

  

Th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

tim
e 

ta
ke

n 
to

 
re

m
ov

e 
fly

-ti
ps

 (d
ay

s)
. 

AC
- 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Th

e 
ta

rg
et

 o
f 1

 d
ay

 
w

ill
 b

e 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
as

  
 

E2
 

 
 

 
0.

84
 

 
1 

0.
87

 
1 

1 
1 

th
is

 s
til

l c
ha

lle
ng

es
 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e,

 ta
ki

ng
 in

  
 

D
 1

3 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
 th

e 
fa

ct
 

th
at

 it
 is

 a
n 

 
 

LP
I 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
in

cr
ea

si
ng

 p
ro

bl
em

 

[A
nd

y 
Sh

aw
] 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

N
B

 
Fl

y 
Ti

pp
in

g 
R

ep
or

ts
: 

20
02

/0
3 

– 
12

49
 N

o.
 

20
03

/0
4 

- 2
68

8 
N

o.
 

20
04

/5
 - 

40
20

 N
o.

**
 

Page 20



In
di

ca
to

r D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

20
02

/0
3 

 
20

03
/0

4 
20

04
/0

5 
20

05
/0

6 
20

06
/0

7 
 

[L
ea

d 
O

ffi
ce

r]
 

R
ef

. N
o.

C
PA

 
R

PI
 

LP
SA

 
A

ct
ua

l 
To

p 
Q

 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

ct
ua

l 
 

Ta
rg

et
s

C
om

m
en

ts
 

**
ba

se
d 

on
 c

ur
re

nt
 

m
on

th
ly

 re
po

rt
s.

 O
ur

 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 is

 o
ne

 o
f 

th
e 

C
ou

nt
ry

’s
 b

es
t, 

bu
t w

e 
ar

e 
en

te
rin

g 
a 

N
at

io
na

l 
be

nc
hm

ar
ki

ng
 

ex
er

ci
se

 w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 

te
st

 u
s 

st
ill

 fu
rt

he
r. 

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

pp
ea

ls
 th

at
 

w
er

e 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

. 

F2
b 

 
 

 
25

%
 

 
33

%
 

30
.4

%
 

 
 

Th
is

 in
di

ca
to

r i
s 

re
pl

ac
ed

 b
y 

B
V 

20
4.

 

 
LP

I 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

[K
ar

l B
at

te
rs

by
] 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

La
nd

 S
ea

rc
h 

br
ea

kd
ow

n.
 

F6
b 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
LP

I 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f E
le

ct
ro

ni
c 

Se
ar

ch
es

 (N
LI

S)
 - 

£8
2 

fe
e.

 
 

 
 

 
2.

70
%

 
 

10
%

 
6.

4%
 

15
%

 
25

%
 

35
%

 
M

ov
e 

to
 N

LI
S 

Le
ve

l 3
 

Pr
oj

ec
te

d 
ef

fe
ct

. W
e 

fin
d 

th
at

 s
ol

ic
ito

rs
 a

re
 

as
ki

ng
 fo

r t
hi

s 
se

rv
ic

e.
 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f M
an

ua
l 

Se
ar

ch
es

 (N
on

-N
LI

S)
 -

£1
01

 fe
e.

 

 
 

 
 

69
.6

0%
 

 
60

%
 

63
.9

%
 

55
%

 
50

%
 

45
%

 
 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f L
LC

1 
O

nl
y 

Se
ar

ch
es

 - 
£6

 s
td

  f
ee

, £
4 

N
LI

S 
fe

e.
 

 
 

 
 

28
%

 
 

30
%

 
29

.7
%

 
30

%
 

25
%

 
20

%
 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 
Pe

rs
on

al
 S

ea
rc

he
s 

is
 

an
tic

ip
at

ed
. 

Page 21



In
di

ca
to

r D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

20
02

/0
3 

 
20

03
/0

4 
20

04
/0

5 
20

05
/0

6 
20

06
/0

7 
 

[L
ea

d 
O

ffi
ce

r]
 

R
ef

. N
o.

C
PA

 
R

PI
 

LP
SA

 
A

ct
ua

l 
To

p 
Q

 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

ct
ua

l 
 

Ta
rg

et
s

C
om

m
en

ts
 

[K
ar

l B
at

te
rs

by
/P

hi
l 

R
ey

nd
er

s]
 

   

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Se
ar

ch
 tu

rn
ar

ou
nd

 (%
 

ca
rr

ie
d 

ou
t i

n 
le

ss
 th

an
 1

0 
da

ys
) 

F6
C

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
LP

I 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

N
LI

S 
 

 
 

 
99

.1
5%

 
 

10
0%

 
97

%
 

10
0%

 
10

0%
 

10
0%

 
In

te
nd

ed
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 

el
ec

tr
on

ic
 m

et
ho

ds
 

w
ill

 e
nh

an
ce

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

an
d 

re
du

ce
 

co
st

 a
nd

 ti
m

e.
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

N
on

-N
LI

S 
 

 
 

 
 

97
.2

0%
 

 
10

0%
 

96
.3

%
 

10
0%

 
10

0%
 

10
0%

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

LL
C

1 
O

nl
y 

 
 

 
 

96
%

 
 

10
0%

 
95

.3
%

 
10

0%
 

10
0%

 
10

0%
 

 

[K
ar

l B
at

te
rs

by
/P

hi
l 

R
ey

nd
er

s]
 

      

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 22



In
di

ca
to

r D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

20
02

/0
3 

 
20

03
/0

4 
20

04
/0

5 
20

05
/0

6 
20

06
/0

7 
 

[L
ea

d 
O

ffi
ce

r]
 

R
ef

. N
o.

C
PA

 
R

PI
 

LP
SA

 
A

ct
ua

l 
To

p 
Q

 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

ct
ua

l 
 

Ta
rg

et
s

C
om

m
en

ts
 

     Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f p
rin

ci
pa

l 
ro

ad
s 

w
hi

ch
 n

ee
d 

m
aj

or
 

re
pa

irs
. 

P2
c 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

[D
av

id
 C

oo
pe

r]
 

        

LP
I 

 
 

 
20

.6
0%

 
 

20
%

 
17

.2
5%

 
 

 
N

o 
ta

rg
et

s 
se

t a
s 

su
rv

ey
 m

et
ho

d 
ha

s 
be

en
 re

pl
ac

ed
 a

nd
 

w
ill

 n
ot

 b
e 

co
nt

in
ue

d 
w

ith
 in

 fu
tu

re
 y

ea
rs

. 
Th

is
 in

di
ca

to
r w

ill
 b

e 
re

pl
ac

ed
 b

y 
B

V 
96

. 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f h
ig

hw
ay

 
in

sp
ec

tio
ns

 a
ch

ie
ve

d.
 

Lo
ca

l 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
LP

I 
 

 
 

99
.4

0%
 

 
99

.5
0%

 
99

.4
%

 
99

.5
%

 
99

.5
%

 
99

.5
%

 
M

ar
gi

na
l r

ed
uc

tio
n 

of
 

0.
1%

 a
ga

in
st

 y
ea

r-
en

d 
ta

rg
et

 in
 2

00
3/

04
 

du
e 

to
 h

ig
hw

ay
 

in
sp

ec
to

rs
 ta

ki
ng

 o
n 

a 
du

al
 ro

le
 o

f 
St

re
et

pr
id

e 
lia

is
on

 
w

ith
 A

re
a 

A
ss

em
bl

ie
s.

 
 

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

[A
nd

y 
Sh

aw
] 

  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 23



In
di

ca
to

r D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

20
02

/0
3 

 
20

03
/0

4 
20

04
/0

5 
20

05
/0

6 
20

06
/0

7 
 

[L
ea

d 
O

ffi
ce

r]
 

R
ef

. N
o.

C
PA

 
R

PI
 

LP
SA

 
A

ct
ua

l 
To

p 
Q

 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

ct
ua

l 
 

Ta
rg

et
s

C
om

m
en

ts
 

     Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f c
ha

rg
ea

bl
e 

in
sp

ec
tio

ns
 o

f 
un

de
rt

ak
er

’s
 w

or
k 

ac
hi

ev
ed

. 

Lo
ca

l 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

30
%

 0
f a

ll 
st

at
ut

or
y 

un
de

rt
ak

er
s 

w
or

k 
to

 
be

 in
sp

ec
te

d 
to

 m
ee

t 
10

0%
 ta

rg
et

. 
 

LP
I 

 
 

 
99

.9
4%

 
 

10
0%

 
10

0%
 

10
0%

 
10

0%
 

10
0%

 

 
2 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

[D
av

id
 C

oo
pe

r]
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f r
ep

or
ts

 
re

ce
iv

ed
 o

f b
lo

ck
ed

 
gu

lli
es

 p
er

 1
00

0 
gu

lli
es

. 

Lo
ca

l 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
LP

I 
 

 
 

5 
 

9 
3.

95
 

6 
6 

6
Th

is
 s

er
vi

ce
 is

 li
ke

ly
 

to
 b

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 in

 
R

ot
he

rh
am

co
nn

ec
t i

n 
20

04
 a

nd
 re

su
lt 

in
 a

n 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

nu
m

be
r o

f 
re

po
rt

s 
be

ca
us

e 
pe

op
le

 w
ill

 b
e 

en
co

ur
ag

ed
 to

 re
po

rt
 

th
ei

r b
lo

ck
ed

 g
ul

lie
s.

 
C

ur
re

nt
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

is
 g

oo
d 

an
d 

th
e 

ai
m

 
is

 to
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

th
is

. 
 

3 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 24



In
di

ca
to

r D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

20
02

/0
3 

 
20

03
/0

4 
20

04
/0

5 
20

05
/0

6 
20

06
/0

7 
 

[L
ea

d 
O

ffi
ce

r]
 

R
ef

. N
o.

C
PA

 
R

PI
 

LP
SA

 
A

ct
ua

l 
To

p 
Q

 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

ct
ua

l 
 

Ta
rg

et
s

C
om

m
en

ts
 

[D
av

id
 C

oo
pe

r]
 

    

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

A
ve

ra
ge

 ti
m

e 
ta

ke
n 

to
 

re
pa

ir 
a 

st
re

et
 li

gh
tin

g 
fa

ul
t (

da
ys

). 

Lo
ca

l 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
LP

I 
 

 
 

3.
44

 
 

3 
3.

29
 

3.
0 

2.
8 

2.
7

C
ha

ng
es

 to
 w

or
ki

ng
 

pr
ac

tic
es

 a
re

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
 

to
 s

ho
w

 g
ra

du
al

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
. T

he
y 

in
cl

ud
e 

a 
sc

ou
tin

g 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
M

on
 to

 F
ri 

an
d 

cl
os

er
 re

sp
on

se
 

tim
es

. 
 

4 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 h
as

 
im

pr
ov

ed
 a

nn
ua

lly
 

bu
t t

he
 ta

rg
et

 fo
r 

20
03

/0
4 

w
as

 n
ot

 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 d

ue
 to

 
de

la
ys

 in
 c

ha
ng

in
g 

w
or

ki
ng

 p
ra

ct
ic

es
 

an
d 

an
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f 

re
po

rt
s.

  
[D

av
id

 C
oo

pe
r]

 
      

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 25



In
di

ca
to

r D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

20
02

/0
3 

 
20

03
/0

4 
20

04
/0

5 
20

05
/0

6 
20

06
/0

7 
 

[L
ea

d 
O

ffi
ce

r]
 

R
ef

. N
o.

C
PA

 
R

PI
 

LP
SA

 
A

ct
ua

l 
To

p 
Q

 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

ct
ua

l 
 

Ta
rg

et
s

C
om

m
en

ts
 

     To
ta

l n
um

be
r o

f 
ac

tio
na

bl
e 

de
fe

ct
s 

on
 

ro
ad

s 
an

d 
pa

ve
m

en
ts

 p
er

 
10

0 
ki

lo
m

et
re

 o
f n

et
w

or
k 

in
sp

ec
te

d.
 

Lo
ca

l 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
LP

I 
 

 
 

13
1.

7 
 

12
0 

11
8 

12
0 

12
0 

12
0 

Fi
na

l p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 in
 

20
03

/0
4 

w
as

 b
et

te
r 

th
an

 th
e 

ta
rg

et
. 

 
5 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

[A
nd

y 
Sh

aw
] 

                 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ta
rg

et
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
se

t i
nl

in
e 

w
ith

 c
ur

re
nt

 
hi

gh
w

ay
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 

fu
nd

in
g.

 

Page 26



In
di

ca
to

r D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

20
02

/0
3 

 
20

03
/0

4 
20

04
/0

5 
20

05
/0

6 
20

06
/0

7 
 

[L
ea

d 
O

ffi
ce

r]
 

R
ef

. N
o.

C
PA

 
R

PI
 

LP
SA

 
A

ct
ua

l 
To

p 
Q

 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

ct
ua

l 
 

Ta
rg

et
s

C
om

m
en

ts
 

   A
ve

ra
ge

 re
ce

pt
io

n 
w

ai
tin

g 
tim

e,
 s

am
pl

e 
on

e 
da

y 
pe

r 
w

ee
k.

 

Lo
ca

l 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
LP

I 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

W
ith

 A
pp

oi
nt

m
en

ts
 

6 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

To
ta

l n
um

be
r 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
52

5 
 

 
22

9 
 

 
R

ed
uc

ed
 M

on
th

ly
 

sa
m

pl
e 

du
e 

to
 

re
ce

pt
io

n 
m

ov
es

 
N

o 
at

te
nd

ed
 in

 1
0 

m
in

s 
 

 
 

 
50

3 
 

 
22

6 
 

 
 

R
ed

uc
ed

 M
on

th
ly

 
sa

m
pl

e 
du

e 
to

 
re

ce
pt

io
n 

m
ov

es
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

%
 o

f t
ot

al
 v

is
ito

rs
 s

ee
n 

in
 

10
 m

in
s 

 
 

 
 

95
.8

0%
 

 
95

%
 

99
.2

5%
 

99
.5

0%
 

 
99

.7
5%

10
0%

Ta
rg

et
 m

et
 

W
ith

ou
t A

pp
oi

nt
m

en
ts

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

To
ta

l n
um

be
r 

 
 

 
 

41
5 

 
 

36
4 

 
 

 

N
o 

at
te

nd
ed

 in
 1

0 
m

in
s 

 
 

 
 

38
0 

 
 

35
6 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 27



In
di

ca
to

r D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

20
02

/0
3 

 
20

03
/0

4 
20

04
/0

5 
20

05
/0

6 
20

06
/0

7 
 

[L
ea

d 
O

ffi
ce

r]
 

R
ef

. N
o.

C
PA

 
R

PI
 

LP
SA

 
A

ct
ua

l 
To

p 
Q

 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

ct
ua

l 
 

Ta
rg

et
s

C
om

m
en

ts
 

%
 o

f t
ot

al
 v

is
ito

rs
 s

ee
n 

in
 

10
 m

in
s 

 
 

 
 

91
.6

0%
 

 
90

%
 

96
.3

8%
 

97
%

 
98

%
 

99
%

Ta
rg

et
 m

et
 

[G
ra

ha
m

 C
la

rk
] 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

C
us

to
m

er
 c

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
N

o 
Lo

ca
l 

 
 

 
61

 
 

 
28

 
 

 
 

 
LP

I 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

A
ck

no
w

le
dg

ed
 in

 5
 d

ay
s 

7 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

%
 o

f t
ot

al
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

R
es

po
nd

ed
 in

 1
0 

da
ys

 
 

 
 

 
55

 
 

 
26

 
 

 
 

%
 o

f t
ot

al
  a

ch
ie

ve
d 

 
 

 
 

90
.1

6%
 

 
90

%
 

92
.8

6%
 

92
%

 
94

%
 

96
%

Ta
rg

et
 m

et
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

St
ag

e 
II 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Fu
ll 

re
sp

on
se

 3
0 

da
ys

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

0 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

%
 o

f t
ot

al
  a

ch
ie

ve
d 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

[A
nt

ho
ny

 P
at

te
rs

on
] 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 28



In
di

ca
to

r D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

20
02

/0
3 

 
20

03
/0

4 
20

04
/0

5 
20

05
/0

6 
20

06
/0

7 
 

[L
ea

d 
O

ffi
ce

r]
 

R
ef

. N
o.

C
PA

 
R

PI
 

LP
SA

 
A

ct
ua

l 
To

p 
Q

 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

ct
ua

l 
 

Ta
rg

et
s

C
om

m
en

ts
 

    Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f w
in

te
r 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 ro
ut

es
 

gr
itt

ed
 w

ith
in

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
tim

e 

Lo
ca

l 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
8 

 
 

 
94

.8
0%

 
 

95
%

 
98

.5
%

 
98

%
 

98
%

 
98

%
C

on
tin

ue
d 

go
od

 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

ta
rg

et
ed

. S
om

e 
ro

ut
es

 w
ill

 a
lw

ay
s 

be
 

de
la

ye
d 

du
e 

to
 tr

af
fic

 
pr

ob
le

m
s 

or
 

ob
st

ru
ct

io
ns

. T
he

 
ta

rg
et

s 
al

lo
w

 fo
r 

un
fo

re
se

en
 

si
tu

at
io

ns
. 

 
LP

I 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

[D
av

id
 C

oo
pe

r]
 

  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

C
os

t p
er

 s
qu

ar
e 

ki
lo

m
et

re
 

of
 k

ee
pi

ng
 h

ig
hw

ay
s 

fo
r 

w
hi

ch
 th

e 
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

is
 re

sp
on

si
bl

e,
 c

le
ar

 o
f 

lit
te

r. 

Lo
ca

l 
 

 
 

   
 £

 
 

   
 £

 
 

 
 

 

 
9 

 
 

 
12

0,
84

8 
 

12
9,

90
8 

 
10

3,
42

6 
13

0,
98

4
 

 

[A
nd

y 
Sh

aw
] 

LP
I 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 29



In
di

ca
to

r D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

20
02

/0
3 

 
20

03
/0

4 
20

04
/0

5 
20

05
/0

6 
20

06
/0

7 
 

[L
ea

d 
O

ffi
ce

r]
 

R
ef

. N
o.

C
PA

 
R

PI
 

LP
SA

 
A

ct
ua

l 
To

p 
Q

 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

ct
ua

l 
 

Ta
rg

et
s

C
om

m
en

ts
 

(i)
En

er
gy

 c
os

ts
 p

er
 s

q 
m

 
G

IA
 (g

as
, e

le
ct

ric
ity

, o
il 

so
lid

 fu
el

) 

Lo
ca

l 
 

 
 

£6
.0

4/
m

² 
 

 
£6

.0
2/

m
² 

 
 

 
(i)

Ta
rg

et
 n

ot
 se

t f
or

 
20

03
/0

4 
as

 d
ep

en
de

nt
 

on
 m

ar
ke

t f
or

ce
s. 

 
 

D
TL

R
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

(ii
) C

on
su

m
pt

io
n,

 in
  

kW
hr

s/
sq

 m
  

4B
 

 
 

 
14

5.
52

 
kh

h/
m

² 
 

13
8.

24
 

kw
h/

m
² 

17
6.

45
 

kw
h/

m
² 

16
7.

63
 

kw
h/

m
² 

15
9.

25
 

kw
h/

m
² 

15
1.

28
kw

h/
m

²(ii
)T

ar
ge

t s
et

 o
n 

a 
sm

al
le

r g
ro

up
 o

f 
pr

op
er

tie
s a

s 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
w

as
 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fo

r p
ar

t o
f 

th
e 

pr
op

er
ty

 
po

rtf
ol

io
. 

A
ct

ua
ls

 fo
r 2

00
3/

04
 

fo
r l

ar
ge

r n
um

be
r o

f 
bu

ild
in

gs
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

so
m

e 
hi

gh
 

co
ns

um
pt

io
n/

m
² 

bu
ild

in
gs

 w
hi

ch
 h

as
 

le
d 

to
 th

e 
ta

rg
et

 b
ei

ng
 

ex
ce

ed
ed

. 
O

pe
ra

tio
na

l p
ro

p 
+ 

m
ar

ke
ts

 a
nd

 p
ub

lic
 

to
ile

ts
. 

10
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
LP

I 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

[A
rn

ol
d 

M
ur

ra
y/

D
ar

re
n 

M
er

rim
an

] 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 30



In
di

ca
to

r D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

20
02

/0
3 

 
20

03
/0

4 
20

04
/0

5 
20

05
/0

6 
20

06
/0

7 
 

[L
ea

d 
O

ffi
ce

r]
 

R
ef

. N
o.

C
PA

 
R

PI
 

LP
SA

 
A

ct
ua

l 
To

p 
Q

 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

ct
ua

l 
 

Ta
rg

et
s

C
om

m
en

ts
 

    (i)
W

at
er

 c
os

ts
 p

er
 s

q 
m

 
G

IA
 

Lo
ca

l 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
D

TL
R

 
 

 
 

£1
.6

3/
m

² 
 

 
£1

.5
9/

m
² 

 
 

(i)
Ta

rg
et

 n
ot

 se
t f

or
 

20
03

/0
4 

as
 d

ep
en

de
nt

 
on

 m
ar

ke
t f

or
ce

s. 
 

 
(ii

) C
on

su
m

pt
io

n 
in

 
lit

re
s/

sq
 m

 
4c

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l p

ro
p 

+ 
m

ar
ke

ts
 a

nd
 p

ub
lic

 
to

ile
ts

. 

11
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
LP

I 
 

 
 

71
6.

1 
ltr

s/
m

² 
 

68
0.

3l
ts

/m
² 

86
2.

5 
lts

/m
²

81
9.

4 
 

lts
/m

²  
77

8.
4 

lts
/m

² 
73

9.
5 

lts
/m

²(ii
) T

ar
ge

t s
et

 o
n 

a 
sm

al
le

r g
ro

up
 o

f 
pr

op
er

tie
s a

s 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
w

as
 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fo

r p
ar

t o
f 

th
e 

pr
op

er
ty

 
po

rtf
ol

io
. 

A
ct

ua
ls

 fo
r 2

00
3/

04
 

fo
r l

ar
ge

r n
um

be
r o

f 
bu

ild
in

gs
 a

nd
 h

ig
he

r 
co

ns
um

pt
io

n 
du

e 
to

 a
 

w
ar

m
er

 th
an

 a
ve

ra
ge

 
su

m
m

er
 w

hi
ch

 h
as

 
le

d 
to

 th
e 

ta
rg

et
 b

ei
ng

 

Page 31



In
di

ca
to

r D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

20
02

/0
3 

 
20

03
/0

4 
20

04
/0

5 
20

05
/0

6 
20

06
/0

7 
 

[L
ea

d 
O

ffi
ce

r]
 

R
ef

. N
o.

C
PA

 
R

PI
 

LP
SA

 
A

ct
ua

l 
To

p 
Q

 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

ct
ua

l 
 

Ta
rg

et
s

C
om

m
en

ts
 

ex
ce

ed
ed

. 

[A
rn

ol
d 

M
ur

ra
y/

D
ar

re
n 

M
er

rim
an

] 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

(i)
 C

O
2 

em
is

si
on

s 
in

 
to

nn
es

 o
f c

ar
bo

n 
di

ox
id

e 
pe

r s
q 

m
  

Lo
ca

l 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l p

ro
p 

+ 
m

ar
ke

ts
 a

nd
 p

ub
lic

 
to

ile
ts

. 

D
TL

R
 

 
 

 
0.

19
65

 
to

nn
es

/m
² 

 
0.

18
67

 
to

nn
es

/m
² 

0.
16

78
 

to
nn

es
/m

² 
0.

17
74

 
to

nn
es

/m
²  

0.
16

85
 

to
nn

es
/m

²  

0.
16

01
to

nn
es

/m
²Ta

rg
et

 A
ch

ie
ve

d 
he

av
ie

r f
os

si
l f

ue
l 

us
e 

du
rin

g 
he

at
in

g 
se

as
on

 a
 m

aj
or

 
co

nt
rib

ut
or

 to
 C

O
2 

em
is

si
on

s. 
R

ot
he

rh
am

 is
 o

ne
 o

f 
th

e 
le

ad
in

g 
A

ut
ho

rit
ie

s i
n 

us
in

g 
gr

ee
n 

el
ec

tri
ci

ty
, 

ci
rc

a 
90

%
 o

f o
ur

 to
ta

l 
co

ns
um

pt
io

n.
 

 
4d

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
12

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
LP

I 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

A
rn

ol
d 

M
ur

ra
y/

D
ar

re
n 

M
er

rim
an

] 
  

D
 8

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 32



In
di

ca
to

r D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

20
02

/0
3 

 
20

03
/0

4 
20

04
/0

5 
20

05
/0

6 
20

06
/0

7 
 

[L
ea

d 
O

ffi
ce

r]
 

R
ef

. N
o.

C
PA

 
R

PI
 

LP
SA

 
A

ct
ua

l 
To

p 
Q

 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

ct
ua

l 
 

Ta
rg

et
s

C
om

m
en

ts
 

    Th
e 

co
st

 p
er

 s
qu

ar
e 

ki
lo

m
et

re
 o

f k
ee

pi
ng

 
re

le
va

nt
 la

nd
 a

nd
 re

le
va

nt
 

hi
gh

w
ay

s 
fo

r w
hi

ch
 th

e 
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

is
 

re
sp

on
si

bl
e,

 c
le

ar
 o

f l
itt

er
 

an
d 

re
fu

se
. 

Lo
ca

l 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
13

 
 

 
 

£4
8,

15
9 

 
£5

0,
86

2 
 

51
,5

25
 

52
,2

02
 

52
,8

80
 

Pr
ov

is
io

na
l G

ro
w

th
 

ra
te

 a
t a

pp
ro

x.
 1

.3
%

 
 

LP
I 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
w

as
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
B

V 
85

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

[A
nd

y 
Sh

aw
] 

            

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 33



In
di

ca
to

r D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

20
02

/0
3 

 
20

03
/0

4 
20

04
/0

5 
20

05
/0

6 
20

06
/0

7 
 

[L
ea

d 
O

ffi
ce

r]
 

R
ef

. N
o.

C
PA

 
R

PI
 

LP
SA

 
A

ct
ua

l 
To

p 
Q

 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

ct
ua

l 
 

Ta
rg

et
s

C
om

m
en

ts
 

   R
ot

he
rh

am
’s

 re
co

rd
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

in
g 

H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 

Sa
fe

ty
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

of
 

re
po

rt
ab

le
 in

ju
rie

s 
an

d 
 

da
ng

er
ou

s 
oc

cu
rr

en
ce

’s
 

w
ith

in
 1

0 
w

or
ki

ng
 d

ay
s 

m
ea

su
re

d 
as

 a
 p

er
ce

nt
a g

e 
of

 th
e 

to
ta

l. 
(R

ID
D

O
R

) 
R

ep
or

tin
g 

of
 In

du
st

ria
l 

D
is

ea
se

s 
an

d 
D

an
ge

ro
us

 
O

cc
ur

re
nc

e’
s 

R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

. 

Lo
ca

l 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
14

 
 

 
 

74
.2

0%
 

 
10

0%
 

85
.9

%
 

10
0%

 
10

0%
 

10
0%

W
e 

ai
m

 to
 b

e 
fu

lly
 

co
m

pl
ia

nt
 w

ith
 

su
bm

is
si

on
s 

to
 th

e 
H

SE
. 

[J
oh

n 
St

ap
le

to
n.

] 
             

LP
I 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 34



In
di

ca
to

r D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

20
02

/0
3 

 
20

03
/0

4 
20

04
/0

5 
20

05
/0

6 
20

06
/0

7 
 

[L
ea

d 
O

ffi
ce

r]
 

R
ef

. N
o.

C
PA

 
R

PI
 

LP
SA

 
A

ct
ua

l 
To

p 
Q

 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

ct
ua

l 
 

Ta
rg

et
s

C
om

m
en

ts
 

  %
 o

f g
ro

ss
 in

te
rn

al
 fl

oo
r-

sp
ac

e 
cl

as
si

fie
d 

as
 g

oo
d 

sa
tis

fa
ct

or
y 

ca
te

go
rie

s 
A

-
B

 

Lo
ca

l 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
15

 
 

 
 

60
%

 
 

65
%

 
65

%
 

68
%

 
71

.5
%

 
75

%
PI

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
ta

rg
et

 
an

d 
fu

tu
re

 ta
rg

et
s 

re
fle

ct
 p

ro
po

se
d 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

, t
he

y 
in

cl
ud

e:
 

C
ha

ng
e 

in
 w

or
k 

st
yl

e 
In

ve
st

m
en

t i
n 

ne
w

 
pr

op
er

tie
s.

 
C

ou
nc

il 
de

po
ts

 a
re

 
be

in
g 

ra
tio

na
lis

ed
. 

 
F5

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
LP

I 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

R
ev

en
ue

 ru
nn

in
g 

co
st

s 
pe

r s
qu

ar
e 

m
et

re
 

Lo
ca

l 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
16

 
 

 
 

£2
1.

76
/m

² 
£2

0/
m

² 
£1

9.
97

/m
² 

£2
0/

m
² 

£2
0/

m
² 

£2
0/

m
² A

im
in

g 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

co
nd

iti
on

 o
f 

bu
ild

in
gs

 th
er

ef
or

e 
ta

rg
et

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

se
t 

at
 £

20
/m

² 
 

F6
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
LP

I 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 35



In
di

ca
to

r D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

20
02

/0
3 

 
20

03
/0

4 
20

04
/0

5 
20

05
/0

6 
20

06
/0

7 
 

[L
ea

d 
O

ffi
ce

r]
 

R
ef

. N
o.

C
PA

 
R

PI
 

LP
SA

 
A

ct
ua

l 
To

p 
Q

 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

ct
ua

l 
 

Ta
rg

et
s

C
om

m
en

ts
 

[A
rn

ol
d 

M
ur

ra
y/

D
ar

re
n 

M
er

rim
an

] [
D

av
id

 R
ho

de
s]

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

R
ot

he
rh

am
's 

A
nn

ua
l A

ve
ra

ge
 

Ea
rn

in
gs

 a
s a

 %
 o

f t
he

 G
B

 
A

nn
ua

l A
ve

ra
ge

 E
ar

ni
ng

s (
fu

ll 
tim

e 
w

or
ke

rs
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

ov
er

tim
e)

 
a)

 W
or

kp
la

ce
 b

as
ed

 
co

m
pa

ris
on

 
b)

 R
es

id
en

ce
 b

as
ed

 
co

m
pa

ris
on
 

 

N
ew

 –
 

re
pl

ac
in

g 
Lo

ca
l 

17
 

 
 

 
a)

 8
2.

8%
 

b)
 8

8.
1%

 
 

n/
a 

a)
 8

6.
8%

 
b)

 9
2.

7%
 

87
.5

%
 

92
.9

%
 

88
.0

%
 

92
.2

%
 

90
.0

%
 

92
.5

%
 

R
M

B
C

 is
 st

riv
in

g 
to

 
in

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
ea

rn
in

gs
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 o

f R
ID

O
, 

EC
&

L,
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 e
tc

. 
R

eg
en

er
at

io
n 

Pl
an

 
fo

cu
se

s o
n 

at
tra

ct
in

g 
ne

w
 

in
ve

st
or

s o
ff

er
in

g 
m

or
e 

qu
al

ity
 a

nd
 b

et
te

r p
ai

d 
ne

w
 jo

bs
 a

nd
 th

er
ef

or
e 

th
e 

ta
rg

et
s a

re
 m

or
e 

ch
al

le
ng

in
g 

th
an

 th
e 

st
at

is
tic

al
 p

ro
je

ct
io

n 
ba

se
d 

on
 la

st
 si

x 
ye

ar
s 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 w
ou

ld
 b

e.
 

La
st

 y
ea

r s
aw

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 in
cr

ea
se

 o
f t

he
 

av
er

ag
e 

pa
y 

re
la

tiv
e 

to
 

th
e 

na
tio

na
l p

ay
. 

[R
ic

ha
rd

 
Po

un
df

or
d/

Ja
ro

sl
av

a 
R

ile
y]

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

R
ed

uc
e 

th
e 

ga
p 

be
tw

ee
n 

R
ot

he
rh

am
 a

nd
 th

e 
na

tio
na

l a
ve

 in
 te

rm
s 

of
 

w
or

ki
n g

 a
ge

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

in
 

Lo
ca

l 
18

 
 

 
 

2.
3%

 
 

n/
a 

2.
4%

 
2.

3%
 

2.
2%

 
2.

1%
 

R
aw

 d
at

a 
fro

m
 

O
N

S/
N

O
M

IS
 d

at
ab

as
e 

us
ed

 fo
r b

ot
h,

 b
ut

 in
 

ca
se

 o
f L

PS
A 

Page 36



In
di

ca
to

r D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

20
02

/0
3 

 
20

03
/0

4 
20

04
/0

5 
20

05
/0

6 
20

06
/0

7 
 

[L
ea

d 
O

ffi
ce

r]
 

R
ef

. N
o.

C
PA

 
R

PI
 

LP
SA

 
A

ct
ua

l 
To

p 
Q

 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

ct
ua

l 
 

Ta
rg

et
s

C
om

m
en

ts
 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t. 

(8
 q

ua
rt

er
 

av
er

ag
e)

 
av

er
ag

ed
 o

nl
y 

fo
r 4

 
qu

ar
te

rs
. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Th
e 

sa
m

e 
in

di
ca

to
r –

 
m

ea
su

re
d 

by
 s

lig
ht

ly
 

di
ffe

re
nt

 m
et

ho
d.

 B
as

el
in

e 
– 

Sp
rin

g 
02

: 2
.5

%
 g

ap
 

LP
SA

 - 
Ta

rg
et

4
 

 
 

 2.
1%

 
 

 
Ta

rg
et

 
3/

20
06

 to
 

re
du

ce
 th

e 
ga

p 
by

 1
%

 

 1.
5%

 
-- 

2.
6%

 
 

2.
1%

 (?
? 

D
ue

 to
 

th
e 

da
ta

 
re

vi
si

on
 

an
d 

co
ns

eq
u

en
tly

 th
e 

ch
an

ge
 

of
 

ba
se

lin
e

th
is

 
ne

ed
s 

to
 

be
 

co
nf

irm
ed

 w
ith

 
th

e 
D

W
P)

 

-- 
Th

e 
LP

SA
 ta

rg
et

 
ac

hi
ev

ed
. 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s s

et
 u

p 
an

 
Em

pl
oy

ab
ili

ty
 G

ro
up

 
(m

ee
tin

g 
6-

w
ee

kl
y)

 w
ith

 
its

 lo
ca

l p
ar

tn
er

s (
A

C
E,

 
Ph

oe
ni

x 
En

te
rp

ris
e,

 C
C

C
, 

So
ci

al
 In

cl
us

io
n 

U
ni

t 
et

c.
) a

nd
 o

th
er

 C
ou

nc
il 

de
pa

rtm
en

ts
 (E

du
ca

tio
n)

. 
Th

e 
ai

m
 o

f t
hi

s g
ro

up
 is

 
to

 g
et

 m
or

e 
co

-o
rd

in
at

ed
 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 fo
r t

ac
kl

in
g 

th
is

 
im

po
rta

nt
 a

re
a 

of
 

re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

ac
tiv

ity
. 

 Pr
ev

io
us

 fi
gu

re
s w

er
e 

re
vi

se
d 

du
e 

to
 th

e 
O

N
S 

re
pl

ac
in

g 
al

l t
he

 d
at

as
et

s 
by

 n
ew

 se
rie

s r
e-

w
ei

gh
te

d 
to

 th
e 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
00

2 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

es
tim

at
es

. 
 

[R
ic

ha
rd

 
Po

un
df

or
d/

Ja
ro

sl
av

a 
R

ile
y]

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 37



In
di

ca
to

r D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

20
02

/0
3 

 
20

03
/0

4 
20

04
/0

5 
20

05
/0

6 
20

06
/0

7 
 

[L
ea

d 
O

ffi
ce

r]
 

R
ef

. N
o.

C
PA

 
R

PI
 

LP
SA

 
A

ct
ua

l 
To

p 
Q

 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

ct
ua

l 
 

Ta
rg

et
s

C
om

m
en

ts
 

      Ec
on

om
ic

 In
ac

tiv
ity

 ra
te

 
N

EW
 

(ta
ke

n 
ov

er
 

fr
om

 
C

or
po

ra
te

 C
or

e)

 
 

 
(4

Q
) 

25
.2

%
 

 
n/

a 
23

.4
%

 
23

.2
%

 
23

.0
%

 
22

.8
%

 
Ec

on
om

ic
 In

ac
tiv

ity
 ra

te
 

is
 c

al
cu

la
te

d 
as

 a
 %

 o
f 

w
or

ki
ng

 a
ge

 p
op

ul
at

io
n.

 
To

 re
du

ce
 th

e 
va

ria
nc

es
 

ro
lli

ng
 a

ve
ra

ge
 o

ve
r l

as
t 4

 
qu

ar
te

rs
 is

 u
se

d.
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  P

re
vi

ou
s f

ig
ur

es
 w

er
e 

re
vi

se
d 

du
e 

to
 th

e 
O

N
S 

re
pl

ac
in

g 
al

l t
he

 d
at

as
et

s 
by

 n
ew

 se
rie

s r
e-

w
ei

gh
te

d 
to

 th
e 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 2
00

2 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

es
tim

at
es

. 
[R

ic
ha

rd
 

Po
un

df
or

d/
Ja

ro
sl

av
a 

R
ile

y]
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

In
 th

is
 in

di
ca

to
r 

R
ot

he
rh

am
 is

 st
ill

 w
el

l 
be

hi
nd

 th
e 

na
tio

na
l l

ev
el

 
w

hi
ch

 st
an

ds
 lo

ng
-te

rm
 a

t 
ar

ou
nd

 2
1%

. C
ou

nc
il’

s 
Em

pl
oy

ab
ili

ty
 G

ro
up

 
ac

tio
ns

 (s
ee

 C
om

m
en

t i
n 

‘L
oc

al
 In

di
ca

to
r 1

8’
) a

re
 

ai
m

ed
 a

ls
o 

at
 th

e 
Ec

on
om

ic
 In

ac
tiv

ity
 

is
su

e.
  

  

Page 38



In
di

ca
to

r D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

20
02

/0
3 

 
20

03
/0

4 
20

04
/0

5 
20

05
/0

6 
20

06
/0

7 
 

[L
ea

d 
O

ffi
ce

r]
 

R
ef

. N
o.

C
PA

 
R

PI
 

LP
SA

 
A

ct
ua

l 
To

p 
Q

 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

ct
ua

l 
 

Ta
rg

et
s

C
om

m
en

ts
 

a)
 In

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
st

oc
k 

of
 

VA
T 

re
gi

st
er

ed
 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 in

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h.

 

Lo
ca

l 
 

 
 

43
85

 
 

n/
a 

44
45

 
(2

00
2)

 
44

75
 

(2
00

3)
 

45
05

 
(2

00
4)

 
45

35
 

(2
00

5)
 

A
N

N
U

A
L 

PE
R

FO
R

M
A

N
C

E 
M

EA
SU

R
E 

– 
Sm

al
l 

B
us

in
es

s S
er

vi
ce

 re
vi

se
d 

19
94

-2
00

1 
da

ta
 a

nd
 

re
le

as
ed

 2
00

2 
up

da
te

.  
 

19
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

b)
 In

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f 

ne
w

  V
A

T 
re

gi
st

ra
tio

ns
 

pe
r 1

0,
00

0 
he

ad
 o

f 
R

ot
he

rh
am

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

 

B
3 

 
 

 
19

 
 

19
 

19
 

20
 

20
 

21
 

D
ue

 to
 th

is
 re

vi
si

on
 b

ot
h 

th
e 

ac
tu

al
s a

nd
 ta

rg
et

s 
m

us
t h

av
e 

be
en

 c
ha

ng
ed

. 

 
LP

I 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

[R
ic

ha
rd

 
Po

un
df

or
d/

Ja
ro

sl
av

a 
R

ile
y]

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Va
ca

nc
y 

ra
te

 fo
r i

nd
us

tr
ia

l 
an

d 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 p

ro
pe

rt
y 

A
nn

ua
l 

Lo
ca

l 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
N

N
U

A
L 

PE
R

FO
R

M
A

N
C

E 
M

EA
SU

R
E 

– 
Th

e 
in

cr
ea

se
 is

 d
ue

 in
 th

e 
m

ai
n 

to
 e

xc
ep

tio
na

l 
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
s:

  
flo

or
sp

ac
e 

21
 

 
 

 
9.

85
 

 
9%

 
10

.5
%

 
8.

5%
 

8.
0%

 
8.

0%
 

1)
 C

om
pa

ny
 li

qu
id

at
io

n 
in

 B
ar

bo
t H

al
l, 

le
av

in
g 

13
,0

00
 sq

m
; 2

) u
ni

t u
nd

er
 

re
fu

rb
is

hm
en

t f
or

 
M

ar
ks

&
Sp

en
ce

r i
n 

Pa
rk

ga
te

 R
et

ai
l W

or
ld

, 
5,

00
0 

sq
m

; 3
) A

dw
ic

k 
Pa

rk
 M

an
ve

rs
 –

 n
ew

 

Page 39



In
di

ca
to

r D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

20
02

/0
3 

 
20

03
/0

4 
20

04
/0

5 
20

05
/0

6 
20

06
/0

7 
 

[L
ea

d 
O

ffi
ce

r]
 

R
ef

. N
o.

C
PA

 
R

PI
 

LP
SA

 
A

ct
ua

l 
To

p 
Q

 
Ta

rg
et

 
A

ct
ua

l 
 

Ta
rg

et
s

C
om

m
en

ts
 

In
no

va
te

 u
ni

ts
 n

ot
 y

et
 

oc
cu

pi
ed

 (c
om

pl
et

ed
 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
ye

ar
), 

5,
00

0 
sq

m
; 4

) G
en

es
is

 P
ar

k,
 

ne
w

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f 

2,
50

0 
sq

m
.  

 
B

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Si
nc

e 
th

e 
su

rv
ey

 d
at

e,
 

Pa
rk

ga
te

 a
nd

 G
en

es
is

 a
re

 
no

w
 o

cc
up

ie
d.

 B
ar

bo
t 

H
al

l h
as

 u
nd

er
go

ne
 

ex
te

ns
iv

e 
re

fu
rb

is
hm

en
t. 

[R
ic

ha
rd

 
Po

un
df

or
d/

Ja
ro

sl
av

a 
R

ile
y]

 

LP
I 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

a)
 V

ac
an

cy
 ra

te
 o

f a
ll 

bo
ro

ug
hs

’ t
ow

n 
ce

nt
re

 
pr

em
is

es
 (n

um
be

r o
f 

va
ca

nt
 u

ni
ts

) 

Lo
ca

l 
 

 
 

7.
60

%
 

 
7.

50
%

 
7.

5%
 

7.
0%

 
7.

0%
 

7.
0%

 
A

N
N

U
A

L 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
EA

SU
R

E 
– 

Th
e 

an
nu

al
 

su
rv

ey
 w

as
 c

ar
rie

d 
ou

t i
n 

A
ut

um
n 

20
03

.  
b)

  V
ac

an
cy

 ra
te

 o
f 

R
ot

he
rh

am
 to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
 

pr
em

is
es

 (n
um

be
r o

f 
va

ca
nt

  u
ni

ts
) 

22
 

 
 

 
11

.1
0%

 
 

10
.5

0%
 

9.
7%

 
9.

0%
 

 
9.

0%
 

9.
0%

 
Th

e 
ta

rg
et

s w
er

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 

in
 b

ot
h 

a)
 a

nd
 b

) 
Ta

rg
et

s f
or

 b
) w

er
e 

ad
ju

st
ed

 d
ow

n 
to

 re
fle

ct
 

th
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 in
 th

e 
la

st
 y

ea
r. 

 
B

2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
LP

I 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

[R
ic

ha
rd

 
Po

un
df

or
d/

Ja
ro

sl
av

a 
R

ile
y]

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 40



 

Page 41



Q
ua

rte
rs

: 1
 2

  3
 4

 
EC

O
N

O
M

IC
 A

N
D

 D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
SE

R
VI

C
ES

 
 

Pe
rio

d:
 

Ap
ril

 2
00

3 
to

 M
ar

ch
  2

00
4 

PE
R

FO
R

M
A

N
C

E 
M

A
N

A
G

EM
EN

T 
 

Q
U

A
R

TE
R

LY
 P

ER
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

R
EP

O
R

T 
 

 
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A
 

  
Le

ad
 

O
ffi

ce
r 

20
02

/3
 

A
ct

ua
l 

Q
U

A
R

TE
R

LY
  C

U
M

U
LA

TI
VE

 T
O

TA
L 

Ye
ar

 
En

d 
Pr

oj
ec

tio
n.

 
ODPM 
2002/03 
Top qtr 

C
om

m
en

t 
C

od
e 

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

 

 
 

20
03

/4
 

Ta
rg

et
 

1 
2 

3 
4 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

BV
PI

 
89

 
 D

 1
2 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f p
eo

pl
e 

sa
tis

fie
d 

th
at

 th
e 

au
th

or
ity

 h
as

 m
et

 th
ei

r 
du

ty
 to

 k
ee

p 
th

ei
r 

re
le

va
nt

 la
nd

 a
nd

 
re

le
va

nt
 h

ig
hw

ay
s 

fo
r 

w
hi

ch
 th

e 
au

th
or

ity
 is

 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e 
cl

ea
r o

f l
itt

er
 

an
d 

re
fu

se
. 

 

C
.E

 
 O

ffi
ce

 
  

 
 60

%
 

 
 

 
 58

%
 

 58
%

 
 60

%
 

Th
e 

la
te

st
 s

ur
ve

y 
w

as
 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
in

 2
00

3/
4 

an
d 

sa
w

 th
e 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

le
ve

l 
in

cr
ea

se
 to

 5
8%

 fr
om

 th
e 

20
00

/2
00

1 
le

ve
l o

f 4
6%

. 
 

BV
PI

 
96

 
C

on
di

tio
n 

of
 p

rin
ci

pa
l 

ro
ad

s.
 

 (U
ni

te
d 

Ki
ng

do
m

 
Pa

ve
m

en
t M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Sy

st
em

) U
KP

M
S.

   
 Th

e 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f t

he
 

pr
in

ci
pa

l r
oa

d 
ne

tw
or

k 
(A

 ro
ad

s)
 in

 n
ee

d 
of

 
m

aj
or

 s
tre

ng
th

en
in

g.
 

PS
A

 
      

D
av

id
 

C
oo

pe
r 

 Bo
b 

 
St

oc
k 

  

        12
.3

7%
 

  

        12
.0

%
 

        12
.4

1%
 

        12
.3

4%
 

        11
.2

3%
 

        10
.7

5%
 

        10
.7

5%
 

     C
VI

 
2.

4%
 

 D
ef

le
ct

 
7.

8%
 

   

A
M

EN
D

ED
 

 Tw
o 

ye
ar

 s
ur

ve
y 

cy
cl

e 
R

ec
en

t c
om

pl
et

ed
 

w
or

ks
 n

ow
  f

ed
 in

to
 P

I 
D

A
TA

. 
G

oo
d 

ye
ar

-o
n-

ye
ar

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t b
ei

ng
 

ac
hi

ev
ed

. 
Lo

w
 c

on
fid

en
ce

 in
 

re
lia

bi
lit

y 
of

 th
e 

To
p 

qt
r 

fig
ur

e 
fr

om
 O

D
PM

. 

Page 42



Q
ua

rte
rs

: 1
   2

   
3 

 4
 

EC
O

N
O

M
IC

 A
N

D
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

SE
R

VI
C

ES
 

 
Pe

rio
d:

 
Ap

ril
 2

00
3 

to
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

4 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T 

Q
U

A
R

TE
R

LY
 P

ER
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

R
EP

O
R

T 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A
 

Le
ad

 
O

ffi
ce

r 
20

02
/3

 
A

ct
ua

l 
Q

U
A

R
TE

R
LY

  C
U

M
U

LA
TI

VE
 T

O
TA

L 
Ye

ar
 

En
d 

Pr
oj

ec
tio

n.
 

ODPM 
2002/03 
Top qtr 

C
om

m
en

t 
C

od
e 

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

 

 
 

20
03

/4
 

Ta
rg

et
 

1 
2 

3 
4 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
BV

PI
 

97
 

a)
 C

on
di

tio
n 

of
 n

on
-

pr
in

ci
pa

l r
oa

ds
. 

 Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f t
he

 
cl

as
si

fie
d 

ne
tw

or
k 

(B
&C

 
ro

ad
s 

in
 n

ee
d 

of
 m

aj
or

 
st

re
ng

th
en

in
g.

 
       b)

 C
on

di
tio

n 
of

 
un

cl
as

si
fie

d 
ro

ad
s 

  

D
av

id
  

C
oo

pe
r 

 Bo
b 

St
oc

k 
 

    15
.4

9%
 

         11
.8

9%
 

    16
.2

%
 

         12
.5

%
 

     

    15
.1

4%
 

         11
.8

4%
 

    14
.5

5%
 

         11
.5

%
 

    14
.3

9%
 

         11
.5

7%
 

    14
..2

4%
 

         11
.5

3%
 

    14
..2

4%
 

         11
.5

3%
 

 

    8.
7%

 
         10

.1
%

 
        

    Tw
o 

ye
ar

 c
yc

le
 

Q
ua

rte
rly

 v
ar

ia
nc

e 
ca

n 
be

 
an

tic
ip

at
ed

 d
ue

 to
 

co
nd

iti
on

 o
f i

nd
iv

id
ua

l 
ro

ad
s 

tre
at

ed
. G

ra
du

al
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t a

ch
ie

ve
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

ta
rg

et
ed

 a
ct

io
n.

 
   Fo

ur
 y

ea
r c

yc
le

 
N

ow
 in

cl
ud

es
 7

5%
 o

f 
ne

tw
or

k 
su

rv
ey

ed
. 

C
lo

si
ng

 in
 o

n 
up

pe
r 

qu
ar

til
e 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
. 

BV
PI

 
98

 
 LP

I 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f s
tre

et
 

la
m

ps
 n

ot
 w

or
ki

ng
 a

s 
pl

an
ne

d.
 

(A
t a

ny
on

e 
tim

e 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

ye
ar

.) 
  

Bo
b 

St
ev

en
so

n 
 D

av
id

 
C

oo
pe

r 

 1.
1%

 
 1.

09
%

 
 0.

75
 

 0.
78

 
 0.

97
 

 1.
07

 
 1.

07
%

 
 1.

0%
 

Ta
rg

et
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

de
sp

ite
 

in
cr

ea
se

s 
in

 o
ut

ag
es

 
ex

pe
rie

nc
ed

 d
ue

 to
 

lo
ng

er
 b

ur
ni

ng
 h

ou
rs

 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
w

in
te

r 
m

on
th

s.
 

Page 43



Q
ua

rte
rs

: 1
   2

   
3 

 4
 

EC
O

N
O

M
IC

 A
N

D
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

SE
R

VI
C

ES
 

 
Pe

rio
d:

 
Ap

ril
 2

00
3 

to
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

4 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T 

Q
U

A
R

TE
R

LY
 P

ER
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

R
EP

O
R

T 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A
 

Le
ad

 
O

ffi
ce

r 
20

02
/3

 
A

ct
ua

l 
Q

U
A

R
TE

R
LY

  C
U

M
U

LA
TI

VE
 T

O
TA

L 
Ye

ar
 

En
d 

Pr
oj

ec
tio

n.
 

ODPM 
2002/03 
Top qtr 

C
om

m
en

t 
C

od
e 

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

 

 
 

20
03

/4
 

Ta
rg

et
 

1 
2 

3 
4 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
BV

PI
 

99
 

 PS
A

 

R
oa

d 
sa

fe
ty

. 
N

um
be

r o
f c

as
ua

lti
es

 
pe

r 1
00

,0
00

 p
op

ul
at

io
n:

 
(a

) 
Ki

lle
d/

se
rio

us
ly

 
in

ju
re

d 
(K

SI
). 

(b
) 

Sl
ig

ht
 in

ju
rie

s.
 

R
oa

d 
us

er
 ty

pe
s:

 
 (a

) 
Pe

de
st

ria
ns

 to
ta

l. 
Ki

lle
d/

se
rio

us
ly

 
in

ju
re

d.
   

Sl
ig

ht
 in

ju
rie

s.
 

 
(b

) 
Pe

da
l c

yc
lis

ts
. 

Ki
lle

d/
se

rio
us

ly
 

in
ju

re
d.

 
Sl

ig
ht

 in
ju

rie
s.

 
 

(c
) 

Tw
o 

w
he

el
ed

 m
ot

or
 

ve
hi

cl
e 

us
er

s.
 

Ki
lle

d/
se

rio
us

ly
 

in
ju

re
d.

 
Sl

ig
ht

 in
ju

rie
s.

 
 

(d
) 

C
ar

 u
se

rs
. 

Ki
lle

d/
se

rio
us

ly
 

in
ju

re
d.

 
Sl

ig
ht

 in
ju

rie
s.

 
  

D
av

id
 

Ja
m

es
 

 Br
en

t 
Sh

ar
p 

O
ut

tu
rn

 
20

02
 

 36
 

 46
4 

  60
 

 11
 

49
 

 17
 

 0 18
 

 34
 

 7  29
 

 33
9 

 17
 

32
9 

  

Ta
rg

et
 

20
03

 
 52

 
 44

0 
  72

 
 16

 
56

 
 27

 
 4 23

 
 23

 
 6  17

 
 32

0 
 23

 
29

7 
  

   5  10
7 

  19
 

 1 18
 

 3  0 3  5  1  4  79
 

 3 76
 

  

   24
 

 23
1 

  33
 

 4 29
 

 10
 

 1 9  13
 

 3  10
 

 18
1 

 15
 

16
6 

  

   34
 

 33
9 

  43
 

 6 38
 

 19
 

 2 17
 

 22
 

 6  16
 

 26
7 

 19
 

24
8 

  

   51
 

 47
7 

  61
 

 9 52
 

 23
 

 3 20
 

 31
 

 8  23
 

 38
2 

 30
 

35
2 

  

   51
 

 47
7 

  61
 

 9 52
 

 23
 

 3 20
 

 31
 

 8  23
 

 38
2 

 30
 

35
2 

  

          11
 

38
 

   3 21
 

   8  26
 

   18
 

26
0 

  

G
en

er
al

 C
om

m
en

ts
 

 Pl
ea

se
 n

ot
e 

th
at

 th
is

 
in

di
ca

to
r i

s 
re

po
rte

d 
on

 a
 

ca
le

nd
ar

 y
ea

r t
o 

O
D

PM
 

an
d 

no
t a

s 
a 

fin
an

ci
al

 
ye

ar
.  

 W
hi

ls
t t

ar
ge

ts
 h

av
e 

be
en

 
m

et
 in

 s
om

e 
of

 th
e 

ca
te

go
rie

s 
th

er
e 

ar
e 

a 
fe

w
 th

at
 a

re
 n

ot
 o

n 
tra

ck
. 

As
 p

ar
t o

f R
M

BC
’s

 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
to

 th
e 

S.
 

Yo
rk

s 
ca

su
al

ty
 re

du
ct

io
n 

ta
rg

et
s 

w
e 

ar
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 
w

ith
 th

e 
D

fT
 a

nd
 th

ei
r 

co
ns

ul
ta

nt
s 

to
 a

dd
re

ss
 

th
e 

po
or

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 in
 

20
03

. T
hi

s 
w

or
k 

ha
s 

pr
od

uc
ed

 a
n 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t p

la
n 

th
at

 
w

ill 
be

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

fo
rth

w
ith

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 b

rin
g 

th
e 

ac
tu

al
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

ba
ck

 o
n 

tra
ck

. 

Page 44



Q
ua

rte
rs

: 1
   2

   
3 

 4
 

EC
O

N
O

M
IC

 A
N

D
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

SE
R

VI
C

ES
 

 
Pe

rio
d:

 
Ap

ril
 2

00
3 

to
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

4 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T 

Q
U

A
R

TE
R

LY
 P

ER
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

R
EP

O
R

T 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A
 

Le
ad

 
O

ffi
ce

r 
20

02
/3

 
A

ct
ua

l 
Q

U
A

R
TE

R
LY

  C
U

M
U

LA
TI

VE
 T

O
TA

L 
Ye

ar
 

En
d 

Pr
oj

ec
tio

n.
 

ODPM 
2002/03 
Top qtr 

C
om

m
en

t 
C

od
e 

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

 

 
 

20
03

/4
 

Ta
rg

et
 

1 
2 

3 
4 

 
 

 

  
(e

) 
O

th
er

 v
eh

ic
le

 
us

er
s.

 
Ki

lle
d/

se
rio

us
ly

 
in

ju
re

d.
 

Sl
ig

ht
 in

ju
rie

s.
 

 

  51
 

 1  46
 

 

  50
 

 3  47
 

  

  7  0  7 

  18
 

 1  17
 

  22
 

 1  49
 

  32
 

 1  31
 

  

  32
 

 1  47
 

    2  28
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

LP
SA

 
BV

 9
9 

N
o 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
KS

I, 
on

 th
e 

ro
ad

s 
of

 R
ot

he
rh

am
, a

s 
m

ea
su

re
d 

by
 S

TA
TS

 1
9.

 

D
av

id
 

Ja
m

es
 

Br
en

t 
Sh

ar
p 

 
Ta

rg
et

 
20

03
  

13
0 

Ja
n 

-  
M

ar
 

16
 

Ap
ril

 –
 

Ju
ne

 
49

 

Ju
ly

 –
Se

pt
 

68
 (2

5)
 

Se
pt

 –
 

D
ec

 
12

7 
(5

9)
 

 

 
 

Th
er

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

n 
in

cr
ea

se
 o

n 
la

st
 y

ea
rs

 a
ll 

tim
e 

lo
w

. H
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 
ov

er
al

l t
re

nd
 is

 s
til

l 
do

w
nw

ar
d.

 
P2

b 
 LP

I 

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f s
er

io
us

 
ca

su
al

tie
s 

pe
r 1

,0
00

,0
00

 
ki

lo
m

et
re

 tr
av

el
le

d 
by

 a
 

ve
hi

cl
e 

on
 p

rin
ci

pa
l 

ro
ad

s.
 

 

D
av

id
  

Ja
m

es
 

Br
en

t 
Sh

ar
p 

O
ut

tu
rn

 
20

02
 

 0.
15

3 

Ta
rg

et
 

20
03

 
 0.

20
4 

 

   0.
01

5 

   0.
08

7 

   0.
11

7 

   0.
18

5 

   0.
18

5 
 

 
Th

er
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
n 

in
cr

ea
se

 o
n 

la
st

 y
ea

rs
 a

ll 
tim

e 
lo

w
. H

ow
ev

er
, t

he
 

ov
er

al
l t

re
nd

 is
 s

til
l 

do
w

nw
ar

d.
 

BV
PI

 
10

0 
N

um
be

r o
f d

ay
s 

of
 

te
m

po
ra

ry
 tr

af
fic

 
co

nt
ro

ls
 o

r r
oa

d 
cl

os
ur

e 
on

 tr
af

fic
 s

en
si

tiv
e 

ro
ad

s 
ca

us
ed

 b
y 

ro
ad

 w
or

ks
 

pe
r k

ilo
m

et
re

 o
f t

ra
ffi

c 
se

ns
iti

ve
 ro

ad
s.

 
    

D
av

id
  

C
oo

pe
r 

 0.
0 

 0.
02

 
 0 

 0 
 0 

 0 
 0 

 0.
20

 
A

M
EN

D
ED

 
 So

 fa
r n

o 
ro

ad
 c

lo
su

re
s 

du
rin

g 
tra

ffi
c 

se
ns

iti
ve

 
tim

es
. 

Th
e 

pr
oj

ec
tio

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 s

et
 a

t 0
.0

2 
to

 
co

pe
 w

ith
 

em
er

ge
nc

ie
s.

 
 

Page 45



Q
ua

rte
rs

: 1
   2

   
3 

 4
 

EC
O

N
O

M
IC

 A
N

D
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

SE
R

VI
C

ES
 

 
Pe

rio
d:

 
Ap

ril
 2

00
3 

to
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

4 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T 

Q
U

A
R

TE
R

LY
 P

ER
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

R
EP

O
R

T 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A
 

Le
ad

 
O

ffi
ce

r 
20

02
/3

 
A

ct
ua

l 
Q

U
A

R
TE

R
LY

  C
U

M
U

LA
TI

VE
 T

O
TA

L 
Ye

ar
 

En
d 

Pr
oj

ec
tio

n.
 

ODPM 
2002/03 
Top qtr 

C
om

m
en

t 
C

od
e 

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

 

 
 

20
03

/4
 

Ta
rg

et
 

1 
2 

3 
4 

 
 

 

    
BV

PI
 

10
5 

 LP
I 

D
am

ag
e 

to
 ro

ad
s 

an
d 

pa
ve

m
en

ts
.  

 Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
re

po
rte

d 
da

ng
er

ou
s 

de
fe

ct
s 

(e
.g

. p
ot

ho
le

s)
 in

 
ro

ad
s 

an
d 

fo
ot

w
ay

s 
th

at
 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
re

pa
ire

d 
w

ith
in

 2
4 

ho
ur

s.
 

An
dy

 S
ha

w
 

  97
.9

%
 

  99
%

 
 

  N
o 

da
ta

 

  99
.1

%
 

  98
.6

%
 

  99
.7

%
 

  99
.7

%
 

  
 Th

is
 h

ig
h 

ta
rg

et
 h

as
 

be
en

 e
xc

ee
d 

by
 0

.7
%

. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

BV
PI

 
10

6 
 D

 1
1 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f n
ew

 
ho

m
es

 b
ui

lt 
on

 
pr

ev
io

us
ly

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 

la
nd

. 
              

Al
an

  
M

itc
he

ll 
 Si

m
on

 
H

ar
le

y 
 

 58
.5

4%
 

 60
%

 
 49

.3
%

 
 Af

fe
ct

ed
 b

y 
on

e 
G

/fi
el

d 
si

te
, 1

5 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
 

 59
%

 
 59

%
 

 53
%

 
 53

%
 

 N
O

 

 92
%

 
C

rit
ic

al
 A

re
as

: 
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 p

la
nn

in
g 

pe
rm

is
si

on
s 

on
 g

re
en

fie
ld

 
si

te
s 

st
ill 

to
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
e 

w
ill 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 in

flu
en

ce
 

th
e 

ta
rg

et
. 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
ns

: 
C

om
pl

et
io

n 
of

 th
e 

U
rb

an
 

Po
te

nt
ia

l s
tu

dy
 a

nd
 

re
vi

ew
 o

f h
ou

si
ng

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
in

 th
e 

U
D

P/
LD

P 
re

vi
ew

 
w

ill 
al

lo
w

 a
 re

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

of
 a

llo
ca

tio
ns

.  
 

Page 46



Q
ua

rte
rs

: 1
   2

   
3 

 4
 

EC
O

N
O

M
IC

 A
N

D
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

SE
R

VI
C

ES
 

 
Pe

rio
d:

 
Ap

ril
 2

00
3 

to
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

4 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T 

Q
U

A
R

TE
R

LY
 P

ER
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

R
EP

O
R

T 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A
 

Le
ad

 
O

ffi
ce

r 
20

02
/3

 
A

ct
ua

l 
Q

U
A

R
TE

R
LY

  C
U

M
U

LA
TI

VE
 T

O
TA

L 
Ye

ar
 

En
d 

Pr
oj

ec
tio

n.
 

ODPM 
2002/03 
Top qtr 

C
om

m
en

t 
C

od
e 

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

 

 
 

20
03

/4
 

Ta
rg

et
 

1 
2 

3 
4 

 
 

 

BV
PI

 
10

7 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 c

os
t p

er
 h

ea
d 

of
 p

op
ul

at
io

n.
 

Ka
rl 

Ba
tte

rs
by

 
 An

dr
ew

 
Ki

dd
er

  
 To

 b
e 

an
 

LP
I 

  

 £5
.5

9 
 

 £6
.1

0 
 £5

.4
9 

 £5
.5

2 
 £5

.5
2 

 
 £5

.5
2 

 

 £7
.7

4 
 Th

is
 in

di
ca

to
r a

pp
ea

rs
 in

 
th

e 
O

D
PM

’s
 C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
pa

pe
r f

or
 0

4/
05

 a
nd

 
re

co
m

m
en

ds
 d

el
et

io
n 

of
 

th
is

 P
I b

ec
au

se
 th

ey
 s

ee
 

it 
ha

s 
a 

ne
ga

tiv
e 

ef
fe

ct
 o

n 
pl

an
ni

ng
, a

lth
ou

gh
 th

ey
 

sa
y 

it 
co

ul
d 

be
 a

 L
PI

 
   

BV
PI

 
10

9 
 PS

A
 

%
 o

f p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 

in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 th

e 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t’s
 n

ew
 

co
nt

ro
l t

ar
ge

ts
 to

 
de

te
rm

in
e:

 
   60

%
 o

f m
aj

or
 a

pp
s 

in
 1

3 
w

ee
ks

. 
65

%
 o

f m
in

or
 a

pp
s 

in
 8

 
w

ee
ks

 
 80

%
 o

f o
th

er
 a

pp
s 

in
 8

 
w

ee
ks

. 
    

Ka
rl 

Ba
tte

rs
by

 
   

         51
.5

6%
 

 49
.6

5%
 

  76
.2

4%
 

         57
%

 
 55

%
 

  75
%

 

         58
%

 
 46

%
 

  73
%

 

         53
%

 
 45

%
 

  73
%

 

         52
%

 
 52

%
 

  78
%

 
 

         51
%

 
 53

%
 

  78
%

 

         51
%

 
 53

%
 

  78
%

 

         55
%

 
 64

%
 

  81
%

 
 

A
M

EN
D

ED
 

M
ea

su
re

s 
ar

e 
be

in
g 

pu
t i

n 
pl

ac
e 

to
 a

dd
re

ss
 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 in

 th
e 

m
aj

or
 c

at
eg

or
y,

 s
uc

h 
as

 m
on

th
ly

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
m

ee
tin

gs
 o

n 
m

aj
or

 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
, t

he
 

in
tro

du
ct

io
n 

of
 a

 h
ou

se
 

bu
ild

er
s 

fo
cu

s 
gr

ou
p 

to
 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
pr

e-
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
di

sc
us

si
on

, 
an

d 
in

tro
du

ct
io

n 
of

 
st

an
da

rd
 te

m
pl

at
es

 fo
r 

Se
ct

io
n 

10
6 

ag
re

em
en

ts
. 

Page 47



Q
ua

rte
rs

: 1
   2

   
3 

 4
 

EC
O

N
O

M
IC

 A
N

D
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

SE
R

VI
C

ES
 

 
Pe

rio
d:

 
Ap

ril
 2

00
3 

to
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

4 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T 

Q
U

A
R

TE
R

LY
 P

ER
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

R
EP

O
R

T 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A
 

Le
ad

 
O

ffi
ce

r 
20

02
/3

 
A

ct
ua

l 
Q

U
A

R
TE

R
LY

  C
U

M
U

LA
TI

VE
 T

O
TA

L 
Ye

ar
 

En
d 

Pr
oj

ec
tio

n.
 

ODPM 
2002/03 
Top qtr 

C
om

m
en

t 
C

od
e 

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

 

 
 

20
03

/4
 

Ta
rg

et
 

1 
2 

3 
4 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

BV
PI

 
11

1 
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f a

pp
lic

an
t 

an
d 

th
os

e 
co

m
m

en
tin

g 
on

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 

sa
tis

fie
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

re
ce

iv
ed

. 
 

C
E 

O
ffi

ce
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 

 00
/0

1 
77

%
 

 81
%

 
 - 

 
 

 79
.2

%
 

 
 81

%
 

C
us

to
m

er
 s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
C

on
tr

ol
 h

as
 im

pr
ov

ed
 

si
nc

e 
th

e 
la

st
 s

ur
ve

y.
 

 BV
PI

 
15

6 
 AC

- 
A1

b 
C

 5
 

 Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
au

th
or

ity
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

 o
pe

n 
to

 th
e 

pu
bl

ic
 in

 w
hi

ch
 a

ll 
pu

bl
ic

 a
re

as
 a

re
 s

ui
ta

bl
e 

fo
r a

nd
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
to

 
di

sa
bl

ed
 p

eo
pl

e.
 

               

 Ar
no

ld
 

M
ur

ra
y 

 Br
ia

n 
M

es
si

de
r 

 

 0 
 10

%
 

 0 
 0 

 0 
 0%

 
 0%

 
 57

%
 

R
es

ou
rc

e 
al

lo
ca

tio
n 

ha
s 

le
d 

to
 th

e 
ta

rg
et

 fo
r 

20
03

/0
4 

no
t b

ei
ng

 m
et

.  
 Ta

ki
ng

 a
cc

ou
nt

 o
f t

he
 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
al

lo
ca

te
d,

 a
 

ne
w

 ta
rg

et
 o

f 1
0%

 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 in
di

ca
to

r i
n 

20
04

/0
5 

ha
s 

be
en

 
de

te
rm

in
ed

. A
n 

ac
tio

n 
pl

an
 fo

r m
ee

tin
g 

th
e 

ta
rg

et
 is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 b

ei
ng

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

fo
r a

pp
ro

va
l b

y 
M

em
be

rs
. 

 Ac
ce

ss
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
an

d 
w

ill 
be

 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

 P
re

m
is

es
 

Fu
nd

 b
id

s,
 b

ut
 th

os
e 

ha
ve

 
no

t y
et

 le
ad

 to
 a

 b
ui

ld
in

g 
co

m
pl

yi
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

in
di

ca
to

r. 
 

Page 48



Q
ua

rte
rs

: 1
   2

   
3 

 4
 

EC
O

N
O

M
IC

 A
N

D
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

SE
R

VI
C

ES
 

 
Pe

rio
d:

 
Ap

ril
 2

00
3 

to
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

4 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T 

Q
U

A
R

TE
R

LY
 P

ER
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

R
EP

O
R

T 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A
 

Le
ad

 
O

ffi
ce

r 
20

02
/3

 
A

ct
ua

l 
Q

U
A

R
TE

R
LY

  C
U

M
U

LA
TI

VE
 T

O
TA

L 
Ye

ar
 

En
d 

Pr
oj

ec
tio

n.
 

ODPM 
2002/03 
Top qtr 

C
om

m
en

t 
C

od
e 

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

 

 
 

20
03

/4
 

Ta
rg

et
 

1 
2 

3 
4 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

BV
PI

 
16

5 
Th

e 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
cr

os
si

ng
s 

w
ith

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
fo

r 
di

sa
bl

ed
 p

eo
pl

e.
 

       

 D
av

e 
Ja

m
es

 
 M

ic
k 

Po
w

el
l

 97
%

 
 97

%
 

 97
%

 
 97

%
 

 97
%

 
 97

%
 

 97
%

 
 95

%
 

A
M

EN
D

ED
 

W
e 

ha
ve

 a
 to

ta
l o

f 6
2 

si
te

s 
an

d 
tw

o 
do

 n
ot

 
ha

ve
 ta

ct
ile

 p
av

in
g 

in
st

al
le

d 
or

 
au

di
bl

e/
ta

ct
ile

 s
ig

na
ls

 
th

ey
 a

re
: 

Ti
ck

hi
ll 

R
oa

d/
G

ra
ng

e 
La

ne
/ M

ug
le

t L
an

e.
 

Ba
w

try
 R

d/
C

ro
ss

 
St

re
et

/ F
la

sh
 L

an
e 

 
BV

PI
 

17
8 

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f t
ot

al
 

le
ng

th
s 

of
 fo

ot
pa

th
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r r
ig

ht
s 

of
 w

ay
 

w
hi

ch
 w

er
e 

ea
sy

 to
 u

se
 

by
 m

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 
pu

bl
ic

. 
 

D
av

id
  

C
oo

pe
r 

     

 82
.5

%
 

 85
%

 
 90

.7
%

 
 94

.5
%

 
 94

.6
%

 
 93

.4
%

 
 93

.4
%

 
C

SS
 

78
%

 
 N

ot
  

C
SS

 
10

0%
 

 

W
el

l t
ow

ar
ds

 th
e 

to
p 

en
d 

of
 u

pp
er

 q
ua

rti
le

 
de

m
on

st
ra

tin
g 

co
nt

in
ue

d 
go

od
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
. 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t a

ch
ie

ve
d 

by
 

ta
rg

et
ed

 s
ig

ns
/ 

w
ay

m
ar

ki
ng

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
. 

     
BV

 
17

9 
AC

- 
G

1 

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
se

ar
ch

es
 c

ar
rie

d 
ou

t i
n 

10
 w

or
ki

ng
 d

ay
s.

 
  

D
ia

ne
 

D
ou

gl
as

 
 Ph

il 
R

ey
nd

er
s 

 98
.1

%
 

 10
0%

 
 99

%
 

 97
%

 
 10

0%
 

 10
0%

 
 10

0%
 

 10
0%

 
2nd

 Q
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

af
fe

ct
ed

 b
y 

of
fic

e 
re

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n 

& 
ne

w
 

st
ar

te
r ‘

be
dd

in
g 

in
’ p

er
io

d 

Page 49



Q
ua

rte
rs

: 1
   2

   
3 

 4
 

EC
O

N
O

M
IC

 A
N

D
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

SE
R

VI
C

ES
 

 
Pe

rio
d:

 
Ap

ril
 2

00
3 

to
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

4 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T 

Q
U

A
R

TE
R

LY
 P

ER
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

R
EP

O
R

T 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A
 

Le
ad

 
O

ffi
ce

r 
20

02
/3

 
A

ct
ua

l 
Q

U
A

R
TE

R
LY

  C
U

M
U

LA
TI

VE
 T

O
TA

L 
Ye

ar
 

En
d 

Pr
oj

ec
tio

n.
 

ODPM 
2002/03 
Top qtr 

C
om

m
en

t 
C

od
e 

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

 

 
 

20
03

/4
 

Ta
rg

et
 

1 
2 

3 
4 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

BV
 

18
0 

a)
 

Th
e 

en
er

gy
 

co
ns

um
pt

io
n/

m
² o

f 
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

op
er

at
io

na
l 

pr
op

er
ty

, c
om

pa
re

d 
w

ith
 c

om
pa

ra
bl

e 
bu

ild
in

gs
 in

 th
e 

U
K 

as
 a

 w
ho

le
. 

b)
 

Av
er

ag
e 

la
m

p 
ci

rc
ui

t 
w

at
ta

ge
 c

om
pa

re
d 

w
ith

 a
ve

ra
ge

 
co

ns
um

pt
io

n/
 

w
at

ta
ge

 b
y 

lo
ca

l 
au

th
or

iti
es

 in
 th

e 
U

K.
 

       

Ar
no

ld
  

M
ur

ra
y.

 
D

av
id

 
R

ho
de

s.
 

     D
av

id
  

C
oo

pe
r 

 Bo
b 

St
ev

en
so

n 

  87
%

 
  95

%
 

   38
5 

kw
h/

 
un

it/
yr

 

  83
%

 
  90

%
 

  24
%

 
  23

%
 

 El
ec

tri
ci

ty
 

40
%

 
Fo

ss
il 

Fu
el

 
31

%
 

  68
%

 
  80

%
 

  10
3%

 
  16

1%
 

   37
8 

kw
h/

un
it/

yr
 

  10
3%

 
  16

1%
 

 
N

ew
 P

I 
 M

or
e 

bu
ild

in
gs

 h
av

e 
be

en
 b

ro
ug

ht
 in

to
 th

e 
pr

op
er

ty
 p

or
tfo

lio
 a

nd
 

ca
us

ed
 a

n 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 
co

ns
um

pt
io

n.
 

Th
is

 is
 th

e 
fir

st
 y

ea
r f

or
 

th
is

 P
I, 

w
e 

w
ill 

us
e 

th
e 

da
ta

 to
 a

na
ly

se
 tr

en
ds

 
an

d 
ta

ke
 a

ct
io

n 
to

 
re

du
ce

 c
on

su
m

pt
io

n 
w

he
re

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
. 

 Th
is

 in
di

ca
to

r w
ill 

be
 

re
vi

se
d 

by
 th

e 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t (
D

ef
a)

. 

BV
 

18
6 

R
oa

ds
 n

ot
 n

ee
di

ng
 

m
aj

or
 re

pa
ir.

 
 Pr

in
ci

pa
l 

 N
on

 P
rin

ci
pa

l 
   

D
av

id
  

C
oo

pe
r 

 Bo
b 

St
oc

k 

   62
.5

7 
 34

6.
66

 
  

   59
.4

2 
 30

4.
36

 

   An
nu

al
 

C
al

cu
la

tio
n 

 
 

 
  As

 
ta

rg
et

 

   45
%

 
 13

2 

N
EW

 
 

Page 50



Q
ua

rte
rs

: 1
   2

   
3 

 4
 

EC
O

N
O

M
IC

 A
N

D
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

SE
R

VI
C

ES
 

 
Pe

rio
d:

 
Ap

ril
 2

00
3 

to
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

4 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T 

Q
U

A
R

TE
R

LY
 P

ER
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

R
EP

O
R

T 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A
 

Le
ad

 
O

ffi
ce

r 
20

02
/3

 
A

ct
ua

l 
Q

U
A

R
TE

R
LY

  C
U

M
U

LA
TI

VE
 T

O
TA

L 
Ye

ar
 

En
d 

Pr
oj

ec
tio

n.
 

ODPM 
2002/03 
Top qtr 

C
om

m
en

t 
C

od
e 

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

 

 
 

20
03

/4
 

Ta
rg

et
 

1 
2 

3 
4 

 
 

 

  
BV

 
18

7 
C

on
di

tio
n 

of
 fo

ot
w

ay
. 

      

D
av

id
  

C
oo

pe
r 

 Bo
b 

St
oc

k 

 42
.0

9%
 

 40
%

 
 42

.0
9%

 
 43

.5
7%

 
 43

.4
%

 
 42

.9
6%

 
 42

.9
6%

 
 15

%
 

N
EW

 
N

o 
m

aj
or

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

sc
he

m
es

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n.

 
In

di
ca

to
r o

nl
y 

co
ve

rs
 a

 
sm

al
l p

ar
t o

f t
he

 
ne

tw
or

k.
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

BV
 

18
8 

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f d
ec

is
io

ns
 

de
le

ga
te

d 
to

 o
ffi

ce
rs

 a
s 

a 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f a

ll 
de

ci
si

on
s 

                  

Ka
rl 

Ba
tte

rs
by

 
  To

 b
e 

an
 

LP
I 

 82
%

 
 83

%
 

 83
.4

2%
 

 

 83
.5

6%
 

 87
.2

%
 

 85
%

 
 85

%
 

 90
%

 
N

EW
 

To
 b

e 
re

ta
in

ed
 a

s 
an

 
LP

I. 
 

Page 51



Q
ua

rte
rs

: 1
   2

   
3 

 4
 

EC
O

N
O

M
IC

 A
N

D
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

SE
R

VI
C

ES
 

 
Pe

rio
d:

 
Ap

ril
 2

00
3 

to
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

4 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T 

Q
U

A
R

TE
R

LY
 P

ER
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

R
EP

O
R

T 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A
 

Le
ad

 
O

ffi
ce

r 
20

02
/3

 
A

ct
ua

l 
Q

U
A

R
TE

R
LY

  C
U

M
U

LA
TI

VE
 T

O
TA

L 
Ye

ar
 

En
d 

Pr
oj

ec
tio

n.
 

ODPM 
2002/03 
Top qtr 

C
om

m
en

t 
C

od
e 

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

 

 
 

20
03

/4
 

Ta
rg

et
 

1 
2 

3 
4 

 
 

 

BV
 

19
9 

C
om

bi
ne

d 
de

po
si

ts
 o

f 
lit

te
r a

nd
 d

et
rit

us
. 

                              

An
dy

 S
ha

w
 

 St
ev

e 
W

ib
be

rly
 

 

 
 

Su
rv

ey
s 

st
ar

te
d 

on
 

Ju
ly

 2
00

3.
 

D
at

a 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

in
 

th
e 

ne
xt

 
qt

r. 
 

 17
%

 
be

lo
w

 
ca

te
go

ry
 

B 

19
%

 
be

lo
w

 
C

at
eg

or
y 

B  

(1
9%

 
be

lo
w

 
C

at
eg

or
y 

B)
  

(1
9%

 
be

lo
w

 
C

at
eg

or
y 

B)
 

 

 
 Th

is
 w

as
 a

 n
ew

 P
I f

or
 

20
03

/0
4 

an
d 

ou
r i

ni
tia

l 
ai

m
 w

as
 to

 m
ee

t a
nd

 
ex

ce
ed

, i
f p

os
si

bl
e,

 th
e 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t’s

 &
 

EN
C

AM
S 

gu
id

el
in

e 
fig

ur
e 

of
 a

 m
ax

im
um

 o
f 3

0%
 o

f 
si

te
s 

fa
llin

g 
be

lo
w

 
ca

te
go

ry
 B

 fo
r l

itt
er

 &
 

de
tri

tu
s.

 
W

e 
ha

ve
 e

xc
ee

de
d 

th
is

 p
ro

vi
si

on
al

 
ta

rg
et

 w
ith

 o
nl

y 
19

%
 o

f a
ll 

si
te

s 
fa

lli
ng

 b
el

ow
 th

e 
sa

tis
fa

ct
or

y 
(c

at
eg

or
y  

B
) l

ev
el

. 
 

Page 52



Q
ua

rte
rs

: 1
   2

   
3 

 4
 

EC
O

N
O

M
IC

 A
N

D
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

SE
R

VI
C

ES
 

 
Pe

rio
d:

 
Ap

ril
 2

00
3 

to
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

4 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T 

Q
U

A
R

TE
R

LY
 P

ER
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

R
EP

O
R

T 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A
 

Le
ad

 
O

ffi
ce

r 
20

02
/3

 
A

ct
ua

l 
Q

U
A

R
TE

R
LY

  C
U

M
U

LA
TI

VE
 T

O
TA

L 
Ye

ar
 

En
d 

Pr
oj

ec
tio

n.
 

ODPM 
2002/03 
Top qtr 

C
om

m
en

t 
C

od
e 

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

 

 
 

20
03

/4
 

Ta
rg

et
 

1 
2 

3 
4 

 
 

 

BV
 

20
0 

   

Pl
an

-m
ak

in
g 

 a)
 

U
D

P 
ad

op
te

d 
an

d 
no

t e
xp

ire
d 

b)
 

W
ill 

a 
ne

w
 p

la
n 

be
 

on
 d

ep
os

it 
in

 3
 

ye
ar

s 

Al
an

 
M

itc
he

ll 
  Ka

rl 
Ba

tte
rs

by
 

 
  N

O
 

   YE
S 

  N
O

 
   YE

S 

  N
O

 
   YE

S 

  N
O

 
   YE

S 

  N
O

 
   YE

S 

  N
O

 
   YE

S 

  N
O

 
   YE

S 

N
EW

 
R

ot
he

rh
am

's
 U

D
P 

w
as

 
ad

op
te

d 
on

 1
4 

Ju
ne

 
19

99
, w

ith
 a

 p
la

n 
pe

rio
d 

to
 M

ar
 0

1 
  A 

ne
w

 s
ty

le
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t d

oc
um

en
t 

w
ill 

be
 o

n 
de

po
si

t b
y 

Ap
ril

 2
00

5 
an

d 
ad

op
te

d 
by

 A
pr

il 
20

07
. 

 C
av

ea
t: 

th
is

 is
 

de
pe

nd
an

t o
n 

le
gi

sl
at

io
n 

be
in

g 
en

ac
te

d 
J3

 
LP

I 
N

et
 s

pe
nd

 p
er

 h
ea

d 
of

 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

on
 s

tre
et

 
cl

ea
ni

ng
. 

          

An
dy

 S
ha

w
 

 St
ev

e 
W

ib
be

rly
 

 £4
.9

8 
 £5

.8
1 

 

 £1
.2

1 
 £2

.4
1 

 £3
.6

2 
 £ 

 £  

 
 Ac

tu
al

 c
os

t i
s 

lo
w

er
 th

an
 

20
03

/0
4 

ta
rg

et
 b

ec
au

se
 

ad
di

tio
na

l f
un

di
ng

 is
 n

ot
 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
th

is
 fi

na
nc

ia
l 

ye
ar

. 

Page 53



Q
ua

rte
rs

: 1
   2

   
3 

 4
 

EC
O

N
O

M
IC

 A
N

D
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

SE
R

VI
C

ES
 

 
Pe

rio
d:

 
Ap

ril
 2

00
3 

to
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

4 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T 

Q
U

A
R

TE
R

LY
 P

ER
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

R
EP

O
R

T 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A
 

Le
ad

 
O

ffi
ce

r 
20

02
/3

 
A

ct
ua

l 
Q

U
A

R
TE

R
LY

  C
U

M
U

LA
TI

VE
 T

O
TA

L 
Ye

ar
 

En
d 

Pr
oj

ec
tio

n.
 

ODPM 
2002/03 
Top qtr 

C
om

m
en

t 
C

od
e 

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

 

 
 

20
03

/4
 

Ta
rg

et
 

1 
2 

3 
4 

 
 

 

AC
- 

E1
 

 LP
I 

Th
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
hi

gh
w

ay
s 

th
at

 a
re

 e
ith

er
 

of
 a

 h
ig

h 
or

 a
cc

ep
ta

bl
e 

st
an

da
rd

 o
f c

le
an

lin
es

s.
 

      

An
dy

 S
ha

w
 

 St
ev

e 
W

ib
be

rly
 

 94
.6

%
 

 95
%

 
 97

.9
%

 
 96

.8
%

 
 97

%
 

 97
%

 
 97

%
 

 
 Th

e 
ye

ar
-e

nd
 ta

rg
et

 w
as

 
ex

ce
ed

ed
 b

y 
2%

, w
ith

 
go

od
 o

ve
ra

ll 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
ye

ar
. 

Th
is

 le
ve

l o
f p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

is
 a

ls
o 

re
fle

ct
ed

 in
 B

V 
89

 
C

us
to

m
er

 S
at

is
fa

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 C

le
an

lin
es

s 
w

hi
ch

 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

fro
m

 4
6%

 to
 

58
%

. 
AC

- 
E2

 
 D

 1
3 

 LP
I 

Th
e 

av
er

ag
e 

tim
e 

ta
ke

n 
to

 re
m

ov
e 

fly
-ti

ps
 (d

ay
s)

. 
      

An
dy

 S
ha

w
 

 St
ev

e 
W

ib
be

rly
 

 0.
84

 
 1.

0 
 0.

94
 

 0.
87

 
 0.

84
 

 0.
87

 
 0.

87
 

 
 Ex

ce
ed

ed
 th

is
 y

ea
r’s

 
ta

rg
et

. 
Th

is
 re

su
lt 

is
 s

ee
n 

as
 

ex
ce

lle
nt

 a
s 

th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 re

po
rts

 h
as

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
fro

m
 1

24
9 

in
 2

00
2/

03
 to

 
26

88
 in

 2
00

3/
04

 o
n 

th
e 

H
ig

hw
ay

. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
F2

b 
LP

I 
Th

e 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
pp

ea
ls

 th
at

 
w

er
e 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
. 

        

Ka
rl 

Ba
tte

rs
by

 
  

 25
%

 
     

 33
%

 
 50

%
 

 44
%

 
 33

%
 

 30
.4

%
 

 33
%

 
 

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f a
pp

ea
ls

 
al

lo
w

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
In

sp
ec

to
ra

te
 h

as
 

co
nt

in
ue

d 
to

 d
ec

lin
e,

 a
nd

 
it 

is
 a

nt
ic

ip
at

ed
 th

at
 b

y 
th

e 
ye

ar
 e

nd
 th

e 
ta

rg
et

  
ha

s 
be

en
 a

ch
ie

ve
d.

 

Page 54



Q
ua

rte
rs

: 1
   2

   
3 

 4
 

EC
O

N
O

M
IC

 A
N

D
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

SE
R

VI
C

ES
 

 
Pe

rio
d:

 
Ap

ril
 2

00
3 

to
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

4 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T 

Q
U

A
R

TE
R

LY
 P

ER
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

R
EP

O
R

T 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A
 

Le
ad

 
O

ffi
ce

r 
20

02
/3

 
A

ct
ua

l 
Q

U
A

R
TE

R
LY

  C
U

M
U

LA
TI

VE
 T

O
TA

L 
Ye

ar
 

En
d 

Pr
oj

ec
tio

n.
 

ODPM 
2002/03 
Top qtr 

C
om

m
en

t 
C

od
e 

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

 

 
 

20
03

/4
 

Ta
rg

et
 

1 
2 

3 
4 

 
 

 

 
F6

b 
LP

I 
Se

ar
ch

 b
re

ak
do

w
n.

 
 Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f E

le
ct

ro
ni

c 
Se

ar
ch

es
 (N

LI
S)

 - 
£8

2 
fe

e.
 

 Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f M
an

ua
l 

Se
ar

ch
es

 (N
on

-N
LI

S)
 -

£1
00

 fe
e.

 
 Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f L

LC
1 

O
nl

y 
Se

ar
ch

es
 - 

£5
 fe

e 
  

 Ka
rl 

Ba
tte

rs
by

 
 Ph

il 
R

ey
nd

er
s 

         

  2.
7%

 
    69

.6
%

 
   28

%
 

  10
%

 
    60

%
 

   30
%

 

  4.
3%

 
    63

.7
%

 
   32

%
 

  3.
7%

 
    57

.9
%

 
   38

.4
%

 

  5.
6%

 
    64

.5
%

 
   29

.9
%

 

  6.
4%

 
    63

.9
%

 
   29

.7
%

 

  6%
 

    64
%

 
   30

%
 

 

 
N

LI
S 

(N
at

io
na

l L
an

d 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Se

rv
ic

e)
 

 LL
C

1 
fig

ur
es

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
n 

in
di

ca
tio

n 
of

 P
er

so
na

l 
Se

ar
ch

 V
ol

um
es

. 
Pe

rc
en

ta
ge

s 
ar

e 
as

 
ex

pe
ct

ed
. 

Th
ou

gh
ts

 a
re

 th
at

 in
 th

e 
fu

tu
re

 s
ol

ic
ito

rs
 w

ill 
pr

ef
er

 
to

 u
se

 N
LI

S 
fo

r t
he

ir 
la

nd
 

se
ar

ch
es

. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

F6
C

 
LP

I 
Se

ar
ch

 tu
rn

ar
ou

nd
 (%

 
ca

rri
ed

 o
ut

 in
 le

ss
 th

an
 

10
 d

ay
s)

 
 N

LI
S 

 N
on

-N
LI

S 
 

 LL
C

1 
O

nl
y 

      

Ka
rl 

Ba
tte

rs
by

 
 Ph

il 
R

ey
nd

er
s 

  

    99
.1

5%
 

 97
.2

%
 

 96
%

 

    10
0%

 
 10

0%
 

 10
0%

 

    10
0%

 
 10

0%
 

 10
0%

 
 

    10
0%

 
 96

.7
%

 
 94

.3
%

 

    97
.9

%
 

 97
.2

%
 

 97
%

 

    97
%

 
 96

.3
%

 
 95

.3
%

 

    10
0%

 
 10

0%
 

 99
%

 

 
 (N

LI
S)

 N
at

io
na

l L
an

d 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n 
Se

rv
ic

e.
 

 2nd
 Q

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
af

fe
ct

ed
 b

y 
of

fic
e 

re
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

n 
& 

ne
w

 
st

ar
te

r ‘
be

dd
in

g 
in

’ p
er

io
d 

Page 55



Q
ua

rte
rs

: 1
   2

   
3 

 4
 

EC
O

N
O

M
IC

 A
N

D
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

SE
R

VI
C

ES
 

 
Pe

rio
d:

 
Ap

ril
 2

00
3 

to
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

4 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T 

Q
U

A
R

TE
R

LY
 P

ER
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

R
EP

O
R

T 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A
 

Le
ad

 
O

ffi
ce

r 
20

02
/3

 
A

ct
ua

l 
Q

U
A

R
TE

R
LY

  C
U

M
U

LA
TI

VE
 T

O
TA

L 
Ye

ar
 

En
d 

Pr
oj

ec
tio

n.
 

ODPM 
2002/03 
Top qtr 

C
om

m
en

t 
C

od
e 

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

 

 
 

20
03

/4
 

Ta
rg

et
 

1 
2 

3 
4 

 
 

 

P2
c 

LP
I 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f p
rin

ci
pa

l 
ro

ad
s 

w
hi

ch
 n

ee
d 

m
aj

or
 

re
pa

irs
. 

  

D
av

id
 

C
oo

pe
r 

Bo
b 

St
oc

k 

 20
.6

%
 

 20
%

 
An

nu
al

 
C

al
cu

la
tio

n 
 

 
 17

.2
5%

 
 17

.2
5%

 
 

N
ow

 ta
ke

s 
ac

co
un

t o
f 

ne
tw

or
k 

ch
an

ge
s 

at
  

M
an

ve
rs

. 

Lo
ca

l 
LP

I 
1  

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f h
ig

hw
ay

 
in

sp
ec

tio
ns

 a
ch

ie
ve

d.
 

    

An
dy

 S
ha

w
 

 99
.4

%
 

 99
.5

%
 

 99
.9

%
 

 99
.5

%
 

 99
.2

%
 

 99
.4

%
 

 99
.4

%
 

 
 M

ar
gi

na
l r

ed
uc

tio
n 

of
 

0.
1%

 a
ga

in
st

 y
ea

r-e
nd

 
ta

rg
et

.  
Th

is
 w

as
 

at
tri

bu
te

d 
to

 th
e 

hi
gh

w
ay

 
in

sp
ec

to
rs

 h
av

in
g 

a 
du

al
 

ro
le

 o
f S

tre
et

pr
id

e 
lia

is
on

 
w

ith
 A

re
a 

As
se

m
bl

ie
s 

in
 

20
03

/4
. 

Lo
ca

l 
LP

I 
2 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
ch

ar
ge

ab
le

 in
sp

ec
tio

ns
 

of
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

r’s
 w

or
k 

ac
hi

ev
ed

. 
              

D
av

id
 

C
oo

pe
r 

 99
.9

4%
 

 10
0%

 
 11

5%
 

 10
9%

 
 10

7%
 

 10
0%

 
 10

0%
 

 
Ta

rg
et

 a
ch

ie
ve

d.
 

Page 56



Q
ua

rte
rs

: 1
   2

   
3 

 4
 

EC
O

N
O

M
IC

 A
N

D
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

SE
R

VI
C

ES
 

 
Pe

rio
d:

 
Ap

ril
 2

00
3 

to
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

4 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T 

Q
U

A
R

TE
R

LY
 P

ER
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

R
EP

O
R

T 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A
 

Le
ad

 
O

ffi
ce

r 
20

02
/3

 
A

ct
ua

l 
Q

U
A

R
TE

R
LY

  C
U

M
U

LA
TI

VE
 T

O
TA

L 
Ye

ar
 

En
d 

Pr
oj

ec
tio

n.
 

ODPM 
2002/03 
Top qtr 

C
om

m
en

t 
C

od
e 

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

 

 
 

20
03

/4
 

Ta
rg

et
 

1 
2 

3 
4 

 
 

 

Lo
ca

l 
LP

I 
3 

Th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f r
ep

or
ts

 
re

ce
iv

ed
 o

f b
lo

ck
ed

 
gu

llie
s 

pe
r 1

00
0 

gu
llie

s.
 

        

D
av

id
 

C
oo

pe
r 

   

 5 
 9 

 1.
73

 
 2.

62
 

 3.
32

 
 3.

95
 

 3.
95

 
 

Su
b 

to
ta

l o
f 1

64
 n

um
be

r 
re

po
rte

d 
bl

oc
ke

d 
gu

llie
s 

ou
t o

f a
 to

ta
l o

f 4
1,

54
3 

gu
llie

s.
 

Be
ne

fit
s 

be
in

g 
se

en
 o

f 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

cl
ea

ns
in

g 
fre

qu
en

cy
 o

ve
r l

as
t 3

 
ye

ar
s.

 
Th

er
e 

w
er

e 
al

so
 re

la
tiv

el
y 

fe
w

 h
ea

vy
 ra

in
 e

ve
nt

s 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

. 
    

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Lo
ca

l 
LP

I 
4 

Av
er

ag
e 

tim
e 

ta
ke

n 
to

 
re

pa
ir 

a 
st

re
et

 li
gh

tin
g 

fa
ul

t (
da

ys
). 

             

D
av

id
 

C
oo

pe
r 

 3.
44

 
 3 

 3.
14

 
 3.

14
 

 3.
25

 
 3.

29
 

 3.
29

 
 

Se
pt

em
be

r  
on

w
ar

ds
 s

aw
 

a 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 in
cr

ea
se

 in
 

fa
ul

t r
ep

or
ts

 d
ue

 to
 

la
un

ch
 o

f S
tre

et
pr

id
e.

  
D

el
ay

s 
in

 im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

ch
an

ge
 to

 w
or

ki
ng

 
pr

ac
tic

es
 h

av
e 

im
pa

ct
ed

 
on

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
to

w
ar

ds
 

ta
rg

et
. P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 is

 
ho

w
ev

er
 s

til
l a

n 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t o
n 

pr
ev

io
us

 
ye

ar
s 

de
sp

ite
 a

bo
ve

 
pr

es
su

re
s.

 
 

Page 57



Q
ua

rte
rs

: 1
   2

   
3 

 4
 

EC
O

N
O

M
IC

 A
N

D
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

SE
R

VI
C

ES
 

 
Pe

rio
d:

 
Ap

ril
 2

00
3 

to
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

4 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T 

Q
U

A
R

TE
R

LY
 P

ER
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

R
EP

O
R

T 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A
 

Le
ad

 
O

ffi
ce

r 
20

02
/3

 
A

ct
ua

l 
Q

U
A

R
TE

R
LY

  C
U

M
U

LA
TI

VE
 T

O
TA

L 
Ye

ar
 

En
d 

Pr
oj

ec
tio

n.
 

ODPM 
2002/03 
Top qtr 

C
om

m
en

t 
C

od
e 

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

 

 
 

20
03

/4
 

Ta
rg

et
 

1 
2 

3 
4 

 
 

 

Lo
ca

l 
LP

I 
5 

To
ta

l n
um

be
r o

f 
ac

tio
na

bl
e 

de
fe

ct
s 

on
 

ro
ad

s 
an

d 
pa

ve
m

en
ts

 
pe

r 1
00

 k
ilo

m
et

re
 o

f 
ne

tw
or

k 
in

sp
ec

te
d.

 

An
dy

 S
ha

w
 

 13
1.

7 
 12

0 
 14

0.
9 

 12
9.

2 
        

 11
0.

6 
 

 11
8.

0 
 11

8 
 

 
 D

es
pi

te
 th

e 
hi

gh
 1

st
 a

nd
 

2nd
 q

ua
rte

r f
ig

ur
es

, t
he

 
ac

tu
al

 o
ve

ra
ll 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 fo

r 2
00

3/
04

 
be

tte
re

d 
th

e 
ta

rg
et

. 

Lo
ca

l 
LP

I 
6 

Av
er

ag
e 

re
ce

pt
io

n 
w

ai
tin

g 
tim

e,
 s

am
pl

e 
on

e 
da

y 
pe

r w
ee

k.
 

 W
ith

 A
pp

oi
nt

m
en

ts
 

To
ta

l n
um

be
r 

 N
o 

at
te

nd
ed

 in
 1

0 
m

in
s 

 %
 o

f t
ot

al
 v

is
ito

rs
 s

ee
n 

in
 1

0 
m

in
s 

  W
ith

ou
t A

pp
oi

nt
m

en
ts

 
To

ta
l n

um
be

r 
 N

o 
at

te
nd

ed
 in

 1
0 

m
in

s 
 %

 o
f t

ot
al

 v
is

ito
rs

 s
ee

n 
in

 1
0 

m
in

s 
  

G
ra

ha
m

 
C

la
rk

 
 

    52
5 

  50
3 

 95
.8

%
 

    41
5 

 38
0 

 91
.6

%
 

         95
%

 
        90

%
 

 N
o 

da
ta

 
         82

.6
%

 
        62

.9
%

 

         98
%

 
        97

.4
%

 

         10
0%

 
        98

.2
%

 

 
 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 

im
pr

ov
ed

 th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 y
ea

r. 

Page 58



Q
ua

rte
rs

: 1
   2

   
3 

 4
 

EC
O

N
O

M
IC

 A
N

D
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

SE
R

VI
C

ES
 

 
Pe

rio
d:

 
Ap

ril
 2

00
3 

to
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

4 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T 

Q
U

A
R

TE
R

LY
 P

ER
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

R
EP

O
R

T 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A
 

Le
ad

 
O

ffi
ce

r 
20

02
/3

 
A

ct
ua

l 
Q

U
A

R
TE

R
LY

  C
U

M
U

LA
TI

VE
 T

O
TA

L 
Ye

ar
 

En
d 

Pr
oj

ec
tio

n.
 

ODPM 
2002/03 
Top qtr 

C
om

m
en

t 
C

od
e 

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

 

 
 

20
03

/4
 

Ta
rg

et
 

1 
2 

3 
4 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Lo
ca

l 
LP

I 
7 

C
us

to
m

er
 c

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
N

o 
 Ac

kn
ow

le
dg

ed
 in

 5
 d

ay
s 

 %
 o

f t
ot

al
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

 R
es

po
nd

ed
 in

 1
0 

da
ys

 
 %

 o
f t

ot
al

  a
ch

ie
ve

d 
 St

ag
e 

II  
Fu

ll 
re

sp
on

se
 3

0 
da

ys
 

 %
 o

f t
ot

al
  a

ch
ie

ve
d 

 

G
ra

ha
m

 
C

la
rk

 
 

61
 

     55
 

 90
.1

6%
 

        90
%

 

8  6    7  88
%

 
      

10
 

 2  10
0%

 
 2  92

%
 

 

16
 

 13
 

 81
%

 
 15

 
 94

%
 

12
 

 12
 

 10
0%

 
 12

 
 10

0%
 

        90
%

 
 

 
W

e 
ar

e 
no

w
 

ex
ce

ed
in

g 
th

e 
ta

rg
et

 
fo

r f
ul

l r
ep

lie
s.

 

Lo
ca

l 
8 LP

I 

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f w
in

te
r 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 ro
ut

es
 

gr
itt

ed
 w

ith
in

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
tim

e 
  

 D
av

id
 

C
oo

pe
r 

 

 94
.8

%
 

 95
%

 
 

N
o 

w
in

te
r 

ac
tio

n 
N

o 
w

in
te

r 
ac

tio
n 

 84
.6

%
 

 98
.5

%
 

 98
.5

%
 

 
In

ac
cu

ra
ci

es
 in

 Q
3 

da
ta

 
co

rre
ct

ed
. 

 

Lo
ca

l 
9 LP

I 

C
os

t p
er

 s
qu

ar
e 

ki
lo

m
et

re
 o

f k
ee

pi
ng

 
hi

gh
w

ay
s 

fo
r w

hi
ch

 th
e 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
is

 
re

sp
on

si
bl

e,
 c

le
ar

 o
f 

lit
te

r. 
   

 An
dy

 S
ha

w
 

   
 £

 
12

0,
84

8 
   

 £
 

12
9,

90
8 

£ 
29

,2
23

 
 

£ 
58

,4
45

 
£ 

87
,6

69
 

 
£ 

11
6,

89
1 

 
Ac

tu
al

 c
os

t i
s 

lo
w

er
 th

an
 

20
03

/0
4 

ta
rg

et
 b

ec
au

se
 

ad
di

tio
na

l f
un

di
ng

 is
 n

ot
 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
th

is
 fi

na
nc

ia
l 

ye
ar

.  

Page 59



Q
ua

rte
rs

: 1
   2

   
3 

 4
 

EC
O

N
O

M
IC

 A
N

D
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

SE
R

VI
C

ES
 

 
Pe

rio
d:

 
Ap

ril
 2

00
3 

to
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

4 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T 

Q
U

A
R

TE
R

LY
 P

ER
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

R
EP

O
R

T 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A
 

Le
ad

 
O

ffi
ce

r 
20

02
/3

 
A

ct
ua

l 
Q

U
A

R
TE

R
LY

  C
U

M
U

LA
TI

VE
 T

O
TA

L 
Ye

ar
 

En
d 

Pr
oj

ec
tio

n.
 

ODPM 
2002/03 
Top qtr 

C
om

m
en

t 
C

od
e 

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

 

 
 

20
03

/4
 

Ta
rg

et
 

1 
2 

3 
4 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Lo
ca

l 
D

TL
R

 
4B

 
10

 
LP

I 

(i)
En

er
gy

 c
os

ts
 p

er
 s

q 
m

 
G

IA
 (g

as
, e

le
ct

ric
ity

, o
il 

so
lid

 fu
el

) 
 (ii

) C
on

su
m

pt
io

n,
 in

  
kW

hr
s/

sq
 m

  
O

pe
ra

tio
na

l p
ro

p 
+ 

m
ar

ke
ts

 a
nd

 p
ub

lic
 

to
ile

ts
. 

 

Ar
no

ld
 

M
ur

ra
y 

 £6
.0

4/
m

² 
   14

5.
52

 
kh

h/
m

² 

     13
8.

24
 

kw
h/

m
² 

 £1
.3

2/
m

² 
   54

.1
0k

W
h/

m
² 

 

 £2
.5

5/
m

² 
   10

0.
81

 
kW

h/
m

² 

 £3
.9

0/
m

² 
   13

9.
51

 
kW

h/
m

² 

 £6
.0

2/
m

² 
   17

6.
45

 
kW

h/
m

² 

      

 
 (i)

Ta
rg

et
 n

ot
 s

et
 fo

r 
20

03
/0

4 
as

 
de

pe
nd

en
t o

n 
m

ar
ke

t 
fo

rc
es

. 
(ii

)T
ar

ge
t s

et
 o

n 
a 

sm
al

le
r g

ro
up

 o
f 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
as

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
w

as
 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fo

r p
ar

t o
f 

th
e 

pr
op

er
ty

 p
or

tfo
lio

. 
Ac

tu
al

s 
fo

r 2
00

3/
04

 
fo

r l
ar

ge
r n

um
be

r o
f 

bu
ild

in
gs

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
so

m
e 

hi
gh

 
co

ns
um

pt
io

n/
m

² 
bu

ild
in

gs
 w

hi
ch

 h
as

 
le

d 
to

 th
e 

ta
rg

et
 

be
in

g 
ex

ce
ed

ed
. 

Page 60



Q
ua

rte
rs

: 1
   2

   
3 

 4
 

EC
O

N
O

M
IC

 A
N

D
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

SE
R

VI
C

ES
 

 
Pe

rio
d:

 
Ap

ril
 2

00
3 

to
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

4 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T 

Q
U

A
R

TE
R

LY
 P

ER
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

R
EP

O
R

T 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A
 

Le
ad

 
O

ffi
ce

r 
20

02
/3

 
A

ct
ua

l 
Q

U
A

R
TE

R
LY

  C
U

M
U

LA
TI

VE
 T

O
TA

L 
Ye

ar
 

En
d 

Pr
oj

ec
tio

n.
 

ODPM 
2002/03 
Top qtr 

C
om

m
en

t 
C

od
e 

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

 

 
 

20
03

/4
 

Ta
rg

et
 

1 
2 

3 
4 

 
 

 

Lo
ca

l 
D

TL
R

 
4c

 
11

 
LP

I 

(i)
W

at
er

 c
os

ts
 p

er
 s

q 
m

 
G

IA
 

 (ii
) C

on
su

m
pt

io
n 

in
 

lit
re

s/
sq

 m
 

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l p

ro
p 

+ 
m

ar
ke

ts
 a

nd
 p

ub
lic

 
to

ile
ts

. 
         

Ar
no

ld
 

M
ur

ra
y 

 £1
.6

3/
m

² 
  71

6.
1 

ltr
s/

m
² 

    68
0.

3l
ts

/
m

² 

 £0
.2

3/
m

² 
  16

6 
lts

/m
² 

 

 £0
.5

9/
m

² 
  42

0.
94

lts
/

m
² 

 £0
.6

4/
m

² 
  54

5.
51

lts
/

m
² 

 £1
.5

9/
m

² 
  86

2.
5l

ts
/

m
² 

    72
7.

35
lt

s/
m

² 

 
 (i)

Ta
rg

et
 n

ot
 s

et
 fo

r 
20

03
/0

4 
as

 
de

pe
nd

en
t o

n 
m

ar
ke

t 
fo

rc
es

.  
(ii

) T
ar

ge
t s

et
 o

n 
a 

sm
al

le
r g

ro
up

 o
f 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
as

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
w

as
 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fo

r p
ar

t o
f 

th
e 

pr
op

er
ty

 p
or

tfo
lio

. 
Ac

tu
al

s 
fo

r 2
00

3/
04

 
fo

r l
ar

ge
r n

um
be

r o
f 

bu
ild

in
gs

 a
nd

 h
ig

he
r 

co
ns

um
pt

io
n 

du
e 

to
 a

 
w

ar
m

er
 th

an
 a

ve
ra

ge
 

su
m

m
er

 w
hi

ch
 h

as
 

le
d 

to
 th

e 
ta

rg
et

 
be

in
g 

ex
ce

ed
ed

. 
Lo

ca
l 

D
TL

R
 

4d
 

12
 

LP
I 

D
 8

 

(i)
 C

O
2 

em
is

si
on

s 
in

 
to

nn
es

 o
f c

ar
bo

n 
di

ox
id

e 
pe

r s
q 

m
  

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l p

ro
p 

+ 
m

ar
ke

ts
 a

nd
 p

ub
lic

 
to

ile
ts

. 
   

Ar
no

ld
 

M
ur

ra
y 

 0.
19

65
 

to
nn

es
/m

² 

 0.
18

67
 

to
nn

es
/m

²

 0.
00

7t
on

ne
s/

m
² 

 0.
01

23
 

to
nn

es
/m

² 

 0.
02

02
 

to
nn

es
/m

² 

 0.
16

78
 

to
nn

es
/m

² 

  
 

 Ta
rg

et
 A

ch
ie

ve
d 

he
av

ie
r f

os
si

l f
ue

l 
us

e 
du

rin
g 

he
at

in
g 

se
as

on
 a

 m
aj

or
 

co
nt

rib
ut

or
 to

 C
O

2 
em

is
si

on
s 

Page 61



Q
ua

rte
rs

: 1
   2

   
3 

 4
 

EC
O

N
O

M
IC

 A
N

D
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

SE
R

VI
C

ES
 

 
Pe

rio
d:

 
Ap

ril
 2

00
3 

to
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

4 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T 

Q
U

A
R

TE
R

LY
 P

ER
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

R
EP

O
R

T 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A
 

Le
ad

 
O

ffi
ce

r 
20

02
/3

 
A

ct
ua

l 
Q

U
A

R
TE

R
LY

  C
U

M
U

LA
TI

VE
 T

O
TA

L 
Ye

ar
 

En
d 

Pr
oj

ec
tio

n.
 

ODPM 
2002/03 
Top qtr 

C
om

m
en

t 
C

od
e 

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

 

 
 

20
03

/4
 

Ta
rg

et
 

1 
2 

3 
4 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Lo

ca
l 

13
 

LP
I 

w
as

 
BV

 8
5 

Th
e 

co
st

 p
er

 s
qu

ar
e 

ki
lo

m
et

re
 o

f k
ee

pi
ng

 
re

le
va

nt
 la

nd
 a

nd
 

re
le

va
nt

 h
ig

hw
ay

s 
fo

r 
w

hi
ch

 th
e 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
is

 re
sp

on
si

bl
e,

 c
le

ar
 o

f 
lit

te
r a

nd
 re

fu
se

. 
        

An
dy

 S
ha

w
 

 £4
8,

15
9 

 £5
0,

86
2 

 £1
1,

79
1 

 £2
3,

58
1 

 £3
5,

37
3 

 
 £4

7,
16

2 
 

   
 £

 
84

,7
43

 
 Ac

tu
al

 c
os

t i
s 

lo
w

er
 th

an
 

20
03

/0
4 

ta
rg

et
 b

ec
au

se
 

ad
di

tio
na

l f
un

di
ng

 is
 n

ot
 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
th

is
 fi

na
nc

ia
l 

ye
ar

.  

Lo
ca

l 
14

 
LP

I 

R
ot

he
rh

am
’s

 re
co

rd
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

in
g 

H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 

Sa
fe

ty
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

of
 

re
po

rta
bl

e 
in

ju
rie

s 
an

d 
 

da
ng

er
ou

s 
oc

cu
rre

nc
e’

s 
w

ith
in

 1
0 

w
or

ki
ng

 d
ay

s 
m

ea
su

re
d 

as
 a

 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f t

he
 to

ta
l. 

(R
ID

D
O

R
) R

ep
or

tin
g 

of
 

In
du

st
ria

l D
is

ea
se

s 
an

d 
D

an
ge

ro
us

 
O

cc
ur

re
nc

e’
s 

R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

. 
 

Jo
hn

 
St

ap
le

to
n.

 
 74

.2
%

 
 10

0%
 

 

 83
.9

3%
 

 85
.5

8%
 

 85
.1

7%
 

 85
.9

%
 

 87
%

 
 

By
 th

e 
fo

rth
 q

tr 
18

2 
w

er
e 

re
po

rte
d 

of
 

w
hi

ch
 3

4 
w

er
e 

la
te

 
su

bm
is

si
on

s.
 

Pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

ar
ea

s 
ar

e 
st

ill 
sl

ow
 w

ith
 

th
ei

r r
ep

or
ts

. 
 

Page 62



Q
ua

rte
rs

: 1
   2

   
3 

 4
 

EC
O

N
O

M
IC

 A
N

D
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

SE
R

VI
C

ES
 

 
Pe

rio
d:

 
Ap

ril
 2

00
3 

to
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

4 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T 

Q
U

A
R

TE
R

LY
 P

ER
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

R
EP

O
R

T 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A
 

Le
ad

 
O

ffi
ce

r 
20

02
/3

 
A

ct
ua

l 
Q

U
A

R
TE

R
LY

  C
U

M
U

LA
TI

VE
 T

O
TA

L 
Ye

ar
 

En
d 

Pr
oj

ec
tio

n.
 

ODPM 
2002/03 
Top qtr 

C
om

m
en

t 
C

od
e 

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

 

 
 

20
03

/4
 

Ta
rg

et
 

1 
2 

3 
4 

 
 

 

Lo
ca

l 
15

 
F5

 
LP

I 

%
 o

f g
ro

ss
 in

te
rn

al
 fl

oo
r-

sp
ac

e 
cl

as
si

fie
d 

as
 g

oo
d 

sa
tis

fa
ct

or
y 

ca
te

go
rie

s 
A-

D
 

 

Ar
no

ld
 

M
ur

ra
y 

D
ar

re
n 

M
er

rim
an

 

 60
%

 
 65

%
 

 62
%

 
 62

%
 

 63
%

 
 65

%
 

  
 

Ta
rg

et
 A

ch
ie

ve
d 

 

Lo
ca

l 
16

  
F6

 
LP

I 

R
ev

en
ue

 ru
nn

in
g 

co
st

s 
pe

r s
qu

ar
e 

m
et

re
 

      

Ar
no

ld
 

M
ur

ra
y 

D
ar

re
n 

M
er

rim
an

 
   

 £2
1.

76
/m

² 
 £2

0/
m

² 
 £5

.6
4/

m
² 

 £9
.8

5/
m

² 
 £1

7.
61

/m
² 

 £1
9.

97
/m

² 

  
 

Ta
rg

et
 A

ch
ie

ve
d 

As
 th

is
 re

lie
s 

on
 

fin
an

ci
al

 d
at

a 
th

is
 

m
ay

 ri
se

 s
lig

ht
ly

 
be

fo
re

 a
cc

ou
nt

s 
cl

os
e 

do
w

n 

N
EW

 - 
 

R
ep

la
c

in
g 

Lo
ca

l 
17

 

R
ot

he
rh

am
's

 A
nn

ua
l 

Av
er

ag
e 

Ea
rn

in
gs

 a
s 

a 
%

 o
f t

he
 G

B 
An

nu
al

 
Av

er
ag

e 
Ea

rn
in

gs
 (f

ul
l 

tim
e 

w
or

ke
rs

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
ov

er
tim

e)
 

a)
 W

or
kp

la
ce

 b
as

ed
 

co
m

pa
ris

on
 

b)
 R

es
id

en
ce

 b
as

ed
 

co
m

pa
ris

on
 

 

R
ic

ha
rd

 
Po

un
df

or
d 

Ja
ro

sl
av

a 
R

ile
y 

a)
 8

2.
8%

 
b)

 8
8.

1%
 

n/
a 

 
 

 
a)

 8
6.

8%
 

b)
 9

2.
7%

 
 

 
R

M
BC

 is
 s

tri
vi

ng
 to

 
in

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
av

er
ag

e 
ea

rn
in

gs
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 o

f R
ID

O
, E

C
&L

, 
R

es
ou

rc
es

 e
tc

. T
he

re
’s

 
be

en
 a

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t 

in
cr

ea
se

 o
f t

he
 a

ve
ra

ge
 

pa
y 

re
la

tiv
e 

to
 th

e 
na

tio
na

l p
ay

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

la
st

 y
ea

r. 

Lo
ca

l 
18

 
     **

**
**

**
 

R
ed

uc
e 

th
e 

ga
p 

be
tw

ee
n 

R
ot

he
rh

am
 a

nd
 

th
e 

na
tio

na
l a

ve
 in

 te
rm

s 
of

 w
or

ki
ng

 a
ge

 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

in
 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t. 

(8
 q

ua
rte

r 
av

er
ag

e)
 

**
**

**
**

**
**

**
**

**
**

**
**

**
* 

R
ic

ha
rd

 
Po

un
df

or
d 

Ja
ro

sl
av

a 
R

ile
y 

   **
**

**
**

**
**

* 

 2.
0%

 
 2.

3%
 

   **
**

**
**

**
 

 2.
0%

  
 n/

a 
   **

**
**

**
**

*  

 2.
1%

 
 2.

4%
 

   **
**

**
**

**
**

 

 2.
1%

 
 2.

4%
 

   **
**

**
**

**
*  

 2.
0%

 
 2.

2%
 

   **
**

**
**

**
*  

 XX
 

 1.
8%

 
   **

**
**

**
**

 

 2%
 

     **
**

**
**

*  

       **
**

**
**

 

R
aw

 d
at

a 
fro

m
 

O
N

S/
N

O
M

IS
 d

at
ab

as
e 

us
ed

 fo
r b

ot
h,

 b
ut

 in
 c

as
e 

of
 L

PS
A 

av
er

ag
ed

 o
nl

y 
fo

r 4
 q

ua
rte

rs
. 

 Th
e 

LP
SA

 ta
rg

et
 

ac
hi

ev
ed

. 
 

Page 63



Q
ua

rte
rs

: 1
   2

   
3 

 4
 

EC
O

N
O

M
IC

 A
N

D
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

SE
R

VI
C

ES
 

 
Pe

rio
d:

 
Ap

ril
 2

00
3 

to
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

4 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T 

Q
U

A
R

TE
R

LY
 P

ER
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

R
EP

O
R

T 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A
 

Le
ad

 
O

ffi
ce

r 
20

02
/3

 
A

ct
ua

l 
Q

U
A

R
TE

R
LY

  C
U

M
U

LA
TI

VE
 T

O
TA

L 
Ye

ar
 

En
d 

Pr
oj

ec
tio

n.
 

ODPM 
2002/03 
Top qtr 

C
om

m
en

t 
C

od
e 

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

 

 
 

20
03

/4
 

Ta
rg

et
 

1 
2 

3 
4 

 
 

 

LP
SA

 - 
Ta

rg
et

4 

Th
e 

sa
m

e 
in

di
ca

to
r –

 
m

ea
su

re
d 

by
 s

lig
ht

ly
 

di
ffe

re
nt

 m
et

ho
d.

 
Ba

se
lin

e 
– 

Sp
rin

g 
02

: 
2.

5%
  3

.1
%

 g
ap

 
                 

1.
9%

 
 2.

1%
 

Ta
rg

et
 

3/
20

06
 –

 
re

du
ce

 
th

e 
ga

p 
to

 
1.

5%
) 

 Ta
rg

et
 

3/
20

06
 –

 
re

du
ce

 
th

e 
ga

p 
by

 1
%

 

1.
5%

 
 1.

6%
 

1.
3%

 
 1.

5%
 

1.
2%

 
 1.

4%
 

XX
 

 1.
5%

 

 
 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

ha
s 

se
t u

p 
an

 E
m

pl
oy

ab
ilit

y 
G

ro
up

 
(m

ee
tin

g 
6-

w
ee

kl
y)

 w
ith

 
its

 lo
ca

l p
ar

tn
er

s 
(A

C
E,

 
Ph

eo
ni

x 
En

te
rp

ris
e,

 C
C

C
, 

So
ci

al
 In

cl
us

io
n 

U
ni

t e
tc

.) 
an

d 
ot

he
r C

ou
nc

il 
de

pa
rtm

en
ts

 (E
du

ca
tio

n)
. 

Th
e 

ai
m

 o
f t

hi
s 

gr
ou

p 
is

 to
 

ge
t m

or
e 

co
-o

rd
in

at
ed

 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 fo

r t
ac

kl
in

g 
th

is
 

im
po

rta
nt

 a
re

a 
of

 
re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
ac

tiv
ity

. 
 Pr

ev
io

us
 fi

gu
re

s 
w

er
e 

re
vi

se
d 

du
e 

to
 th

e 
O

N
S 

re
pl

ac
in

g 
al

l t
he

 d
at

as
et

s 
by

 n
ew

 s
er

ie
s 

re
-

w
ei

gh
te

d 
to

 th
e 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 
20

02
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
es

tim
at

es
. 

 
N

EW
 

(ta
ke

n 
ov

er
 

fro
m

 
C

or
po

r
at

e 
C

or
e)

 

Ec
on

om
ic

 In
ac

tiv
ity

 ra
te

 
R

ic
ha

rd
 

Po
un

df
or

d 
Ja

ro
sl

av
a 

R
ile

y 

(8
Q

)  
24

.5
%

 
  (4

Q
)  

24
.7

%
 

 (4
Q

) 
25

.2
%

 
 

(8
Q

) 
24

.2
%

 
     n/

a 

(8
Q

) 
24

.6
%

 
  (4

Q
)  

23
.6

%
 

 (4
Q

) 
24

.0
%

 

(8
Q

) 
24

.5
%

 
  (4

Q
)  

23
.1

%
 

 (4
Q

) 
23

.5
%

 

(8
Q

) 
24

.3
%

 
  (4

Q
)  

22
.8

%
 

 (4
Q

) 
23

.3
%

  

(8
Q

) 
XX

 
  (4

Q
)  

XX
 

 (4
Q

) 
23

.4
%

 
 

 
 

Ec
on

om
ic

 In
ac

tiv
ity

 ra
te

 
is

 c
al

cu
la

te
d 

as
 a

 %
 o

f 
w

or
ki

ng
 a

ge
 p

op
ul

at
io

n.
 

To
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

va
ria

nc
es

 
ro

llin
g 

av
er

ag
e 

ov
er

 la
st

 4
 

qu
ar

te
rs

 is
 u

se
d.

 
Pr

ev
io

us
 fi

gu
re

s 
w

er
e 

re
vi

se
d 

du
e 

to
 th

e 
O

N
S 

re
pl

ac
in

g 
al

l t
he

 d
at

as
et

s 
by

 n
ew

 s
er

ie
s 

re
-

Page 64



Q
ua

rte
rs

: 1
   2

   
3 

 4
 

EC
O

N
O

M
IC

 A
N

D
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

SE
R

VI
C

ES
 

 
Pe

rio
d:

 
Ap

ril
 2

00
3 

to
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

4 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T 

Q
U

A
R

TE
R

LY
 P

ER
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

R
EP

O
R

T 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A
 

Le
ad

 
O

ffi
ce

r 
20

02
/3

 
A

ct
ua

l 
Q

U
A

R
TE

R
LY

  C
U

M
U

LA
TI

VE
 T

O
TA

L 
Ye

ar
 

En
d 

Pr
oj

ec
tio

n.
 

ODPM 
2002/03 
Top qtr 

C
om

m
en

t 
C

od
e 

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

 

 
 

20
03

/4
 

Ta
rg

et
 

1 
2 

3 
4 

 
 

 w
ei

gh
te

d 
to

 th
e 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 
20

02
 p

op
ul

at
io

n 
es

tim
at

es
. 

In
 th

is
 in

di
ca

to
r 

R
ot

he
rh

am
 is

 s
til

l w
el

l 
be

hi
nd

 th
e 

na
tio

na
l l

ev
el

 
w

hi
ch

 s
ta

nd
s 

lo
ng

-te
rm

 a
t 

ar
ou

nd
 2

1%
.  

C
ou

nc
il’s

 E
m

pl
oy

ab
ilit

y 
G

ro
up

 a
ct

io
ns

 (s
ee

 
C

om
m

en
t i

n 
‘L

oc
al

 1
8’

) 
ar

e 
ai

m
ed

 a
ls

o 
at

 th
e 

Ec
on

om
ic

 In
ac

tiv
ity

 is
su

e.
 

Lo
ca

l 
19

 
B3

 
LP

I 

a)
 

In
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

st
oc

k 
of

 V
AT

 re
gi

st
er

ed
 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 in

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h.

 
b)

 
In

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r o
f n

ew
 V

AT
 

re
gi

st
ra

tio
ns

 p
er

 
10

,0
00

 h
ea

d 
of

 
R

ot
he

rh
am

 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

 

R
ic

ha
rd

 
Po

un
df

or
d 

Ja
ro

sl
av

a 
R

ile
y 

20
01

 
 41

75
 

 43
85

 
 19

 
 

  42
30

 
 n/

a 
 19

 

 An
nu

al
 

fig
ur

e 

 
 

 Ac
tu

al
 

20
02

 
 44

45
 

 19
 

 
 

AN
N

U
AL

 
PE

R
FO

R
M

AN
C

E 
M

EA
SU

R
E 

– 
Sm

al
l 

Bu
si

ne
ss

 S
er

vi
ce

 re
vi

se
d 

19
94

-2
00

1 
da

ta
 a

nd
 

re
le

as
ed

 2
00

2 
up

da
te

. 
D

ue
 to

 th
is

 re
vi

si
on

 b
ot

h 
th

e 
ac

tu
al

s 
an

d 
ta

rg
et

s 
m

us
t h

av
e 

be
en

 c
ha

ng
ed

. 

Lo
ca

l 
21

 
B1

 
LP

I 

Va
ca

nc
y 

ra
te

 fo
r 

in
du

st
ria

l a
nd

 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 p

ro
pe

rty
 

An
nu

al
 

flo
or

sp
ac

e 
  

R
ic

ha
rd

 
Po

un
df

or
d 

Ja
ro

sl
av

a 
R

ile
y 

 9.
85

 
 9%

 
 

 An
nu

al
 

fig
ur

e 

 
 

 10
.5

%
 

 
 

AN
N

U
AL

 
PE

R
FO

R
M

AN
C

E 
M

EA
SU

R
E 

– 
Th

e 
in

cr
ea

se
 is

 d
ue

 in
 th

e 
m

ai
n 

to
 e

xc
ep

tio
na

l 
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
s:

 1
) 

C
om

pa
ny

 li
qu

id
at

io
n 

in
 

Ba
rb

ot
 H

al
l, 

le
av

in
g 

Page 65



Q
ua

rte
rs

: 1
   2

   
3 

 4
 

EC
O

N
O

M
IC

 A
N

D
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

SE
R

VI
C

ES
 

 
Pe

rio
d:

 
Ap

ril
 2

00
3 

to
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

4 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T 

Q
U

A
R

TE
R

LY
 P

ER
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

R
EP

O
R

T 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A
 

Le
ad

 
O

ffi
ce

r 
20

02
/3

 
A

ct
ua

l 
Q

U
A

R
TE

R
LY

  C
U

M
U

LA
TI

VE
 T

O
TA

L 
Ye

ar
 

En
d 

Pr
oj

ec
tio

n.
 

ODPM 
2002/03 
Top qtr 

C
om

m
en

t 
C

od
e 

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

 

 
 

20
03

/4
 

Ta
rg

et
 

1 
2 

3 
4 

 
 

 13
,0

00
 s

qm
; 2

) u
ni

t u
nd

er
 

re
fu

rb
is

hm
en

t f
or

 
M

ar
ks

&S
pe

nc
er

 in
 

Pa
rk

ga
te

 R
et

ai
l W

or
ld

, 
5,

00
0 

sq
m

; 3
) A

dw
ic

k 
Pa

rk
 M

an
ve

rs
 –

 n
ew

 
In

no
va

te
 u

ni
ts

 n
ot

 y
et

 
oc

cu
pi

ed
 (c

om
pl

et
ed

 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

), 
5,

00
0 

sq
m

; 4
) G

en
es

is
 P

ar
k,

 
ne

w
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f 
2,

50
0 

sq
m

. (
Si

nc
e 

th
e 

su
rv

ey
 d

at
e,

 P
ar

kg
at

e 
an

d 
G

en
es

is
 a

re
 n

ow
 

oc
cu

pi
ed

. B
ar

bo
t H

al
l h

as
 

un
de

rg
on

e 
ex

te
ns

iv
e 

re
fu

rb
is

hm
en

t.)
 

      
Lo

ca
l 

22
 

B2
 

LP
I 

a)
 

Va
ca

nc
y 

ra
te

 o
f a

ll 
bo

ro
ug

hs
’ t

ow
n 

ce
nt

re
 p

re
m

is
es

 
(n

um
be

r o
f v

ac
an

t 
un

its
) 

b)
 

 V
ac

an
cy

 ra
te

 o
f 

R
ot

he
rh

am
 to

w
n 

ce
nt

re
 p

re
m

is
es

 
(n

um
be

r o
f v

ac
an

t  

R
ic

ha
rd

 
Po

un
df

or
d 

Ja
ro

sl
av

a 
R

ile
y 

 20
02

 
 7.

6%
 

  11
.1

%
 

 20
03

 
 7.

5%
 

  10
.5

%
 

 An
nu

al
 

fig
ur

e 

 
 

 20
03

 
Ac

tu
al

 
 7.

5%
 

  9.
7%

 

 
 

AN
N

U
AL

 
PE

R
FO

R
M

AN
C

E 
M

EA
SU

R
E 

– 
Th

e 
an

nu
al

 
su

rv
ey

 w
as

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t i

n 
Au

tu
m

n 
20

03
. T

he
 

ta
rg

et
s 

w
er

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 in

 
bo

th
 a

) a
nd

 b
) 

Page 66



Q
ua

rte
rs

: 1
   2

   
3 

 4
 

EC
O

N
O

M
IC

 A
N

D
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

SE
R

VI
C

ES
 

 
Pe

rio
d:

 
Ap

ril
 2

00
3 

to
 M

ar
ch

 2
00

4 
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T 

Q
U

A
R

TE
R

LY
 P

ER
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

R
EP

O
R

T 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
A

PP
EN

D
IX

 A
 

Le
ad

 
O

ffi
ce

r 
20

02
/3

 
A

ct
ua

l 
Q

U
A

R
TE

R
LY

  C
U

M
U

LA
TI

VE
 T

O
TA

L 
Ye

ar
 

En
d 

Pr
oj

ec
tio

n.
 

ODPM 
2002/03 
Top qtr 

C
om

m
en

t 
C

od
e 

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

 

 
 

20
03

/4
 

Ta
rg

et
 

1 
2 

3 
4 

 
 

 

un
its

) 
  A

la
n 

Pl
at

t  
Q

ua
rt

er
ly

M
ar

oo
n.

do
c 

Page 67



GEN255 (Sep 03) 

ROTHERHAM METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 
 
1. Meeting: Economic and Development Services matters 
 
2. Date: 7th June 2004 
 
3. Title: B6060 Laughton Common Road Bridge 
 
4. Originating Officer :- Roger Bradley, Engineer, Streetpride Service – Ext 
2979 – roger.bradley@rotherham.gov.uk 
 
 Divisional Manager :- Dave Popple, Acting Schemes and Partnerships 
Manager, Streetpride Service – Ext 2950 – david.popple@rotherham.gov.uk 
 
5. Issue 
 
To inform the Cabinet Member and his advisors of a proposal to transfer 
ownership of Laughton Common Road Bridge from Rail Property Ltd. to 
R.M.B.C. and to strengthen the bridge by the provision of an armco type subway 
structure underneath it, and to seek approval.  
 
 
6. Summary 
 
To seek approval for the transfer of ownership of the aforementioned bridge, and 
for strengthening by the aforementioned means. 
 
 
7. Clearance/Consultation 
 
The proposed transfer of ownership and scheme have been discussed with and 
agreed by the Integrated Development Plan Section of the Chief Executive’s 
Office (regarding the impact of the scheme on the Thurcroft to Dinnington Mineral 
Line Project), by Rail Property Ltd. and by Railway Paths Ltd.  
 
8. Timing 
 
It is anticipated that the scheme will be implemented during 2004/05 
 
9. Background 
 
Laughton Common Road Bridge carries the B6060 over the now disused 
Thurcroft to Dinnington mineral line and is on the route of the Wickersley to 
Worksop Quality Bus Corridor.  The bridge is owned by Rail Property Ltd. and is 
leased to Railway Paths Ltd. 
 

Agenda Item 5Page 68



GEN255 (Sep 03) 

The bridge has been assessed as part of the National Bridge Assessment and 
Strengthening Programme. The assessed capacity is less than the self weight of 
the bridge.  R.M.B.C. as Highway Authority are liable for the full cost of the 
required strengthening works.  Rail Property Ltd. / Railway Paths Ltd. are still 
responsible for the maintenance of the existing bridge, but R.M.B.C. would be 
responsible for the maintenance of the strengthening works.  
 
The most cost effective method of strengthening the bridge would be to infill 
underneath it.  However, the proposed Thurcroft to Dinnington Mineral Line 
Project is to convert the disused line into a cycle route / bridleway.  Therefore it is 
proposed to strengthen the bridge by providing an armco type structure 
underneath it to accommodate the proposed cycle route / bridleway and to infill 
between the two structures. 
 
Rail Property Ltd. / Railway Paths Ltd. have offered the Council a commuted sum 
of £20,000 if the ownership is transferred to R.M.B.C.    
 
10. Argument 
 
Taking over the ownership of the existing bridge and its future maintenance 
liabilities would give the Council more control of the Wickersley to Worksop 
Quality Bus Corridor.  It would mean that the Council could procure the design 
and construction of the strengthening works by its own preferred methods and to 
suit the proposed Mineral Line Project.  The strengthening works could also 
accommodate future highway improvements and changes in loading.  The 
proposed armco type structure should require low maintenance.    
 
11. Risks and Uncertainties 
 
If the bridge is not strengthened it may become necessary to impose weight 
restrictions, with subsequent high levels of disruption to the Quality Bus Corridor. 
 
If the Mineral Line Project does not go ahead the cheaper option of strengthening 
by infilling under the bridge could have been implemented and not the more 
expensive scheme to provide an armco type subway structure.   
 
 
12. Finance 
 
Funding is available for the balance of the cost of the strengthening works in the 
Local Transport Plan Capital Programme for 2004/05.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 69



GEN255 (Sep 03) 

13. Sustainability 
 
The proposals are in line with the Council’s policy of encouraging a modal shift 
from the private motor car to sustainable transport.  The implementation of the 
proposals will help to ensure that access to facilities, services, goods and other 
people is not achieved at the expense of the environment or is limited to those 
with cars.  In addition it will help promote sustainable transport and green 
tourism.   
 
14. Wards Affected 
 
Ward 18 – St Johns 
Ward 21 – Thurcroft and Whiston 
 
 
15. References 
 
Appendix A – Location Plan – attached. 
 
16. Presentation 
 
Maintenance of the Wickersley to Worksop Quality Bus Corridor and support of 
sustainable modes of travel. 
 
17. Recommendations 
 
It be resolved that: 
 
a) The ownership of B6060 Laughton Common Road Bridge be 

transferred to Rotherham M.B.C. 
 
b) The bridge be strengthened by the provision of an armco type                        
    subway structure. 
 
 

Page 70



ROTHERHAM METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 
 
1. Economic and Development Services Matters 

 
2.  17 May 2004 

 
3. Petition - Parking on Sitwell Drive, Broom 

 
4. Originating Officer – Katie Brook, Streetpride Technician – Highway and Traffic 

Group, Streetpride Service katie.brook@rotherham.gov.uk ext.2959 
 

  Divisional Manager: - David Popple, Acting Schemes and Partnerships Manager, 
Streetpride Service david.popple@rotherham. gov.uk, ext.2950 

 
 5.  Issue 

To consider the request for a residents parking scheme by some residents of Sitwell 
Drive, Broom. 

 
6. Summary 

On 3 March 2004, the Streetpride Service received a petition containing 13 signatures 
requesting a residents parking scheme on Sitwell Drive which has now been fully 
investigated. On 7 January 2002 Cabinet Member resolved not to progress any further 
residents' parking schemes until a solution to the current enforcement issue is 
determined.  
 

7. Clearance/Consultation 
Ward Members have been consulted and have been made aware of the current 
issues. Councillor S Smith replied, supporting a residents parking scheme on Sitwell 
Drive however until the current enforcement issue is resolved the request for a 
residents parking scheme cannot be acceded to. 
 

8. Timing 
There are no time implications 
 

9. Background 
On the 3 March 2004 some of the residents of Sitwell Drive petitioned the Council to 
express their concerns over indiscriminate parking problems associated with visitors 
and employees of Rotherham General Hospital. The petition reported to the Cabinet 
Member on 15 March 2004 and is attached as Appendix 'A'. 
 
The petitioners have requested the introduction of a residents parking scheme to help 
ameliorate the problems. Requests for residents parking schemes cannot be 
investigated until the enforcement issue has been resolved in Rotherham. 
  

10. Argument 
The petitioners have requested a residents parking scheme so that they can come 
and go freely without hospital workers/visitors taking up parking spaces and be able to 
park within a reasonable distance of their homes. 
 
It is likely that due to its proximity to Rotherham General Hospital that visitors and staff 
will park on nearby roads, which may adversely affect the opportunities for residents to 
park. 
 

Agenda Item 6Page 71



The Council is exploring alternative ways of providing the enforcement of new 
residents parking schemes and further consideration will be given to these requests 
when these investigations are concluded.  
 

11. Risks and Uncertainties 
The Streetpride Service may continue to receive requests for residents parking 
schemes in this area. 
 

  12. Finance 
If no action is taken there are no financial implications associated with this report. 
 

 13. Sustainability 
There are no sustainability issues to be considered. 
 

14. Wards Affected 
Ward 7 

 

15. References 
Petition - Appendix 'A' 

 
16. Presentation 

Requests for a residents parking scheme on Sitwell Drive cannot be investigated until 
either the Police agree to enforce schemes or parking enforcement is decriminalised 
in Rotherham allowing the Council to undertake the enforcement. 
 

17. Recommendations 
 

It be resolved that 
 
i) The petition to request a residents parking scheme not be 

acceded to; 
 
 

ii) The lead petitioner be informed of the decision and the reasons 
why. 

 
 

iii) Ward members are informed accordingly. 

Page 72



ROTHERHAM METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 
 
1. Economic and Development Services Matters 

 
2. 9 June 2004 

 
3. Cherry Tree Road, Wales - Proposed Traffic Calming Scheme 

 
4. Originating Officer – Katie Brook, Streetpride Technician – Highway and Traffic 

Group, Streetpride Service katie.brook@rotherham.gov.uk ext.2959 
 

  Divisional Manager: - David Popple, Acting Schemes and Partnerships Manager, 
Streetpride Service david.popple@rotherham. gov.uk, ext.2950 

 
 5.  Issue 

To inform members of a proposal to introduce traffic calming and a 20mph speed limit 
in the areas of, Fir Tree Drive, Green Oak Drive, Almond Tree Road and Cherry Tree 
Road, Wales. 

 
6. Summary 

The scheme will involve the construction of ten road humps within the area, alterations 
to the junction mouth of Cherry Tree Road with School Road and the introduction of a 
20 miles per hour speed limit. 
 

7. Clearance/Consultation 
It is proposed to consult with the Emergency Services, South Yorkshire Passenger 
Transport Executive, Chamber of Trade, Local Residents, Local Ward Members and 
Parish Council when approval is given to proceed with the scheme. 
 

8. Timing 
It is proposed that the scheme will be carried out during this financial year. 
 

9. Background 
Local residents and community groups have requested that the Council introduce 
measures to counter vehicles rat running through the Cherry Tree Estate as a means 
of bypassing the junction of the A618 Mansfield Road and the B6059 School Road. 
  

10. Argument 
In order to reduce the number of vehicles using the Cherry Tree Road estate as a 
means of bypassing traffic queues at the crossroad junction of the A618 Mansfield 
Road and the B6059 School Road, it is proposed to traffic calm Fir Tree Drive, Green 
Oak Drive, Almond Tree Road and Cherry Tree Road. By introducing road humps on 
these roads it will enable the existing 30 miles per hour speed limit to be reduced to 20 
miles per hour, therefore improving the safety of all road users, in particular children. 
 
By tightening up the junction of Cherry Tree Road and School Road this will reduce 
the opportunity for drivers to carry out U-turns at this location, therefore reducing 
conflict with other road users. 
 

11. Risks and Uncertainties 
The estimated cost is dependent upon the need to divert Statutory Undertakers' 
apparatus; this is expected to be minimal. 
 

Agenda Item 7Page 73



  12. Finance 
The scheme is estimated to cost approximately £14,000. Funding is available from the 
Local Transport Plan Integrated Transport Capital Programme for 2004/2005.  
 

 13. Sustainability 
The proposal is in line with the Council's Policy of improving road safety. 
 

14. Wards Affected 
Ward 13 

 

15. References 
The extent and location of the proposed works are indicated on Drawing Number 
129/CTR. 
South Yorkshire Local Transport Plan. 

 
16. Presentation 

The proposals should reduce rat running and vehicle speeds, improve the local 
environment and improve pedestrian safety in the area. 
 

17. Recommendations 
 

It be resolved that: 
 

(i)  Necessary consultations be undertaken regarding the proposals 
 
(ii)  Authority be given for the detailed design to be carried out, and 
subject to no objections being received the scheme be implemented. 
 
(iii)  The scheme be funded from the Local Transport Plan Integrated 
Transport Capital Programme for 2004/05.  

Page 74



ROTHERHAM METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 
 
1. Meeting: Economic and Development Services matters 
 
2.  Date: 09 June 2004. 
 
3. Title: Rotherham to Thrybergh Quality Bus Corridor 

   Report on the Public Involvement Programme 
 
4. Originating Officer:  
Ian Taylor, Streetpride Service, ext 2968 ian.taylor@rotherham.gov.uk 
 
Designated Manager: David Popple, Acting Schemes and Partnerships Manager, 
Streetpride Service, ext 2950 david.popple@rotherham.gov.uk  
 
5.  Issue 
To inform Members of the report received from ‘Counter Context’ who were 
commissioned by the SYPTE to assist with the public information exercise for the 
Rotherham-Thrybergh Quality Bus Corridor. 
 
6.  Summary 
The report details the various ways in which the information about the bus corridor 
proposals was conveyed to the public and summarises the feedback from the 
exercise. The consultant’s report will be available in the Members Room prior to the 
meeting. 
 
7.  Clearance/Consultation 
Members endorsed the preliminary proposals on 28 July 2003, when it was also 
resolved that detailed design and necessary consultations be undertaken and a 
further report be submitted to seek approval of the final detailed designs. 
 
8.  Timing 
It is anticipated that the highway infrastructure and bus stop improvements will be 
implemented during 2004/05 and 2005/06 financial years. 
 
9. Background 
The proposals have previously been agreed by members of the Rotherham to 
Thrybergh Quality Bus Corridor working group (including the SYPTE, First Group 
and South Yorkshire Police) and the microsimulation model detailing the proposals 
was presented to local Ward Members in Wards 8, 9 and 15. 
 
As one of five priority corridors identified in the South Yorkshire Local Transport Plan 
(LTP) 2001 to 2006 the A630 from Rotherham to Thrybergh forms the main link 
between Rotherham and Doncaster, running through the communities of Eastwood, 
Dalton and Thrybergh.  
 
10. Argument 
The report is simply factual and details the ways in which the proposals were 
conveyed to the public and itemises the various responses made. There are no 
recommendations or suggestions within the report.  
 
11. Risks and Uncertainties 
The proposed measures include the introduction of bus lanes, which require the 
procurement of Traffic Regulation Orders (TROs). In order to secure the appropriate 
TROs a statutory consultation process is required to be undertaken. This involves 
consultation with bodies such as the Police, Fire and Ambulance services. Any of 
these, or members of the public, could object to the proposals, which would delay 

Agenda Item 9Page 75



the projects, or may result in some amendments to the detailed design of the 
proposals. One of the schemes identified in the report requires the acquisition of 
land, which is in private ownership. If the landowners are reluctant to negotiate, this 
could also delay the scheme.  
 
12. Finance 
The funding for the proposals is from monies made available from the South 
Yorkshire Passenger Transport Executive in respect of bus stop improvements, and 
the Council from the Integrated Transport Capital Programme for 2003/04 and 
2004/05 in respect of highway infrastructure improvements.  
 
13. Sustainability 
The proposals are in line with the Councils policy of improving road safety and 
encouraging a modal shift from the private motor car to public transport. 
 
14. Wards Affected 
Ward No. 8 Central 
Ward No. 9 Dalton, Hooton Roberts, and Thrybergh 
Ward No. 15 Park 
 
15. References 
Report to Cabinet Member 28 July 2003 – Minute no. 75 refers. 
A630 Rotherham to Thrybergh Quality Bus Corridor Final Report – Appendix A. 
South Yorkshire Local Transport Plan. 
 
16. Presentation 
The development of the Quality Bus Corridor aims to influence and change modal 
split by promoting choice and improve road safety along the corridor. 
 
17. Recommendations 

 
 It be resolved that the report regarding the Public Involvement 
 Programme for the Rotherham – Thrybergh Quality Bus 
 Corridor be received and endorsed. 
 
 
   

Page 76



 
 

 
ECONOMIC AND DEVELOPMENT SERVICES MATTERS 

 
7 June 2004 
 
CARRIAGEWAY SURFACE DRESSING : REVIEW OF WORKS UNDERTAKEN IN 
2003 AND PROGRAMMED WORK FOR 2004. 
 
Originating Officer :  Robert Stock, Network Management Principal Engineer 

Tel. Ext. 2928. E:mail bob.stock@rotherham.gov.uk 
 
Designated Manager:  Dave Cooper, Network Manager 
    Tel. Ext 2828, E:mail david.cooper@rotherham.gov.uk 
 
Issue 
To make Cabinet Member and Advisors aware of the benefits of surface dressing as 
a maintenance treatment, report on the 2003 programme undertaken and proposals 
for 2004. 
 
Summary 
There are a number of benefits from the use of surface dressing as part of a 
balanced programme of highway maintenance. The programme was successfully 
delivered in 2003 and further sites are programmed for Summer 2004. 
 
Clearance/Consultation 
Signage and leaflet delivery are both used to give local residents and other road 
users advance notice that work is to be undertaken. 
 
Timing 
The nature of the surface treatment dictates that work should be undertaken in 
relatively warm and dry conditions and so work is normally limited to the period 
between May and October.  
 
Background 
The application of surface dressings to carriageways is one of the oldest forms of 
maintenance treatment. In its most basic form it consists of a layer of bitumenous 
binder sprayed onto the road surface which is followed by a layer of stone chippings 
that are then rolled to ensure their adhesion. It has been used successfully on all 
classes of road from minor rural lanes to motorways. 
 
Various surface dressing techniques are now available that can be used to improve 
the longevity of treatments applied to different existing surface materials and 
subjected to a variety of traffic types. Examples of these include the use of 
sophisticated emulsion binders, “racking-in” using chippings of differing nominal 
sizes and the use of “pad coats” of small chippings where the surface to be treated is 
soft. 
 

RROOTTHHEERRHHAAMM  BBOORROOUUGGHH CCOOUUNNCCIILL –– RREEPPOORRTT TTOO MMEEMMBBEERRSS  

Agenda Item 10Page 77



The original code of good practice for Highway Maintenance – The Marshall Report 
– stated that the object of surface dressing “…is to seal porous surfaces against the 
entry of water, to bind surfaces at the onset of deterioration due to loss of stone etc., 
to delay further deterioration or to restore loss of skidding resistance (which may be 
due to loss of texture depth, polishing of the aggregate or fatting-up”. 
 
Surface dressing can also be applied to footway surfaces although this is usually 
restricted to little used rural footways. 
 
Surface dressing treatments are designed in accordance with ROAD NOTE 39 – 
“Design Guide for Road Surface Dressing”, published by the Transport Research 
Laboratory. 
 
Argument 
 
Why do we use it? 
Surface Dressing is the most cost-effective form of carriageway maintenance 
available. It serves to extend the life of the road structure and ensure the safety of 
users through the restoration of adequate skid resistance.  In addition to these 
benefits it also serves a cosmetic purpose in restoring a uniform appearance to a 
patched road surface. 
 
Correctly applied a surface dressing can be expected to perform satisfactorily for 
about 7 years. 
 
Only polymer modified binders are now used in Rotherham giving the advantage of 
increased chipping adhesion during the early part of the dressings’ life. The Council’s 
contract requires the contractor to specify the treatment to be applied on a site by 
site basis and the work quality is guaranteed. Any areas of failure are rectified during 
the following season. 
 
What can go wrong? 
The main problems experienced with surface dressing relate to the premature loss of 
applied chippings. Chipping loss can be due to: 
• Defective binder or dirty chippings 
• Incorrect specification for surface hardness 
• Laying faults such as blocked jets on the spray equipment 
• Scrubbing under traffic at stress sites like junctions and factory entrances 
• Lightly held chippings can shed due to frost action especially in areas that carry 

little traffic like parking areas 
 
Less frequently seen early in the life of the surface dressing treatment is the “fatting 
up” of the surface due to excess binder on the surface. This more commonly occurs 
during hot periods and is not solely confined to surface dressed roads. Minor fatting 
will wear off under traffic use but can result in black stripes along the carriageway. 
 
Because emulsion binders are now universally used heavy rain during or shortly 
following application can result in almost total failure. 
 
 

Page 78



What are the alternatives? 
There are three alternatives to carriageway surface dressing: 
(i) Microasphalt surfacing 

Costs are double that of surface dressing whilst only providing about the 
same life extension. The main benefits of this hand applied surfacing are 
achieved through the lack of loose surface chippings that need to be swept 
from the surface. For this reason microasphalt is the chosen treatment for 
short cul de sacs where effective dressing is difficult and loose chippings are 
more frequently a problem. 

 
(ii) Thin Wearing Course 

A thinner surface than conventional surfacing varying from 15 – 25 mm in 
thickness. These surfacings are in general terms 4-6 times the cost of a 
surface dressing treatment. Because of the thickness of material laid this is 
not a repeatable treatment without removal of previously laid material. They a 
primarily used to correct surface defects at sites where the use of a surface 
dressing is not advised due to site factors such as a high number of turning 
movements or on bends. They are also used on sites where excess binder 
from previous treatments would make further applications of surface dressing 
inadvisable. Many of the most suitable sites are on the rural classified 
network. The advantage over thinner surface treatments is that it will regulate 
uneven surfaces. The anticipated life of a treatment is about 10 years. 

 
A range of proprietary versions of both the above surface treatment types has been 
developed claiming for themselves a range of different attributes. In conjunction with 
our suppliers the Council has developed treatments in both categories that can be 
laid by our own construction teams. 

 
(iii) Surface course replacement. 

Conventional carriageway resurfacing costs about 7 times that of a surface 
dressing treatment. It involves the removal of the old surface layers and the 
laying of new material appropriate to the site and traffic carried. The structural 
life is expected to be about 20 years although another form of surface 
treatment, such as dressing, would be required during this period. In reality 
the underlying strength of the road construction is critical to the life obtained 
and resurfacing without replacement of the binder course (basecourse) at the 
same time is now rarely undertaken. 

 
Review of the 2003 treatment programme. 
During preparation of this report a majority of the roads treated with surface 
dressings in 2003 were inspected following the winter period. A table of roads 
treated is attached.  Although a number of the sites exhibited minor local faults of the 
types described above they were mainly due to traffic stress applied shortly after 
application. The general standard of the resultant surfaces is very good. 
 
Problems were only reported by members of the public at one site treated during 
2003, Lathe Road at Whiston. The site exhibits some patchy chipping loss and a 
length of ribbon failure at the spray joint. Remedial action has been agreed with the 
contractor. Minor ribbon failure of similar type was observed on New Road, Firbeck. 
 

Page 79



Proposed programme for 2004. 
The proposed programme for this Summer is of similar size to last years programme. 
Details of the roads be treated are attached. 
A programme of microasphalt surfacing to urban cul de sacs is also being 
undertaken as part of the surface treatment programme and three sites are to 
receive thin wearing courses as part of the LTP maintenance programme. 
 
All of the available surface treatments play a role in providing road maintenance in 
an efficient and effective way. 
 
Risks and Uncertainties 
If road surfaces are not treated with the application of a surface dressing or other 
appropriate surface treatment at key points during their cycle of ageing then 
deterioration can become accelerated. This will lead to very much more costly 
remedial treatment becoming necessary and adding to the maintenance backlog 
which already exists in Rotherham. 
 
Finance 
Funding for the programme is provided through the surface treatment allocation of 
the Streetpride Revenue Budget and also from the Capital allocation from the LTP 
Settlement for Maintenance. 
 
Sustainability 
The programme is undertaken by a local contractor, based at Hellaby.  
 
Surface dressing, as the thinnest type of surface treatment, uses considerably less 
primary aggregates than alternative treatments. 
 
Loose stone chippings swept from treated roads are not disposed of but are washed 
for re-use. 
 
Wards Affected 
All 
 
References 
The Marshall Report (Report of the Committee on Highway Maintenance, 1970) 
Road Note 39 “Design Guide for Road Surface Dressing” – 3rd Edition, TRL, 1992 
Surface Dressing Undertaken during 2003 (attached) 
Carriageway Surface Dressing Proposed Programme – 2004 (attached) 
 
Presentation 
An efficient and effective road maintenance service is sought using a range of 
alternative treatments among which the application of surface dressing treatments 
will continue to play a key part. 
 
Recommendations 
 
That it be resolved to note the report. 
 

Page 80



 
 
1. Economic and Development Services Matters   

  
2. 9th June 2004   

 
3. SCEPTRE AWARDS 2004 – Town Centre Manager of the Year Category   

 
   4.   Originating Officer –  

Julie Roberts, Town Centre, Tourism and Markets Manager, 
julie.roberts@rotherham.gov.uk – Ext. 6853 

 
5.  Issue 

          To announce the successful application to the finals of Town Centre Manager of the 
 Year 2004. 

 
6. Summary 

Julie Roberts, Town Centre, Tourism & Markets Manager has been nominated for  
the 2004 SCEPTRE Awards organised by the national property and retail publication 
“Shopping Centre”.  The application was shortlisted to attend the finals in the UK for 
the category of  “Town Centre Manager of the Year.”  The application is attached in 
Appendix 1 & 2. 

 
7.  Clearance/Consultation   

The application was nominated by Adam Wilkinson, Executive of Economic & 
Development Services, supported by Richard Poundford, Head of Rido and the 
Town Centre Initiative Steering Group chaired by Cllr. Gerald Smith, Cabinet 
Member for Economic and Development Services.  Mike Smith of Rotherham 
Chamber of Commerce provided a testimonial.  

 
8. Timing 

The awards ceremony will take place on Tuesday 22nd June 2004. 
 

9. Background   
The SCEPTRE Awards recognise best practice and achievement in the shopping 
centre and retailing industry. The Awards, now in their fourth year, feature 10 
categories this year.  
 

9. Argument 
By reaching the finals of the awards it allows Rotherham to receive positive publicity 
and profile within the retail and property development arena. As we prepare the draft 
master plan for Rotherham Renaissance it is excellent news to receive national 
recognition for achievements in Rotherham Town Centre, and supports the RMBC 
Regeneration Plan objective of improving and promoting the image of Rotherham. 
 

11. Risks and Uncertainties 
There are no risks associated with the entry.  

 
12. Finance 

The cost of attending the awards will be met by the Rido budget. 
 

13. Sustainability 
Town Centre Management continues to learn from best practice in order to 
contribute to the sustainability of Rotherham Town Centre. 
 

RROOTTHHEERRHHAAMM  BBOORROOUUGGHH CCOOUUNNCCIILL –– RREEPPOORRTT TTOO MMEEMMBBEERRSS  Agenda Item 11Page 81



  14.   Wards Affected 
 All Wards 

 
14.  References 

RMBC Rotherham Regeneration Plan 
Town Centre Marketing Plan 
 

  

15.   Presentation 
The SCEPTRE Awards allow Rotherham to be recognised on a national level for its 
contribution Town Centre Management. 

 
16. Recommendations 
 

That the Cabinet member notes the contents of the report. 
  
 
  

 
 
 

Page 82



TOWN CENTRE MANAGER OF THE YEAR AWARD 2004 
 
Julie Roberts, Rotherham Town Centre Manager 
 
During the last 12 months Julie has played a key role in developing the image of the 
town centre and successfully changing perceptions. This has been achieved through 
her commitment and drive, energy and enthusiasm and ability to encourage people 
from both the private and public sectors to work in partnership towards the same 
goals. She has also been awarded the title of Female Manager of the Year for 
Economic & Development Services. 
 
Key successes: 

• Number of vacant units have dropped from 74 to 38, with 23 new shops 
opening in the last six months 

 
• The installation of state-of-the-art footfall cameras means events can be 

measured in terms of footfall drivers (eg Ice Magic increased footfall by 
32%; Rotherham-by-the-Sea by 27%) 

 
• Secured more than £300,000 worth of SRB6 funding to open and develop 

the town’s first Visitor Centre, which is on target to receive more than 
100,000 visitors in year 1 

 
• Secured £30,000 of Objective 1 Single Pot funding for Rotherham 

Renaissance. Julie is a key driver for the Renaissance project, with 
responsibility for the strategic marketing plan 

 
• Secured additional Economic and Regeneration Funding to deliver a town 

centre events programme.  
 
• Delivered the town’s first 12-month marketing plan, overseeing a closely 

targeted and focused media relations campaign, advertising campaigns 
and events programme 

 
• Played a key role in persuading the town centre that the way forward is 

through partnerships. Set up the Town Centre Business Forum, appointed 
Town Centre Zone reps (who act as a voice for their area), appointed to 
Rotherham Town Team, Rotherham Ambassadors Scheme, Town Centre 
Initiative Steering Group 

 
• Built up relationships with Chamber of Commerce (the chamber has been 

so impressed with Julie they have agreed to fund an additional Town 
Centre post), Chamber of Trade, South Yorkshire Police, Yorkshire 
Forward and departments within RMBC. 
 

•       Testimonial from Mike Smith, Rotherham Chamber of Commerce  
“Julie has worked tirelessly with partners including the Chamber of 
Commerce. She has demonstrated to our members and us a thorough 
understanding of Town Centre issues and is well versed in both theory 
and practise. The Chamber was delighted to co-opt her onto our Retail 
Working Group where members have been tremendously impressed with 
her knowledge and understanding, so much so that we have allocated 
funds to assist her in promoting Urban Renaissance and to pay for a 
proportion of additional staff costs needed to promote retailers in the 
town." 
 

Page 83



Page 84



C
am

pa
ig

n 
S

co
pe

Page 85



S
tr

at
eg

ic
 B

as
e

T
H

E
 P

R
O

B
LE

M
R

ot
he

rh
am

 to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

 w
as

 
su

ffe
rin

g 
w

ith
 a

 d
ec

lin
in

g 
pe

rc
ep

tio
n 

fro
m

 k
ey

 S
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s,
 re

su
lti

ng
 in

 
re

du
ce

d 
in

w
ar

d 
in

ve
st

m
en

t

T
H

E
 S

O
LU

T
IO

N
D

ev
el

op
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
t  

a 
St

ra
te

gi
c 

M
ar

ke
tin

g 
pl

an
 to

 b
ui

ld
 

“P
rid

e”
N

ew
 B

ra
nd

 Id
en

tit
y 

fo
rm

ed
 to

 u
ni

te
 

th
e 

ca
m

pa
ig

n 

T
H

E
 R

E
S

U
LT

In
st

ru
m

en
ta

l i
n 

R
ot

he
rh

am
 

ac
hi

ev
in

g 
Yo

rk
sh

ire
 F

or
w

ar
ds

 
‘R

en
ai

ss
an

ce
 to

w
n’

st
at

us
 e

na
bl

in
g 

in
w

ar
d 

in
ve

st
m

en
t f

ro
m

 E
ur

op
e 

to
 

dr
iv

e 
a 

20
 y

ea
r d

ev
el

op
m

en
t v

is
io

n

Page 86



C
le

ar
 D

ia
lo

gu
e

T
H

E
 P

R
O

B
LE

M
Fo

r c
ha

ng
e 

to
 b

e 
su

st
ai

ne
d 

ke
y 

bu
si

ne
ss

 g
ro

up
s 

ne
ed

ed
 to

 b
e 

en
ro

lle
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

co
nt

in
uo

us
 d

ia
lo

gu
e 

to
 g

ai
n 

th
ei

r e
nd

or
se

m
en

t a
nd

 b
el

ie
f

T
H

E
 S

O
LU

T
IO

N
R

eg
ul

ar
 s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
 fo

ru
m

s
H

ig
he

r l
ev

el
 p

re
ss

 li
as

on
Bi

-m
on

th
ly

 n
ew

sl
et

te
r t

o 
al

l 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

  
R

eg
ul

ar
 p

os
iti

ve
 M

ed
ia

 c
ov

er
ag

e
R

ec
ru

itm
en

t P
ac

k 
to

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 

ne
w

 in
ve

st
m

en
t 

T
H

E
 R

E
S

U
LT

M
or

e 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 d
ia

lo
gu

e 
an

d 
m

es
sa

ge
s

St
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

 n
ow

 fe
el

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 

ch
an

ge
, i

nf
or

m
ed

 a
nd

 a
bl

e 
to

 in
pu

t 
in

to
 th

e 
fu

tu
re

Page 87



T
he

 li
vi

ng
 b

ra
nd

T
H

E
 P

R
O

B
LE

M
In

te
gr

at
e 

th
e 

ne
w

 Id
en

tit
y 

in
to

 d
ai

ly
 li

fe
 

fo
r R

ot
he

rh
am

 B
us

in
es

se
s 

an
d 

Sh
op

pe
rs

 

T
H

E
 S

O
LU

T
IO

N
R

ol
e 

ou
t t

he
 n

ew
 b

ra
nd

 id
en

tit
y 

ac
ro

ss
 

R
ot

he
rh

am
Se

as
on

al
 B

an
ne

rs
 in

 s
tra

te
gi

c 
si

te
s 

R
ot

he
rh

am
 S

ta
m

p 
us

ed
 b

y 
al

l 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 o
n 

ex
te

rn
al

 
co

rre
sp

on
de

nc
e 

to
 d

em
on

st
ra

te
 th

ei
r 

be
lie

f i
n 

th
e 

to
w

n
D

ev
el

op
 a

dv
er

tis
in

g 
pl

at
fo

rm
 fo

r n
ew

 
Vi

su
al

 id
en

tit
y

R
ot

he
rh

am
 B

ra
nd

ed
 m

er
ch

an
di

se
 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
an

d 
so

ld
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

to
w

n

T
H

E
 R

E
S

U
LT

Br
an

di
ng

 o
n 

ad
ve

rti
si

ng
 c

am
pa

ig
ns

, 
po

st
er

s,
 b

an
ne

rs
, p

ro
m

ot
io

na
l m

at
er

ia
l 

an
d 

m
er

ch
an

di
se

 h
as

 h
el

pe
d 

to
 

es
ta

bl
is

h 
a 

st
ro

ng
er

 m
or

e 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 
id

en
tit

y 
fo

r t
he

 to
w

n

Page 88



Fo
ca

l p
oi

nt

T
H

E
 P

R
O

B
LE

M
D

ec
lin

in
g 

le
ve

ls
 o

f C
iv

ic
 P

rid
e

H
er

ita
ge

 h
id

de
n 

be
hi

nd
 

bu
re

au
cr

ac
y

T
H

E
 S

O
LU

T
IO

N
N

ew
 V

is
ito

r C
en

tre
 in

 to
w

n 
to

 
ac

t a
s 

a 
po

in
t o

f i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
fo

r 
R

ot
he

rh
am

 v
is

ito
rs

, r
es

id
en

ts
, 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 a

nd
 in

ve
st

or
s

Vi
si

to
r c

en
tre

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
 a

 fo
ca

l 
po

in
t f

or
 2

 w
ay

 d
ia

lo
gu

e 
on

 
fu

tu
re

 p
la

ns
 fo

r R
ot

he
rh

am
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t

T
H

E
 R

E
S

U
LT

Vi
si

to
r c

en
tre

 n
ow

 w
el

l 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
M

or
e 

th
an

 2
00

0 
pe

op
le

 p
er

 
w

ee
k 

vi
si

t t
he

 c
en

tre

Page 89



B
ri

ng
in

g 
it

 t
o 

lif
e

T
H

E
 P

R
O

B
LE

M
D

ec
lin

in
g 

Fo
ot

fa
ll 

in
 C

ity
 C

en
tre

Th
e 

m
ar

ke
t, 

a 
fo

ca
l p

oi
nt

 fo
r 

th
e 

to
w

n,
 n

ow
 lo

ok
in

g 
tir

ed
 w

ith
 

no
 ‘n

ew
 n

ew
s’

T
H

E
 S

O
LU

T
IO

N
St

ru
ct

ur
ed

 E
ve

nt
s 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

to
 b

ui
ld

 ‘P
rid

e’
3 

da
y 

C
on

tin
en

ta
l M

ar
ke

t
G

iv
in

g 
sh

op
pe

rs
 a

no
th

er
 

re
as

on
 to

 v
is

it 
th

e 
to

w
n

Br
in

gi
ng

 s
om

et
hi

ng
 n

ew
 a

nd
 

fre
sh

 to
 R

ot
he

rh
am

T
H

E
 R

E
S

U
LT

O
ve

r 1
50

,0
00

 p
eo

pl
e 

vi
si

te
d 

th
e 

ev
en

t
D

ou
bl

e 
th

e 
no

rm
al

 m
ar

ke
t d

ay
 

at
te

nd
an

ce
s

Page 90



B
ri

ng
in

g 
it

 t
o 

lif
e

T
H

E
 P

R
O

B
LE

M
D

ec
lin

in
g 

Fo
ot

fa
ll 

in
 C

ity
 C

en
tre

C
ity

 c
en

tre
 p

er
ce

iv
ed

 to
 b

e 
la

rg
el

y 
un

w
el

co
m

in
g 

to
 

Fa
m

ilie
s 

T
H

E
 S

O
LU

T
IO

N
St

ru
ct

ur
ed

 E
ve

nt
s 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

to
 

bu
ild

 ‘P
rid

e’
‘Ic

e 
M

ag
ic

’F
or

m
er

 O
ly

m
pi

c 
G

ol
d 

M
ed

al
lis

t R
ob

in
 C

ou
si

ns
 la

un
ch

ed
 

Ic
e 

M
ag

ic
, w

hi
ch

 tr
an

sf
or

m
ed

 th
e 

m
ai

n 
sq

ua
re

 in
to

 a
n 

ic
e 

rin
k.

 
Fe

at
ur

in
g 

D
em

on
st

ra
tio

ns
, p

ub
lic

 
sk

at
in

g,
 ic

e 
di

sc
os

 e
tc

…

T
H

E
 R

E
S

U
LT

Ic
e 

M
ag

ic
 h

el
pe

d 
dr

iv
e 

fo
ot

fa
ll 

by
 

32
%

90
%

 o
f t

ho
se

 q
ue

st
io

ne
d 

re
sp

on
de

d 
w

ith
 a

 g
oo

d 
or

 
ex

ce
lle

nt
 s

co
re

61
%

 s
ta

te
d 

th
at

 it
 h

ad
 c

ha
ng

ed
 

th
ei

r p
er

ce
pt

io
ns

 o
f R

ot
he

rh
am

Page 91



B
ri

ng
in

g 
it

 t
o 

lif
e

T
H

E
 P

R
O

B
LE

M
D

ec
lin

in
g 

Fo
ot

fa
ll 

in
 C

ity
 C

en
tre

Pe
rc

ep
tio

n 
of

 to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

 a
s 

du
ll 

an
d 

dr
ea

ry

T
H

E
 S

O
LU

T
IO

N
St

ru
ct

ur
ed

 E
ve

nt
s 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

to
 

bu
ild

 ‘P
rid

e’
‘R

ot
he

rh
am

 b
y 

th
e 

se
a’

•
A 

w
ee

k-
lo

ng
 e

xt
ra

va
ga

nz
a 

th
at

 
tra

ns
fo

rm
ed

 th
e 

ce
nt

re
 o

f t
ow

n 
in

to
 

a 
su

m
m

er
 h

ol
id

ay
 re

so
rt,

 w
ith

 
sa

nd
, r

ed
 c

oa
ts

, f
un

 fa
ir 

et
c 

•
O

th
er

 a
ct

iv
ity

 in
cl

ud
ed

 H
al

lo
w

ee
n 

an
d 

C
hr

is
tm

as
 li

gh
ts

 e
ve

nt
s

T
H

E
 R

E
S

U
LT

‘R
ot

he
rh

am
 b

y 
th

e 
Se

a’
In

cr
ea

se
d 

fo
ot

fa
ll 

by
 o

ve
r 2

7%
80

%
 o

f t
ho

se
 q

ue
st

io
ne

d 
re

sp
on

de
d 

w
ith

 a
 g

oo
d 

or
 e

xc
el

le
nt

 s
co

re
72

%
 s

ta
te

d 
th

at
 it

 h
ad

 c
ha

ng
ed

 th
ei

r 
pe

rc
ep

tio
ns

 o
f R

ot
he

rh
am

Page 92



M
ed

ia
 R

el
at

io
ns

 

T
H

E
 P

R
O

B
LE

M
Po

or
 re

la
tio

ns
 w

ith
 th

e 
m

ed
ia

 re
su

lti
ng

 in
 

la
rg

el
y 

ne
ga

tiv
e 

st
or

ie
s 

on
 R

ot
he

rh
am

T
H

E
 S

O
LU

T
IO

N
D

ev
el

op
in

g 
st

ro
ng

er
 a

nd
 d

ee
pe

r 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

ps
 w

ith
 th

e 
lo

ca
l m

ed
ia

 to
 h

el
p 

‘g
et

 th
em

 o
n 

si
de

’. 
Th

is
 in

vo
lv

ed
 s

en
di

ng
 o

ut
 re

gu
la

r 
re

le
as

es
, o

rg
an

is
in

g 
on

e-
to

-o
ne

 
in

te
rv

ie
w

s 
w

ith
 k

ey
 p

er
so

nn
el

, p
ro

vi
di

ng
 

‘e
xc

lu
si

ve
s’

of
 g

oo
d 

lo
ca

l i
nt

er
es

t.

T
H

E
 R

E
S

U
LT

C
on

si
st

en
t p

os
iti

ve
 p

re
ss

 c
ov

er
ag

e 
an

d 
be

tte
r r

el
at

io
ns

hi
ps

 w
ith

 th
e 

re
gi

on
al

 
m

ed
ia

. 
Pr

es
s 

co
ve

ra
ge

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
fro

m
 J

ul
y 

20
03

 –
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

00
4 

eq
ua

te
d 

to
 £

12
3,

00
0 

w
or

th
 

of
 ‘f

re
e’

ed
ito

ria
l s

pa
ce

 (b
as

ed
 o

n 
re

gi
on

al
 

m
ed

ia
 a

dv
er

tis
in

g 
ra

te
s)

. 
In

cl
ud

es
 lo

ca
l p

re
ss

, r
ad

io
 a

nd
 T

V 
(Y

TV
 

C
al

en
da

r P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

an
d 

BB
C

’s
 L

oo
k 

N
or

th
 c

ov
er

ed
 b

ot
h 

m
ai

n 
ev

en
ts

) 

Page 93



page 1 

RMBC LEISURE / JOINT SERVICE CENTRE PROJECT BOARD 
Friday 14th May 2004 

 
 
Present:- 
 
Councillor Georgina Boyes Cabinet Member, Education, Culture and Leisure Services 

(in the Chair) 
Councillor Gerald Smith Cabinet Member, Economic and Development Services 
Derrick Connolly  Capital Project Development Manager, Culture, Leisure 
     and Lifelong Learning 
Ian Gledhill   Strategic Resources Team (Legal) 
Tony Preston   Business Development Manager, Culture, Leisure 
     and Lifelong Learning 
Phil Rogers   Strategic Leader, Culture, Leisure and Lifelong Learning 
Graham Sinclair  Project Management Team Leader, Strategic Resources 
     Team 
Paul Smith   Design Consultancy Manager, Economic and 
     Development Services 
Kath Atkinson   Director for Strategic Planning and Development, 
     Primary Care Trust 
Peter Ross   Consultant 
 
Apologies for absence:- 
 
Jon Baggaley   Strategic Resources Team (Financial) 
Andrew Bedford  Acting Executive Director, Education, Culture and 
     Leisure Services 
Kevin Gallacher  Primary Care Trust 
Adam Wilkinson  Executive Director, Economic and Development Services 
 
 
18/04. Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 
The minutes of the previous meeting of this Project Board, held on 19th March, 2004, 
were agreed as a correct record. 
 
19/04. Gateway Review and Action 
 
The Project Board noted that:- 
 
- all three banks (ie: HSBC, National Investment Bank and Innisfree) considered the 
  leisure project to be an attractive one for marketing; there was also considered to be 
  an element of demand risk, which the banks would discuss at the appropriate time; 
 
- the Project was being marketed as a single package (this would continue to be 
  monitored through this Project Board); 
 
- a bid for funding from the Single Capital Pot would be made in respect of the St. Ann’s 
  swimming pool. 
 
20/04. Outline Planning Permission and Consultation 
 
Consultation meetings had been held in respect of all of the swimming pools. Discussions 
had also been held with Sport England. 
 

Agenda Item 14Page 94



page 2 

21/04. Outline Business Case – Progress and Feedback 
 
The Treasury’s Project Review Group had now approved the outline business case and 
the Private Finance Initiative (PFI) credits for the Primary Care Trust’s joint service 
centre. The PFI credits amounted to £5.83 millions, compared to the original award of 
£2.6 millions. The project was therefore considered to be affordable, value for money and 
deliverable. 
 
22/04. Presentation to Borough Council Elected Members – 18th May, 2004 
 
The Project Board noted that information about the project was to be provided for 
Borough Councillors on 18th May, 2004. This action would ensure that the appropriate 
Borough Council decisions would be made, enabling the project to be advertised in the 
European Journal for tendering purposes. 
 
23/04. PFI Project – Progress and Update 
 
The Project Board noted the following information:- 
 
(a) an application for outline planning permission had been submitted in respect of the St. 
Ann’s swimming pool; further applications had also been submitted in respect of the 
swimming pools/sports centres at Aston, Maltby and Wath upon Dearne and for the joint 
service centre at Maltby; 
 
(b) at Wath upon Dearne, the new swimming pool building will encroach on part of the 
comprehensive school site; 
 
(c) at Maltby, the joint service centre would be constructed on the “town side” of 
Braithwell Road, with the swimming pool and sports centre likely to be constructed on the 
opposite side of Braithwell Road; 
 
(d) the swimming pool and sports centre at Aston would be built together; there might 
also be an issue of a small portion of the building having to be constructed on land 
designated as green belt (the “lost” portion of school field would be replaced elsewhere 
on the site); 
 
(e) the joint service centre, being constructed at Maltby in partnership with the Primary 
Care Trust, was considered to be a challenging and innovative project, which would 
ultimately deliver a high level of service to local people; there were several issues still to 
be considered, especially those organisations which would not have a permanent 
presence at the centre (eg: Citizens’ Advice Bureau) and how much rent they would pay; 
there was a further issue about the contribution to be received from the South Yorkshire 
Police, who intended to use the centre as a community base; 
 
(f) it was confirmed that there would be a doctor’s general practice within the joint service 
centre; 
 
(g) two workshops had already taken place for representatives of those services which 
intended to have a permanent presence at the joint service centre; these workshops had 
been very well attended; 
 
(h) the Project Board was informed of progress with the recruitment of partner 
organisations to provide financial services and legal services to the project; it was 
intended that the successful bidders would be appointed, after interview, during the 
Summer; it was noted that specific expertise and skills in this type of project were being 
sought from the organisations which had submitted bids, for example:- 

Page 95



page 3 

 
financial services – complex financial modelling; utilisation of standard Government 
documentation; 
 
legal services – property issues; Office of the Deputy Prime Minister code of practice for 
the transfer of staff; 
 
(i) the project involved specialist construction work; the Project Team intended to create a 
unique grouping of partner organisations to take forward this project; there would be a 
continual dialogue with the Borough Council’s highways and drainage teams during the 
design and planning stage; 
 
(j) the Project Board agreed that Richard Caborn, M.P. (Minister for Sport) and the three 
local Members of Parliament should be informed of progress with this project, at regular 
intervals. 
 
24/04. PFI Project – Overall Programme 
 
The Project Board received a chart detailing the overall programme of the project. 
Members of the Project Board expressed their approval of the overall programme, noting 
that the intention was for construction work to start on site during Autumn 2005. 
 
As part of the consultation stage, a public meeting would take place at Maltby on 
Monday, 28th June, 2004. 
 
It was agreed that the overall programme and timescales would need to be discussed at 
every meeting of the Project Board. 
 
25/04. Project Board – Revised Terms of Reference 
 
The Project Board formally approved its revised terms of reference, as set out below:- 
 
(1) To meet a minimum of four times per year, unless otherwise agreed. 
 
(2) To steer the project to a successful conclusion at financial close, so that its milestones 
and objectives are met. 
 
(3) To receive regular reports based on the Project Plan from the Project Team on the 
progress of the project. 
 
(4) To approve any significant deviations from the Project Initiation Document (PID). 
 
(5) To ensure the minutes of the Project Board are received by the Cabinet Member for 
Education, Culture and Leisure Services, the Regeneration Board and the Primary Care 
Trust. 
 
(6) To ensure that appropriate consultation takes place with Government, users and other 
stakeholders. 
 
(7) To monitor the impact of the scheme on both Council and Primary Care Trust revenue 
budgets.- 
 
(8) To consider the proposals in relation to Council and Government priorities. 
 
(9) To arbitrate on any issues within the project and to seek to negotiate a solution 
between the project and external bodies. 

Page 96



page 4 

 
(10) To monitor the value for money and impact of the scheme. 
 
With regard to (5) above, the minutes of this Project Board’s meetings would also be 
submitted, for information, to the meeting of the Cabinet Member for Economic and 
Development Services and Advisers. 
 
26/04. Any Other Business 
 
Reference was made to Building Schools for the Future. The next wave of authorities 
involved in this would be announced later this year, probably in the Autumn. 
 
27/04. Date of Next Meeting 
 
The next meeting would take place at the Town Hall, Moorgate Street, Rotherham, on 
Friday, 9th July, 2004, commencing at 11.00 a.m. 
 
 

Page 97



  
 

 

UNITARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW MEMBERS' STEERING GROUP 
FRIDAY, 21ST MAY, 2004 

 
 
Present:- Councillor Robinson (in the Chair); Councillors Pearson, Pickering and 
G. Smith. 
 
Apologies for absence:- Apologies were received from 
The Mayor (Councillor R. S. Russell), Councillors Walker and Wyatt, and Karl 
Battersby, Head of Planning and Transportation Service and Alan Mitchell, Forward 
Planning Manager. 
 
1. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 23RD APRIL, 2004  

 
 Agreed:  That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 23rd April, 2004 

be approved as a correct record. 
 

2. MATTERS ARISING  
 

 (i) PPS1 and Draft SEA Regulations 
 
It was reported that the Council’s response to both consultations had now 
been sent to the ODPM. 
 
(ii) Babtie Settlement Appraisal Study – Phase II 
 
It was reported that Phase II of this study was about to be rolled out to 
look at Sheffield, Doncaster and the rest of Rotherham. 
 
(iii) Liaison with the Local Strategic Partnership 
 
Presentations to the Local Strategic Partnership had commenced and the 
remainder of the spokes would receive a presentation by the 2nd June. 
 
It was reported that this would be a useful process in informing the Local 
Strategic Partnership about the new developing planning regime. 
 

3. DRAFT SUB-REGIONAL SPATIAL STRATEGY VISION FOR SOUTH 
YORKSHIRE  
 

 It was reported that the vision was for the period 2006 to 2020. 
 
The Senior Planner reported that the paper had been considered at the 
Spatial Strategy Working Group on 10th May, 2004.  From Rotherham’s 
perspective there were a number of concerns:-   
 
From Rotherham’s perspective there were a number of concerns:- 
 

- promoting Rotherham’s growth strategy re:  population and 
employment  

Agenda Item 15Page 98



UNITARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN REVIEW MEMBERS' STEERING GROUP - 
21/05/04  
 

- how the work related to Rotherham’s Local Development 
Framework 

- politically sensitive nature of some issues 
- gathering impetus of the LDF process and the need to 

streamline arrangements to keep to the timetable 
- the draft strategy appeared to be economically driven, based on 

economic development, transport, settlement pattern, urban 
areas and rural areas 

- the document lacked detail and needed further work 
- there needed to be achievable, sustainable aspirations rather 

than futuristic extremes 
- there was a need for the four South Yorkshire Local Authorities 

to work together and not in competition 
- the document needed more research and technical input, 

together with a political steer 
- the document did not emphasise Rotherham’s assets, 

achievements, opportunities etc – e.g. Waverley AMP, 
Manvers, Rother Valley Country Park 

- there was no mention of Rotherham Town Centre Urban 
Renaissance Master Plan 

- the document was weak on rural aspects 
- there was little reference to the Housing Pathfinder 

 
It was pointed out that the work when reflected in LDF Core Strategies 
would be scrutinised in Public Examinations and needed to be justifiable 
and robust. 
 
Agreed:-  That the report and comments be noted. 
 

4. MEETING WITH GOVERNMENT OFFICE YORKSHIRE AND THE 
HUMBER - SCOPE OF THE LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK.  
 

 The Senior Planner updated Members following a meeting with 
Government Office about the scope of the Local Development 
Framework. 
 
It was reported that the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Bill had been 
enacted on 13th May and that the LDF process would commence under 
new Regulations in the middle of July.   
 
The guidance offered by Government Office was that Rotherham needed 
to produce by March 2007, as a minimum, in its first LDF:- 
 

- a core strategy 
- a statement of community involvement and concentrate on 

housing  
 
The following concerns were expressed:- 
 

- that the whole LDF needed to be inter-linked 

Page 99



  
 

 

- LDF was envisaged as having a 32 month preparation period 
- the challenging timescale involved re:  amount of consultation 

required, number of objections etc 
- risk of losing Planning Delivery Grant 
- confusion for the general public with the UDP continuing in 

force for up to three years 
- the need for the role and membership of this Steering Group to 

evolve and for the reporting and decision making process to be 
speeded up with more direct reporting to Cabinet. 

 
Agreed:-  (1)  That the report be noted. 
 
(2)  That the future role and membership of the Steering Group and the 
issue of the need to increase the speed of the reporting and decision 
making process for the LDF be discussed at a future meeting and 
guidance be sought from the Chief Executive, Corporate Management 
Team and Senior Members. 
 

5. ANY OTHER BUSINESS.  
 

 (i) Finningley Airport Steering Group 
 
The need for a substitute for the Cabinet Member to attend the Strategic 
Steering Group on 25th May, 2004 was discussed. 
 
(ii) Retirement of Councillor Pearson, Chair of the Planning Board 
 
The Chair referred to this being the last meeting which Councillor Pearson 
would be attending and thanked Councillor Pearson for his input into the 
Group. 
 

6. DATE, TIME AND VENUE FOR THE NEXT MEETING  
 

 Agreed:-  That the next meeting of this Steering Group be scheduled for 
Friday, 16th July, 2004 at 10.00 a.m. at the Town Hall, Moorgate Street, 
Rotherham. 
 

 

Page 100



Agenda Item 16Page 101
By virtue of paragraph(s) 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Agenda Item 17Page 105
By virtue of paragraph(s) 7, 8 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted


